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Belt ELE LICNEL BERNSTEIN, S.5.
EXAMINATIGN BY MR, BERRANGE:

Mr. Bernstein, you are aged 43 years of age?
=== 44 now sir.

Ch 44 (the statement is out of date).--Quite so.

. ~ And your occupation is that of an architect?---
That is correct.

belf-empinyed as auch?=---That is right.

And you qualified at the University of the
Witwatersrand?--That is correct,.

I think I canput it te you, Mr. Bernstein,
that you have been engaged in politicasl activity for mostof
your dult lifeT?---That is correct.

Have you e wver been abroad?---0nly ence, whan 1
was an xtive service with the South hfrinan ATmy .

That is the only time?---That is the only time.

_ I would like to go through your history - you
| H'

:hinud the Labour Party Lesgue of Youth in approximately 1937 or
19368 did you not7--That is correct

Anc the South African Labour Party some months
later?=-=-=-That is zight.

And you became Secretary of the Labour Party

League of Youth in approximately 193E7---That is right.
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In 1939 you joined the Communist Party?---That
iz correct.

And you remained a member of the Communist Party
of South Africa until its dissolution in 1950%7--That is so,.

Thereafter, where did youcarry on your political
workf===iy lord, I joined the Springbok legion, an ex=Service
organisation, while I was on active service, and after the
dissolution of the Communist Party I carried on political
activity in that organisation,

And were you elected to any executive position
in the Springbok Legion?--Yes, I served on the Natdional
Executive Committee from I think perhaps 1949 or 1950, 1 am
not very clear on the date, until the organisation more or
less collapsed in It hink 1954 or 1953. My lord, may I
just say that I have an cxiremely bad memory for dates and
all the dates I am giving in my evidence are very approximate
indeed, I am not terribly clear on these points,

And did you ever belong to the South African
Cuongress of Democrats?--Yes sir, I was a foundation member
of thz Congress of Democrats, and I remained in that organi-
sation until I was issued with a banning order in 1954,

bid you have anything to do with the founding
of the body?---Well I was present & the meeting which was
called by the African National Congress and the South African
Indian Congress at which a proposal was made by thc spe ekers
that an.qrganisation of Europeans subscribing to the aim of
equal rignts should be formed, and I in f act moved the
Resolution at that meeting finally to found the Congress of
Democrais

I wonder whether you would elasborate a bit
Fr. Derdnstedin, in order to give his lordship a clearer picture

of what the South African Congress of Democrats consisted of,
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and what its aims and objects wer ef=--iy lora, this was an
organisation formed by European South Africans who sub-
scribed © the aim of working for equal rights and oppor-
tunities for all South Africans, irrespsctive of raceor
colour, and for the total elimination of t he colour bar in
South african swciety, and membership was open to anybody
who subscribed toc that point of view.

Unly white membership?---Eurcpean membership only.

find I believe you delivered the main political
report at the founding conference of the Congress of
Demuerats?==Yes thaet is correct, That was an exhibit in
the Treason Trial. I don't remember s exact title, I
think it was something like "The Path Before us".

Actually it was "The Task Before Us."--Possibly,
I am not guite sure.

And did you hold executive positions in the
Congress of Uemocrats?---Yes, from its foundation until
the time I was baneed from it, I was & member of the
National Executive Committee.

Now during this period there was the removal
from the Western Areas, Africans living in the vestern
Areas---Yes I remember.

What did you have tu do with that?---tell
during that period a committee called the Yestern Areas
Frotest Committee I think was formed under the Chairmanship
of thher Trevor Huddleston, and I was one of the members
of ;Lat Committee. I think I was r epresenting the
Congress of Democrats on it, I an not guite certain.

Mow then do you remember the Congress of the
FPorople?=-=Yes I remember it well.

Held at Kliptown - when was that?---1955 I think.

I am sorry, I should noi bother you with dates

should I¥---No I am very bad on dates, I am afraid,
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And what did you have to do with that Mr
. Bernsteinf---Ky lord, when the decision was taken by the
Joint Executives of the Congresses to convene such an or-
ganisation, they set up a special committee to carry out
the actual preparations and the work of convening the Con-
gress of the Feople, and I was a member of that special
committee until 1954 when I was banned,

And it was then that the Freedom Charter was
adopted?--=At the Congress of the Feople yes.

And also I would be glad, Mr. Bernstein, if you
would give his lordship some idea of how the Congress of
the People came into being, and what it consisted of7——-—
My lord, the proposal was made, as I say, at a Joint
Executive Meeting of the Congresses, that a broad assembly
representative, as far as possible of all the people of
South Africa should be convened; an assembly really of
delegates picked by people either on a residential basis ,
sent by factories, organisations and clubs and so on, ancd
at that assembly a Charter of the views, demands, of the
South African people should be adopted. And the way that
Charter was prepared for was that oer o period of about
10 months to 2 years during which t he Congress of the People
was being eampaigned for and prepamed, groups of people
all over the country were askedﬁ?nrmulata for themselves
whatever demands they would likeio see written into such a
Ehartéf.h All those demands were then collected on the eve
of the Congress of the Feople, summarised into systematic
form, and when the Assembly actually took place these
summariscd demands were put before the Cocngress of the
People ac a draft of the Freedom Charter which wag then
adoptod, I am not sure if it was in toto or with amendments,

I am not sure,
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Wos only a certain part of the population of
» South Africa approached in regard there, or was it open to
everybody?--It was open to everybay. Very extensive efforts
were made to get all sections to participate, including
even sections which did not subscribe to any of the point
of wviews of the Congresses such as fdr instance approaches
tw the Nationalist Farty and the United Party...
They were also approached?--- Very much so.
t‘as this a Communist Urganisation?--=Not in
any way at all, sir, The Communist Party did not par-
ticipate in the joint meeting which decided to convene
the Congress.
Do you remember that at the Tresson Trial
it was suggested that the Freedom Charter was a Communist
Farty and had been drawn up by Communist s7-—-=That is
correct, it was so suggested by not sustained by the Court.
Mow when was it that you first began to
write extensively on political matters?---My lord I have
beenwiting for a large number of years, but I think
extensively probably from 1946 onwards.
I see, And I think many of your writings
were exhibits at the Treason Trial?--A very large number.
You spoke about being banned from attending
gatherings and belonging to organisatioc s---That is so.
That I think was in 19547--~That was the first
timéqyéﬂ.
And the period of the first ban was one of
two years, was it not?---Two years I think for the first
time, fullowed I think by a further 5 years and 1 think
thereafter a further 5 years.,

50 the bans were renewed in 1856 for a further

period of 5 years and again in 19617--That is correct.
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In 1962 were vou confined anywherei=--1 think,
subject to correction, my lord, it was 1962 when I was ¢
confTined to the magisterial area of Johannesburg.

Now you say that you have been politically
active for the most of your adult life. Since 1954 when
you were first banned from attending gatherings, how did
you thereafter continue with your political activities, in
the main%=-<=In the main sir mypolitical work has beenwriting,
I have been writing extensively.

Gn political matters?---0Un political matters.

S50 it he:amghggpussihlu Mr. Berinstein for
you only to carry on your political activities; or mainly
to carry on your political asctivities through the medium
of the written word7=--=Virtually, sir.

Now when you practice, which I think was in 19567
==That is correct.

Did you take up any occupation on any magazine?
--Yes when I started my practice I took up a job which
was prt time as the editor of a magazine called "Public
Works of bouth Africa."

What was that journal devoted to7--It was
devoted to civil engineering of a public character, works
of bBovernment, municipal and provincizl admimstrations -
that sort of thing.

One of the few non-political writings t hat you
did?~=-Very f ew yes.

khen did that job end?--My lord I kept that
job until I was arrested on a charge of high tmason
at the end of 1956 and I think the owners felt that somebody
charged with high treason was not quite the right person

to be editing a journal which circulated chiefly in

Government and provincial departments, andthey dispenses

with my services.
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ﬂnd-in devoting yourself to writing on political
matters, what did you find it necessary for you to dof---
iy lord..

in order to enable you to do this?---To be
able to write on the sort of things that 1 wrote about it was
constantly necessary for me to meet with and discuss matters
with people who were active in the political movement.
It was nccessary to do & large amount of research and reading
and that sort of thing.

Did you have anything to do wih the journal
callied "Fighting Talk",---Yes my lord, I was a member of
the editorial commattee of "Fighting Talk"™ from about 1948
right up til 1963.

And were you ever the proprietor of any book-
shep 7---Yes my lord,] was the proprietocr of a non-profit-
m aking bookshdp which was known as "The Book Stall™ which
foperated in the late 1950's,

For what purpose waes that established7---

Liberal
Circulating Reldisdieed and Left Wing literatere which
was not otherwise available through the normal bookshops,.

Belt C1E Now you have espressed your political views

Mr. Bernstein in & number of articles and journals?---
Yes I have.

Will you indicate to his lordship some of
themf=-=tell my lord, this magazine "Fighting Talk" I
have .written articles over the years I think in practically
cvery issUc. I have written a fair number of..

Before you go on, what period of yearsT---
Well from 1948 to 1963, that is 15 years.

YesT=-1 have also written a fairly large number

of pamphlets which were issued by the Springbok Legion and



- b - L. BERNSTEIN.

by the Congress of Demoerats. I have writlen articles
for “New Age", "The Guardian™, "Spark,", "Counter Attackn
which was the organ of the Congress of Democrats..

Did you write any pamphets?---Yes, pamphlets
Tor the Congress of Demoerats and for the Springbok
Legiun, and I was also associsted with Africa Publications,
where I uid o faizr asount of editorial work, and arranging
end writing of the publicetiuns which they produced.

and when iopical, uvr as we were tdd today,
current political issuves came into bueing, did vou write and
coileet moterial about such issues?---Constiantly.

I have particulerly in mind at the present
moment the Indian Donoer Uispute.--=Yrs my lord. 1 collec-
ted a Toir amount of materizl about that disputn; and I
was asked to suminarige it in the form of a summary of both
sides of the dispute, so thaotpeople could understand what
it was z2ll about, snd I did so, I think that document
iz actually an exhibit in this case.

Yes well that is why I mentioned it. Did you
have anything tou do with the..Ruth First's Book on South
Africai--Yes my lord, whon she did the first draft of that
book she asked me tu assist in the editing, correcting
ond writing of the book, and I did a considerable amount
uf work on thet. I think in fact it is acknowledged in the
Furcword, although I have not seen it myself,

- Hr. Bernstein, in all this writing that you
were engaged vn, both,,.for these years, vhat was the
nature of the writing? Was it Left YWing, or Conservative
or of a Right wing nature?--No my lord, it was of a Left
Wing MNature, 1 think in general it expressed one of two

points of view, either a socialist point of view, where

thot was asppropriste, or otherwise a point of view of the
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Congress Alliance in this country.

o you regard yourself as being a Marxist7?---
Very definitely.

An informed Marxist?--iell, I have made a long
study of it, sir. I would not like to judge how informed
I am, but 1 have made a long study of it,

Mow you remember the Eghibits being produccd
which were issued by iAfrica Publications on Congo, Angola,
Cuba and Algeria?=-Yes I remember.

what have you got to say about those puhlicatiuna??{

--=ily lord, first let we say that the suggestion has been
macdz that these were something in the nature of training
manuals in Guerilla warfare..

Yes that is what I wanted, .-=="ell, the
suggestion won't bear any examination st all, if you
read the content of the pamphleis Perhaps I should explain
how they came te be published, During the Treason Trial
a few of us guot together to produce a book about the
Treason Trial, for the purpose of raising funds to assist
with the defence. And for that purpose we formed this
body, it is not a company, I =suppose a partnership or
comething, called Africa Publicatiom Then when the
crisis developed in the Congo in 1960 there was a tre-
mendous need in this country, particularly amongst supporters
of the Congress movement which they espressed for some
material which would enable them to understand what was
happening in the Congo at the time,

Were you unhappy about newspaper reports7---
4Well the newspaper reporting was very inadequate, and very
difficult to follow, sir, and it did not give any of the

historical background about the Congo and how this crisis
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had dEUEleEd; s0 wé decided we would publish a booklet
about the Congo, and in fact I think the entire content
of that booklet is a single article which was borrowed from
a Oritish magazine. MNone of it was written in this country,
it might have been slightly edited, That booklet sold
extremely well, and it =old out, and the result was we
were pressed to produce cother booklets dealing with topies
of this sort which were of general interest, I can't
remember which was the second, 1 think it was the booklet
dealing with Algeria whichat that time was of course alao
very much in the news in Africa., The war was at Hits
height, and that booklet dealt with the history of the
Algerian National Movement, and dealt with the economy
and politics of Algeria. ‘When that sold on we went on
and produced a booklet about Anglo which was coming into
the news because of the uprising whic h was taking plade
there, and finally we produced this booklet about Cuba,
which was described here in Court yesterday. I know
something,..quite a lot about the Cuban una; because I
actually did the summary myself which appecars in the first
part of that pamphlet. It is a summary of a book by
two American professors who had been on an extensie
visit to Cuba, Huberman and Sweasy(?) and the second
part is a digest of a speech made by Castro to the United
iations,.

At any rate, the books will speak for them-
selves in corrobamtion of that?--Yes I think so.

NMow you have told his lar dship that at one
stage you were elected to the National Executive Committee
of the Congress of Democrats?---That is correct, sir.

And we have heerd a lot in this Court about the

Joint Executives, the Congress Alliance, the National
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Liberation Movement and the Consultative Commiteef..--Yes.
h And I would like you Mr, Bernstein, point by
point, to make clear, if you can for his lombhip, what
cach one of these bodies means and what they s tood for,
and how they were composed. Let us start first of all
with the National Committee for Liberation¥---National
Committee for Liberation, or the National Liberation
Movement?

National Liberation Movement.--My lord, the
Netional Liberation Movement is not an organisation, it
is not a body. 1 suppoe the best description wouldbe
to say that this is & broad cw rent of opinion which is
agreed on, the general need for the abolition of the
colour bar. 1 don!t think one can narrow it down narrower
tan that.
BY THE COURT:

It is a reference to a particular ideology,
really that 4is all it is?---Virtually yes my lord, in
the samec way 1 suppose one could speak about the Afrikanex
MNationalist Movement embracing dozens of different organi-
sations, different characters and aims, but all forming
part of the “frikaner Nationalist Movement. So one speaks
of the Natiunal Liberation Movemen t as embracing all
those currents of copinion which stand for the abolition
of the eolour bar,

EXAMINATICN BY MR, BERRANGE (CONTINUED):

Would it mean the same thing to everybodiin-
sofar zs its constituent bodies are concerned?---Hy lord
I don't think it would. There would be, for instance,

argument not gbout perhaps the most iwmportant central bodies

of the National Liberation Mgvement, but..
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I Which wéuld be%---khich would be the Congesses,
« and I think cberybody who speaks about the National Libera-
tion Hovement would use that texrm to embrace the Congresses.
But when one comes...
That is the fow , the Coloured, the Indian,
the African..7=-=And the Congress of Democrats and even
probably the South African Congress of Trade Unions.
TesT-=But when one gets beyond that to the
vither organisations which do subscribe to the abolition
o7 the Colour Bar, there one has differences of opinion,

I <think. Une person talking of the National Liberation

Movement will take it to incl ude such a body let us say

5 the Unity riovement which exists in the Cape, and other

&1

prople will net imdlude thet in thedir meaning when they
use the phrase.

I take it it could even include the P,.A.C, and

Fogp, in the eyes of some people?==1 personally, if I used
the phrose, would prubably include it, but I think that
there are probably a large number of people who would use
thu.phrauu excluding it.

Yese===0o i1 iz not a fixed concept with
definitec boundaries.

whilst we are on ihis topic, will you tell
fiig lordship something aboug the P.A.C. and/or Pogu, as
upmeEdntn the African Nutiunal Congress. Whether there
are, ond if so, what the fundamental differences are7---
fy lord, as I understand the position of the Pan Africanist
Congress, its fumamental difference with the African
Mational Congress..

First of all, they both strive for the abolition

of the Cdlour Dar%--LUh yes, yes definitely, but the fun-
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damental difference between them is that the Pan Africanist
Congress, in my view, dees not subscribe to the idca that
minority groups in South Africa, thet is to say, whites,
Colources and Indisns, are necessarily as a matter of right,
entitled to equal rights in the new South Africafl when they
have eostablished it, whereas the African National Congress
is absouluiely unequivocal on this gquestion, and it makes
its stend wery, clear at 21l times. I think that is the
main differcnce between them., Thee e are wminor differ ences

as Tor instdince ther attitude towards co-operation with the

Communist Party, where thoy have slight differences, and co

on, I think the main policy difference is on t his question.
1t may be relevand, Mr, Bernstein, for purposzes

of these proceedings, becouse of different documents to

which the Htatc wmade reference = what is the attitude of

the African Nationsl Congress and the FLALC. towords the

Communistisf==<My lord, if we aro speaking about posi=1930,

tie African Motiongl Congress heas at all times been willing

to co-vuperate with the Lommunists on matters of common

interest where their policies or immediate aims coincide,

The Pzn Africanist Congress, on the other hand, is

extromely hostile to Communism, end has nov at eny time,

as far oz I am aware, ever co-=operated in any way whaisoever.
find to put it zhortly, they stand for Africa

for the Africons?---ilell, that is the slogan, but I think

by that they mean that they aore not recognising as a right

the rights of minority people in the Africa that they would

Jike 1o make.

I sce. Now Mr. Bernstein, insofar as the

Congress Alliance is concerned, I think that speaks for
itself.---"ell this was again, my lord, not an organisational

thing. Therc is no organisation ocne can look to as the
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Congress Alliance. It is merely a working together of the
four or five cCONQrESSES.

It iz not a body?=---It is not a body at all.
It is..it just does not have any form. You can't ever find

a meeting of this thing.

But it is an alliance between the wvarious

Congresses to which we have made mention.==In the sense that
they work together and they co-ocperate.

Townards the semeg..--Towards the same ends,
yvoes that is so.

And the Joint Executives?---ty lord, each of
the Congresses has a National Executive Committee most of
which arz fairly big bodies, and usually drawn from the four
Provinees uf the Uniun. From time to time, at very rare
intervals, when a big political decision is about to be
taken, they find it convenient to convene a joing meeting
of the Notional Egecutives of all these bodies. That is
referred to g5 o Joint Executive. It meets as 1 say very
rarely, and when it does it is an extremely big body,
comprising 4 or 3 national cxXecutives, il can be antyhing
up to 100 prople present ot a meeting of the Joint Exc:utiuanﬂL'

And it includes all the members of the executive
of each body, and not just delegates therefrom?--No sir,
it is a Tull meeting of the full naticnal execcutives of
all tha five Hodies.

And the Consultative Committee?---My lord, this
iz a small stonding commititee which has been set p by the
Congrosses for purpﬁsuﬁ of day to day consultation and co-
ordination of joint activities. It consistis of I don't know,
2 or J ropresentatives of each of the National Egecuties,

and they meet from time to time. It is a standing committee.
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not like the Joint Executives, which is only convened on
a specicl occasion,
Do they meet st any particular place, any

particular intervals ==-="ell no I don't know that sir.
’

1 think that the dif ficulty is that the headquarters of
these bodies are not always in the same town, so I am not
sure quite where they mect, or how often.

Mr. Bernstein, I am sure it is relevant for you
tc place befurz his lordship your political beliefs and
yoor political attitude, and the way in which you have
viewed the historical development in this country during
the time that you have been engaged in your political
activity.---Yes.

For how long have you been a Communist7--=My
loxrd, my wviews have been Communist for 25 odd years.

And I take it all your political works and
your writings reflect your belief in the validity of
Marxism7-=1ell I would not say oll of them, sir. Sometimes
when I om writing for a particular organisation, such aos
the Springbok Legion, or the Congress o lDemocrats, which
do nol themselves subscribe to my Marxist views, then I
try Lo the best of my ability to obliterate my Marxist
viewpoint from what I write.

I see.---But otherwise, generally speaking,

1 sﬁ?qld think my view cmerges.

WYell you have been very open in this Court
about your wviews - have you ever concealed them at any
time to anybody¥--No sir, I don't think anybody who knows
me is A in any doubt about my views.

Anu insofar as South Africa is concerned,

how do yuu regard it, in the sense of its political set up

and its esonumie sct up?--- My lord, I would say that I
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regard South Africa as a country which has a large number

of froatures, colonial features, features of a colonial

type which are a drawback to the development both of the
ccenomy and of the social conditiore of the whole puopu-
lation, and that therefore the main political problem in
this countny is the abolition of these colonial type coodi-
tiuns which entaeils the abolition of the colour bar in
general, and in particular it entails the lifting of
discriminatory legislation against the African people who
constitute the majority of the populatioun.

Why do you use the cxpression "Colonial=type"

ir. Bernsteinf=--Bocause this is not a classic cdony in
my wview, but nevertheless, if one looks at the conditions
under which a large number of the African population in
particular live, one can see very clogse parallels between
thogse donditions and the conditions which apply to the
indigenous people in classical colonial countries, so I
say of that typc.

And you have told his lordship that you yoursel
have participated actively in the struggk against the
colour bar and colour oppressioni--=Yes I have.

And what have you been trying to secure, or
achieveT=-=Well my lord in an imediate sense, what I have
been trying to achieve is the lifting of the colour bar,
and ils abolition generally, sv as to enable all people
to enjoy equal righs and opportunities. In addition,
of course I have also where I have had the opportunity
to do so, been making propaganda, issuing my views about
socialism..

i propeganda cxpert?---Yes as a propagandist

I have been, when it has been appropriate and possible to
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do so I have been advocating socialism as a long term
suggestion for the future development of this country.

And in doing this, have you been wor king
Ffaithfully with the organisations to which you made reference?
—enYous sir, I worked very closely indeed with all these
o rganisations.

with the African National Congress¥---And the

Indian Cengross, and the..well %o a lesser extent, the

Colourced Peoples Congress, and the Congress of Trade Unions,
all these orgenisations.

And on major issues of policy, have you ever
found vourself in opposition to the main lines of policy,
despitd vour Cowmunist ideology?--Ho sir, 1 have never found,
in the time I have been in politics, thot I have ever had
a wmajor conflict with the point of view of the Congress
MOV oREnts.

Jhat does the Congress movemcnt endeavour to do?
—=='u1l that has just a simple cim of abolishing the colouf
bur and instituiing a regime of equal righis and opporiu-
nitics.

Has it any particular idevlogy of its down?---

Mo sir, no ideology whatsvever, it is a sort of nold-all

for people of all ideologies, who are united just by this

5 ingle oim of the abulition of the colour bar.

< That is the immediate aim?---That is their

only oilw.
and whatever your long-term aim may be, did they

intarfere in wvour endeavours %o assist to accomplish this

immediate ain?--lo, ot at all, sir, not at all.

Mow in so far as the congress policy is con-

corned, what would you say about its policy in relation to
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THE EMPLOYMENT of violence in order to achieve its ends?---

My lord the policy of the Congress movement has always been
non=viclent, Up to 1960 or 1961, I would not like to say
exactly when, it in fact preached what I would call positive
non-vivlence, that ig foc say, it went outof its way to tell

its peopls nol under any circumstznces or under any provocation
to rescrt toviolence., IT went out of itz way to discowr oge
violznee in fact. e have heard in this Court that fraom II

thinl round about the middle of 1961 the African National

Congress at least derided that from then on they would no
longer continue to actively discourage violence, but wy know-
lodoe of them, and from what I know of meeting them and dis-
cussing with leading people in these orcanisation, at no
time have tey gone out and preached violence.
They have not preached a pusitive policy of uinlcnue?
-=They have never preasched a policy of vielence, sir, right
up %o tindis very moment.,
“o what would you say is bDasically the change
that has come about as from say 196G/61 in the Congress
movenent?=-=My lord the change is that they have stopped
preeching positively that under no circumstianeces or provo-
caticn can agnybody resort to violence, They thewsclves have
continued to conduct their activities in o non-violent fashion..
Even cince 19607---Since 196U, but they have

moerely in this new period, in the last three years, they

-y -

nave recegnised that they c an no longer justifiably conginue
to tell everybody that the use of violence would be cumpletely
unjustified, and wrong.

Jo you want %o draw any distinction between this
policy employed by the Congrese Movement,and the Fan Africanist

Congress¥=--My lord 1 would not claim to be terribly well-
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informed abou the Pan African Congress. 1 can only judge
from gome very wild @nd reckless statements which were issued
hy‘thnm early in 1963 which szem to indicate that they were
calling thoiselves for o revolution with azrmed uprising, I
don't know what. Thot is all I caon say obout that.

I want to deal with that o little bift more later on,
“ie will leave it at the moment. You yourself, do you sub-
seribe to the pulicy of passive..pacifism? -=No my lord, I

.

wa net a pacifist at all. Jut I must say that during all
this periocd I have alwavs and I think Communists generally
in this cocuntry have always endorsed and supported a positively
non=violont view of the Congress movement up to 196G, I
naevor VYound myself in any way opposed to it, although as 1
sav I on not a pacifist, Dbut it secnmed to me in Lt hat period
that that was the correct policy, and one which I personally
supported and participated in, and propagated.
o you believe that the pacifist ideolegy such
on we have mentiuvned in all circumstancesx&R®R be observed f=——
Mo givr I von't, If I did, I would be a spcifist. I
welisve theore are circumstances in whnich completely non-
violernt political action becomes completely impossible, and
in many cases complet ely unjustifiable and completely
incorrect. It would not be correct to follow such a policy.
Mr. Dernstein, there are two methods of endeavoudng
Lo achieve political change, one is the employment of violent
mecthods, EHF the other is thmugh the employment of non=-
violent methods?--=That i s correct.
Yhat do you say wbout that?---Yell my lord, I think
i+ people have a free choice, every sane person, every reason-

@ble persoen will of course choose non-violent methods. But there

coiae times in history where I don't think pecple have a free
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ciioice, and 1 can see occasions when methods of cither sort
arc both currcct znd justified,

o far as the leaders of the Congress movement
ore concerned, what would you say about them in this regard?
—==liy lord, from whaot I know &6 them...

And you know them all don't you?--=-Well I know
proctically 211 of them, I think with few exceptions, 1 would
say that they are people who practically without exception
have grown up in the tradition of positive non-violence, and
thosc of thom whe have moved away from that position, have
movad away very slowly and reluctantly indeed, Far more
slowly and reluctantly, in fact, than a large number of their
followers did.

Mow what cxactly are you referring to when you
spaeak about their wmowving more slowly from this than their
Tellowers didf---ucll..

i want you to relate the situation as vou saw it in
this couniry¥---fy lord, mixing with large numbers of supportevs
ond mabers of the Congress movement, one could not fall, from
106U onwards to be aware of the fact that many of these people
were beginning to guestion very, very seriously indeed whether
the policy of non-violence followed by the Congresses was
corroct, and many of them were beginning openly to advocate
violent methods of struggle and resert to violent activity of
one kind or gnother, and my egperience of this situation was
that the leoders of the Congress movement responded to this
sort of pressure very slowly :@nd reluctantly indeed. They were
Far from inciting it, they were to some extent trailing aleng
behing it, if I wmay put it that way,

find Mr., Dernstein perhaps you would indicate to
his lordship what was the reason, so far as you could see, for

the fact that the people themselves were begoming impatient
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with the positive policy of non=violence?-==My lord I think
the reason can be put down to experience, and chiefly I
cuppose to the experience of the 1960 period, the Sharpeville
shootings and the Emergency which was declared immediately
thereafter, in which people began to realise that the Govern-
ment at any rate was no longer prepared to talk to them, or
to listen to them, or to tolerate any of their point of view,
out wos determined now to crush any sign of opposition and
of protet by force. And that experience was strengthened
still further in 1901 when the leaders of the Congress, and
others made a public call on the Govermment tu convena
o Watiunal Convention ot which civilized roond-table discussions
could be held on the future consiitution of South Africa
belween Lhe white and non-white peoples, and when they
prepared Lo back that up by a peaceful stay—at-home, they
were met with again very forcible reprisals, maoss arrests,
preventive arrests, show of foree through the townships,
nrmed demenstrations, calling up of the srmy and all this
Belt HUZT sert of thing. These, I think, were the experiences that
made people, wmany peuple, feel that they can ne longer
parsist in this policy of non-viclence.
Tou mean they felt that there was nothing open
to them than violence?---There was just nothing open to
them, They wem now pursuing a policy of non-violence in

reply
the foce of araed force, and the only =ep¥isal was armed

force amd forcible suppremion,

find Ms, Bernstein who would you in your ocpinion
say is the person who would be responsible for the situation
that hos ariseN7---iell I would say my lord the responsibility
lies four-square with the Govermment of this country, and
those sections of the population that have supported them

in this policy, because alt all times they have had open to
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them the possibility of sitting down round a table and
attempting to negotiate a settlement. They have never
made any attempt whotsoever to do so, and whenever such a
suggestion has been mode, it has been rejected out of hand.
I would place the responsibility squarely on their shoul-
ders.

I think, Mr. Demstein, that you =zaw the direction
to which this country was moving some time ago, and you
have actuclly written about it, in which you have eepressed
your own vipws7---That is correct, sir, 1 have.

You wrote about it in a pamphlet mlled "Face the
Future" which I propose to hand in my laom.---That is correct..
I wrote that, which has a foreword by Chief Luthuli,
thalt is correct.

In which you paint the developments in Sputh
Africa, and 1 think you expressed very much the same
vizws that you have been cxpressing here now.---Partly,
sirg and then partly ..]1 think this pamphle was written
in 1900, immediately the State of Emergency ended, and in
I stated my puint of view which was that this country
is deifiing towards o situation which will end up as
Algeria has ended wp, in civil war, unless some sane and
sensible attompt ie made on the part of the European
population and the Government to negotiate a setllement
before it reaches that stage.

B ihat were you yourself urgingi--1 was urging them
le negotiate on the basis that the demands of the non
winite .poeople will have to be met sooner or later, They
better be wet, in part at any rate, at this stage, than

Tace a long drawn period of civil war such as Algeria has

faced, and then have to be met at the end of it in a

situation of great civil bitterness.
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n Which was the wvery thing you were trying to avoid?
--—Exactly what I was pointing to.

And that is why you wrote this pamphet?---That is
right.

You say here "To this there can only be one end."
You were talking about the Algerian situastion. "France and
the white settlers will ultimately give way, either
gracefully now, or painfilly later. They have tried shooting
it out and in the course of these 6 yvears proclaim that
they have failed and suffered griewvously in their failing."
-=-=That is coxrcct,

"This is the egperience that we South Africans
need to face" and you arc warning-them against this?---T
am wsrning them against this policy of trving to solve
the problems of this country by shooting it cut.

You say "If shooting out is the cnly path that
pur supcrior white political ability shows us for the
tuture, we have no Tuturc here." Talking about 'we' the
white man?---te the white man yes.

"flot one that is worth contemplating, anyway."
-==That is so.

50 you were viewing with horror the idea of any
form of civil war such as took place in Algeria?--That

iz correct.

-y "

And you say "Yet this is exactly the path along
which the Natiw alist Government is leading, &nd the futuro
for which it now prepares." You say "Wc are on the edge
o F a crisis which may burst with explosive violence at any
moment. A forment of protest, a elamour for change, and
of assertion ef itheir righisc as human beings hasfrown up

amongsl the Africen population. Every oppressive measurs of
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the Nationoslist Government, every neow attempt to beat
thom lpel: to tribalism, every police campaign of terrorisa-
¢ion scrves only to fan the flames of ferment higher.

tot is new at staks is no longer just the peacefulness
ana % of the South Africon dfoily life, what is now
at stake is the future of the white communiity of South
Africa."-=That is corroct.

You were dywviously wvory worricd at this time, Mz,
dernot ein¥==1 am still worric d,

And vou are still worridd. ?;u end up by saying:

[
"Fgr those white South Africans who caell this country home,
for those who really love this country, not as slab of
s0il Lbut as a livino place for people, for those who
want to live here, bring up children, spend our dgys in
peace, this is the price which needs to be paid.” The
price Eng?=--The price being to stand up for a civilizea
policy of democratic rights, regardless of the persecution
the Govermment...

"It is o small price reckoned against the fearful
cost of the dark night of civil war to which the
aoverrment leoads us, the price we must pay for our own
Tuoure," Ano you say “bnly onc way is open to us, we
must take it or be engulfed., We must spoak out for a
mulii-racial Youth Africa with citizenship rights for
all touth Africans now while there is still a moment of

=y

time it iz still pussible for us to shew to Africans that

we " that is the Whites, "are determined to live in peace
hhore in our cuountry, and in theirs. There is room here
Tor both white and black." That ic so sir.

I hand it in my lord. (Exhibit D,l..) TRAMSCRIBER'S
LiB: Fr. Borrange reads very Tast and softly from this
exhibit, so that it is not possible to clearly distinguish
avery word. The above guotations are to the best of my
ability).
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Well Mr, Dernstein, you say that the time came
round about 1901/61 where it appeared that all avenues
o7 peacoful exploitation of their grievances had been
closed to the non-whitesY---Were closing,

Ur were cleosing. Yhat alternatives did thev then

have 16 faco¥=-=ily lord, it seemcd to me that the Con-

gresses et that stage had to face the alternative of finding

noew wethuds, or alicrnatively of losing leadership and
seWcll leadership 1 suppose, of the non-Europeans pecople
entirely, and allowing Lthe lecadership to slip inb irrespon-
sible, reckless, adventurous hands of other people That

is the alternative before them.

And in uew of the fact tht the people themselves
appeared to be jeading in their desire to adopt now
methods of struggle, what would under those circumstances
have happened, do you think?--My lord, my opinion is if
thre Congress loaders had not moved with the times to some
cxtent, reckless adventurous peoople would have led the
non-turopean population of this couniry into suicidal
and rochloess acts, as in fact some of then did at a later
staqo.

Can you give some cxamples?---tell my lord, at a
wuch later stoce, when the ocverwhelming majority of
responsible, expericnend and sober leaders of the Congress
wovemene nod been vivtually rendered inoperative by bans
and prescfiptions of ore kind and another, then reckless and
adventurous people did come to the top with what I would
inrseribe as absolutcly reckless and adventurous calls for

ravelution, and of drogging Dr. Verwoserd in chains to

Maseru - and I don't have to descrbie to this Court what
happened in fairly recent times, the beginning of 1963, as

result of exactly this situation,

il
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“dhat are you referring to%---1 am referring to
the call wade by Hr. Leballo from Maseru, I am referring
to vhe acticn wnich was tsken by Pogo in Paarl, and by
people allegeu o be Pougo at the Bashee River and other
places, which were in my opinion of a reckless, adven-
turous and Finally of a suicidal nature.

And completely unorganisedi--I{1 seemed to me so, siry

Huw in contra distinction to that, what would
you say has been the policy ond the actions of the Congress
leaders?---Well as I say the Congress leadership
moved slighely to the extent that they abandoned this
policy of what I would call pousitive nowviclence to the
extent that they said "We recognise thd violent forms
of stiruggle in thiz situation are justifiable, and we
will not regard them as @ incompatible with Cungress
membeorship if peopls in our ranks decide to go in for
such $dngs,."

IT prople in their ranks decide to join an or-
gunisoliun like Umkontc YWe Sizwe?=---That is correcet,

How did youn wview the Uskontu We S5izwe insefar
as wial it wes sciting out to do?---Hy lord, I read the
Hinitesto dssued by Unkonto on the 16th December 1961,
anc it impressed me very greatly indeed as a highly
responsiole, sober and well-considemd document, because
it seemed to me that this document, coming from people
who-wcre leading a sémi-military or violent organisation
noevertheless in their starting nanifestn state that their

[ =

aim iz, even by their violent semi-military activity,

ch

o bring about a situation in which & proaceful nugatiated

serilomnent of disputes betwsen white ard non-white in this

counicy can be seltled around a tgble. I felt that was ar
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cxtromely  sober, well-considered and responsible state-
ment indeod,

NG 5o Tar as you arc aware, what effect did it have
inguiar as the irresponsible aets of violence are con-
cernced, which were manifesting themselves in various parts
of the countzy at the time¥---Well my lord, I think it has
had an effect of checking the growth of reckelessness and

individoual acty of irresponsibiliiy, because people who

now 1t woved to take violent action of o political type
une way or another now fand themsclves o home in whic h they
could do it, wicre they would come under some sort of
roesponsible end ecxperienced leadershin, and not left to
thoir own recources., 1 think it had the effect of checking
irrecponsibilityv and gdventurism,

I¥f I understand you correctly, Hr. Bernstein,

The explonation vor this uppeaers is basecd upon the fact
that it eppearced as if (a) the people themselves were
bieng put in a pusition or the pevple themselves were

w ki oetion, violenl action, which should be canalized,
and sccenuly il appeared as if no means of siruggle were
longer open to them of a non-vielent method?--1 think
that is o Tair summary.

o you draw any distinction between that situation
and the situation during the War yecrs in the Second Jorld
dar T-==1 think there is a very great distinction to be
drawn—bitween this periocd of the Tormation of Unkonto
and the period during the Second “world var with the for-
mation of the Ussews Brandwag, and more particularly
the Stormjacr organisation, because those two organisations

which were formed, both of a semi-military character,
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both of th;m designed to carry out acts of sabotage, both
0F thewm conducting their activities in a military fashion,
and wviolent fashion, were formed at a time when the peoople
on whose behalf they were fighting had open to them every
possible legal channel of political activity. They were
capable of participating in Parliamentary elections, of
voting, of standing for Farliament. They had a legal press
wihich hal not been suppressed, and they could espress their
views in writing; they were able to move about the country
and hold public meelings, and organise, and agitate, and
make propaganda in perfect and complete legality., And in
those circumstiances, when they chose to use violent methods,
I say they were being absolutely reckless and irresponsible
and wrong. Dut if one confronts that with the situation
which faced the leaders of the African pecople then one
will see that the situsiions are by no means parallel.

find what do you think is the main issue at the °
present time Mr.lernsteine-<Hy lord T still think the
main issue is exactly what it was when I wrote that pam-
phlet, and thalt is the mccessity for the Government to

sil down arcund the table with the ldaders of the non-

turopean people and negotiate o settlement before it is
too late,

Taou say befors it is too late - what do wou think

ic innvitqblc unless thizs i

5 done?--I think it is absolutely
-y

irevitable, unless it is done, my lord, that this country
is going to face a prolonged period of violent struggle in
the course of which racial bitterness is going to gqrow so
acute that in my view at the end of it there is going to be

no fugurec for any European in this country. e will be able

to pack our Lags and go,
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You are a white South African - I should think
that is the last thing you wantP=--=%ell it is the thing

I have devoted my life to trying to avoid.

Mr. Bernstein, I wonder whether you would devote a
fews.some time, to explaining what you conceive the position

to be when it is suggested that the Umkonto Ye Sizwe

is the wilitary wing of the African National Congress?
How we know that that is an expression which finds itself
in certain documents, it has been suggested here that the
AsNueoCo has at a stafje adopted a 'positive policy of vio=-
lence! and I think the suggestion, if I understand it
correctly, is that in adopting such a positive policy of
viclence, it sct up its own fighting organisation, the
Unkonto We Sizwe, What is the position as you spe it7-—-
MydAlurd, as I understand the position from all I have
been told over the last few years from people who axm in

both organisations, Umkonto is o completely separate organi-
sation, many of the leaders of which and probably most of
the leaders of which are also members o f the A.N.Co and

who individually, therefore, draw their political inspira-
tiun.nqd guidance from the African National Congress, UWhen

-y

one speaks about this as a wing of the African National

Congress it sounds to me as though the intention is that it
ic attached to the main body by some organic link, As I
understand it, there is no organic link or attachment between

Unkontoc and the African National Congess except this one:

and that is that monbers in the African Natiorma 1 Congress
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constitute the bulk and the bulk of the leadership of
Unkonto and therecfore draw their political guidance and

ingpiration from the African Netional Cengress.

would you say thot so far as the Afriecan National
Longess is concerncd, it itself has changed its attitude
towards the question of violence or non-vilence?--=%Yell,
I have stated that it has changed its attitude to the ex-

tent that it no longer disapproves of people who conduct
viocleni action.

%o it won't condemn any of its members if thoy
Jeinged an organisotion whieh was endeavouring to achieve

its ends by violent means?---It does not condemn its

memgors and it does noi even dondemn the organisation which

is atiemplting to achieve its ends by violence. But it

has not itself, at any time, participated as far as I am
aware in the perpetration of any acts of violence, and it
hot not  incited poople, as far as I am aware, to perpe-
tratec octs of violence.

90 far os you are aware, would it be possible

for the AJK,C. as such to adopt g completely new poliey
and itself to engage upon acts of vioclence? Uhat would
be the reaction gamongst its membership and its members?

===Well I suppose it is possible, but I think the reaction

-y
would be tremendous turmoil and confusion in dts own rank

Sy
and possibly cven a very extensive split, because thig
prganisation has over o large number of wars been built up ,
after all, in the single iradition of not committing acts

of violence, and overnight for it to attempt to change that

1 think would probably spell the end of the crganisation,

in my opinion,



- 31 = L. BERNSTEIN.

How 1 would like you to deal with the accused,

starting with Ne. 1 accused, and to tell his lordship what you

can about each one of the accused, when you met them, how
vou got to know thom, Would you start with Mr, Mandela?---HMy

lord, I met Hr. FHendela - I can}t put a finger on it exactly,
but in the 194U0%: I would say, lote nine-teen forties probably

ond in the course of activity when he was a member of the

A.MaCs Youth League, and we ran up aginst one another in
joint political activitiez of one kind or another, I can't

cay which., I don't know how extensive you want me to be on
this?

ki

Mot al all, I just want you to tell his lordship
wihich of the zecused you know and which you don't know, and
the ones you know, more or less when it was vou met them and

undar what eircumssances. [ donft want you to give a bio-

graphical ecosay on each one of the accused.—---4YWell I have dealt ™

with Fr. Mondelo. Fr. Sisulu I think is in mueh the same
m

position, in the latec 104C0's or the early 1930's we cane up

against cach other in the course of joint work of one kind or

anotihhor in politics.
It sound as if vou were opposed to one another?---

Weell that is why I asked how extensive you wantd me to be,

because in Tact my first real experience of both Mr., FMandela
aond Mz. “isulu was in I think in 1950 when the Communist Party

together with I think the Council of Non-Europsan Trade Unions
(I an notwry surc abuout that) had ecalled for a strike on Hayduy::

195C and the African National Congress Youth League was nppuﬁing'f-

us very very vigourlyously indeed, and I think in fat so-

viguourously



- 32 - L. BERNSTEIN.

viguurously that meelings in various areas ended in blows,

and I think that Mr. Mandela and Ffir. Sisulu at that time were
leading protagonists of the opposition camp.

I hope they were not adopting vident methods| ---
I don't think they were, but as 1 say meectinos pnded in blows,

probably equally provocative from both sides at thet time.
And Mr, Goldberg, when did you first meet him,

it you met him before?--I met him in 1960 @ 1961 when I was

cn holiday in Cape Tuwn socially, and I saw him again the
following year, 1961 or 1962 whichever it was when I was again

en holiday in Cape Town, and I did not see him again until

the day we wero arrested,

And Mr. Mbgkif---1 don't think I had ever met Mr,
Moeki to the best of my knowledoe, until I met him at
Hivonia during 1963,

And Mr, Kathrada?-=--1 have known Mr. Kathrada since
probably the early 194CG's, I have been closely associated with
him in political work aser the vears, of one kind or another
of political wurk,

hnd Hr. MIhlaba%---'pll my lord Mr. Mhlaba claims
he met me in 1WE ot 1949 at a conference in Cape Town, which is
possible. I have got no wemory of it meself, and after that the
next time I met hin was at Rivonia in 1963.4

-- And Mr., Fotsoaledit?---1 have known him since
probably the 1950's. I think I met him first in the Communist
Party, something of tht sort, round about 1950 I would think,
or 1933 I think,

Mhlangeni?=--HMr. Mhlangeni I think I met probably

in 1946b or 1961 or some soch time when he worked in the offices



- 33 - L. BERNSTEIN,

of Heal (7) Printing and Publishing Company. I used to

g0 im there quite often, and I met him there about that time,

the ninetecn sixties.

Mow bDetween the se ars 19537 and 1961 how did you
spend most of your timeY---1 spent most of my time sitting in

the Troason Teoial., When I was not sitting in the Tmeson Trial
] was working on preparations for the next days's sitting of the
Treason trial, and in between I was trying to earn a living.

You started your practice as an architect when?---

During 1946,

I sec. And shortly after that, before you had

really got going, you were arrested and you were an accused for
moe then 4 years in the Treason Trial?--That is correct,

Uid you try and carry on your practice during that

time 7=--Well I did carry on a practice of sorts.

In the hoprs when you were not in Court?---1 carried
on a practice of sorts, working nights and weekends on a

vory inadequate basis.

And I think that you were also detained for a
periof of 4 months during what is known as the Emergency in

196U7==That is correct,

And in the resuX NMr, Bernstein by 1961 when the
Treason Trial ended, how did you find your practice?---Well by
that time I had not got one. And it took me some moths
before I had anything approaching a practice again.

30 was it then that you started to try and build a

practice?--tell that was the third time I started to try and

build a practice - I had mak two previous attempts,

Abid when was it thal your personal prablems began
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to ease somewhat7--1 should say about the middle of 1962 I

was sbeginhing to make some headway with my practice.
Mow you had also been banned and you had house

arrest orders placed on you?--I had a house arrest order placed

pn me [ think in Qctober 1062,
find what did that do to yourpractice?---My lord,

that practically knocked out what little there was of it, and

it made my life very, very difficult indeed,
why was thatf=--1 had a 12 hour house arrest order,
which means I could not move out of my house in the evenings,

and part of the order probibiting me Trom receiving visitors

at my house, which is my office.

That is wheore you were carrying on your practice?
~~Fxom 1958 of 1959 I moved my practice to my house because
] could not keep my office open, so I was practising from my

house. The prohibition on visitors at the house meant that
nobody could call on me, neither clients nor commacial

travellers nor buildes or anybody else. It meant every time 1
wanted to see anvbody or get any piece of information that 1

roquirec for the purpose of w work, I had to go and see them.
If Twnted a pigcce of informotion, dere normallg I would

pick up the phone and they will send a representative around to
tell me something about this, I would have to do a two hour o

trip inte town and badk again..

What about seeing your clients7---Seeing my clients, -
also. They could not come and see me, I had to @ and cec them,

and most of them are not preparcd to see me during the day.
The sort of clients I had they are not building as a business,

sort of a sideline, they want consultation in the evenings.
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I was noi able to go out in the evenings. 1 had extreme

diffigulty in getting to see them at all.
And 1 think at that time you also had to report at
Harshall Square betwcen the hours of 12 and 27--That is correct.
"0z that more time wasted---That was a great deal

of time wasted, because i I happened fto have an appointment

in town that finished, say at 1l o'clock I was now faced

should 1 go home, half an hours trip home and half anhours

trip back, or should I waste in town an hour deoing nothing,

waiting for 12 o'clock to come so thaot I could report, and

the frosult was thet 2 hours of mywrking day went on this
Yeporting problem.

90 that it would agear as if your time was more

than Tully occcupied Br. Bernstein, during this periocd?---'ell
my daytime hours were very much more than fully occupied,

And you at that time, so far as political work is
concorned, were contining vourself to witing?--="'ell that
was about all I could do, because I only had nighttimes to
worl, and then I was confined to my house.

1 sze. Yere you a menber of the Unkonto we Siae?

------- l have never boen a member of Umkonto =ir.,

#nd 1t follows of course that yaw could not have
Beoen o member of the High Command?--=Ko $ir, I have not

Docn.

How what do wvou know about the purchase of
Lilliesleaf Farm - when did that first come to your knowledge
--=Hy lord sometime in the middle of 1961, I am not clear
when it was, Iws approached to go out and inspect Lillics-

leat Form which at that time was on the market and was up

for cale in order to give a professional view of the
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quality of the buildings and also a valuation of the

properly for purposes of purchase. That is the first time I
qot to know about it,

Jho approacihed you7---1 was approached by Fr. Harmel.

Jhom you hove known for many yearsf=-==1 have known
him since 1939,

He was closely associated ky with you politically?—---
Yoo nir.

Jhot did you think theproperty was being bought for?
-==i2ll he did tell me sir that the property was being bought
Tor politicol purposes, 1 think he mentioncd that people
would hide there in case of emecrgencies, and so on, and that
poulitical wurk wadd be done there.

Jid he tell you whether any crganissticn was buying

it,ond if oo, which orgaonisation¥===Ho sir he did not t¢l1_ 
me gny more than I have told you now about the purpese of it.

I suppose you had o shrewfd suspicion?--=1 had a
very shrewd suspicion,

Itw vz not necessary to ask?=-=Well It was not

nocosaary to ask, aond I deliberately did not want to ask.
Why is that¥---Hecause I don't want any informstion
that it is not absolutely necessary for me to have . I have

weecn interrogoted prior to this, under conditions where I

was told by the Policeoffieers (it was in 1960 when I was

detained)-~that I would be detained indefinitely, =ns

unless I answered all guestions to their satisfaction, vhich
I could not find it in my conscience to do, so I just felt
it would be much casier not to know anything that I did not
nave to know, because I had a feelim I would be interrogated
again at sume Tuture date.

You had o shrewd suspicion?--1 had a shrewd
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suspicion,
find did you go out to Liliesleat Farm in order to
inspect itY-=Yes I did, my lerd, I went ocut and I inspeccted

Fife
ite I met the previocus owner, Mr. Buddi%} I discussed

" various technical aspectc of the building with him, the
question of the roof construction, the water supply and so
on, and I did a valuation of the property, and I think in

fact I recommended that 12 or 124 thousand would be a

regam nable purchase price for this property.

Do you romember how Mr. Fife refferred to Mr.

Harmel?--Hy lord I am not absolutely sure, I think he

probably referred to him as Jacobson, I know this mame

Jacobson came into conversation either between Harmel and
moelf or between Harmel and Fife I can't be sure, but..

You have hesard the evidence?=-=--1 have heard the
cvidence that Harmel used the name of Jacobson, and as I
say, he might have tocld me, or I might hae heard Mr, Fife
clling him Jacobson at that time. I am not sure how it
came about,

You don't dispute it7--No I don't dispute it at all.

In any aent, it was apparent to you from what you
had been told that this property was being purdc ased for a

segcret purpose?--Yes quite.
- ~hnd thersafter I think you were told that the deal
some
nad been completed?---Yes/time afterwards, ] amnot quite sure

how long, I was told that the deal had been completed, and

I was told thot it was necessary to make certain building

alterations out them, and I went out again with Mr., Harmel

to have o look at the place. I think this was after M=,

Fife hod left already. The Place was empty, ard he told me tha



- 38 = L « BERNSTEIN.

that what was required was a self=contained flat and

dwelling unit in which a manager which they were going to
take on for the farm would be able to leave separatc from

the tenant of the main house. I am not sure that the manager
even was there at that time., It is possibly that at that time
the manager was on the premises.

You don't rememb exr 7--=-No subsequently the manager
was on the premises, that is Mr. Jelliman, and he lived in
the main house at somec stage, when the house was still empty.

That is before Goldreich moved in.
And thooe ebsez alterations were alterations for the

purpose of enabling the manager to go and reside there?---So

thav ne could have self-contained premises separate from the
tenant of the main house.

That is what you were told7=--=That is what I was

told, and in Tact I made iwo alternative suggestiens about

how this could be done. Une was a fairly simple alteration
to the main house itself, which has two bathrooms, and the

other was to convert this outside cottage, add a bathroom into
the outside coitage, and turn that into a self-contained flat.
Fire Jelliman, haod you ever known him before?--Yes
my loxd I knew him in the 1940's or perhaps even the 1930's,
I huqﬂpnt seen him for many, many years lpfore I saw him out
there ot Lilliesleaf Farm.
That is when you went out there to have a look at

the placei---Either to have a look or to actually do the

alterations whenpover it was that I saw him the ¢ at Lillicas-

lea? Farm,

Uh you went out aguin in order to supervise the
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alterations¥==I met the plumber once and the electrician

mnce I think my lord,

Jid you see Mr. Mandela out gt Liliesleaf Form%---

Yoo ax my lord, on one of these visits, perhaps to mest the
builder, or one of those visits, I saw Mr. Mandela there.

I chattecd to him, He told me he was living there. And he
secmed anzious to chat, think he was probably lonely,

and heasked for reading material, and on a subsequent visit

I took him some books to redd.

Did you realise that he was hiding then?===0Uh I knew

he had been hiding from round about June when it was
announced publicly by the African Natiomal Congress, I think,

that he had decided to go inte hiding round about June or

n.IUly lEl'-ﬁl.

I take it you were not at all surprised to see him
there--<Well I had not quite expectd to sece him there, but

I was not curprised to find him hiding there, put it that way.
Tou say you took him some books, and you dropped in

on o couple of occasions t o talk to him?--=That is right.
Mow do yuu remember an occasion when ywu were

asked to take some literature and some books out to Lillieas-

lead Farw?---Yes my lord, Much later - you are talking about

nuch lateox?

-y

Ves, 1963,--Yes in 1963 my lord Goldreich called on

nc and said he had some chaps staying at his place who werc

very interested in the dispute which was then taking place

between the Chinese and the Indian Government an the question
of the border, the frontier, and he wanted to know if I had

any materiol relevant to this thing that thoy could read,
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T maid I had, but it would take me some time to find it,

L]

my house is rather cluttered up with this sort of siuff.

Well we have heard that your house consists of very
little else but books.-=That is a Tair summary! He soid he

would not be able to come back and collect it, he was going
awsy on a trip somewhere, but he asked me if I would take it

out there, you know, when I got it together, and I mid I

would doszo.

Mr. Dernstein, wvou had been told originally that this
lhouse was tu be used as a place for hiding what shall we
call them..noliticosY=--=Yes.

You had scen kr. FHandela there, you knew he wos in

hidino, and when you were asked by Goldreich to take books

+ wou

ol

1ts

out on thiszs issue Lo some chaps, as you say, i takn
iiad no hogitation in thinking what sort of chaps these were?

—=={in I certainly assumed they were political people, other

wise he would not have acked.

vho werce in hiding¥---Who were temporary residentis /
of somp wort,

e have been told that you have got an extensive
libmry of politiaml books. 1 understand that you received
political magazines and newspapers and publications from all
pver the world?---Yes, many countries of the world.

== " And the police are well aware of it7--=lell they
ragid my house regularly, my lord, and they regularly take

the studf owny, and thov have been doing so for a large

number of years. They must have o better library than I have

at this stage.

Anyway vou soay you did not have the stuif ready at the time,
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tdid you net it together?--1 got together some of the stuff

that I had on this issue, and I went out to Rivonia, I found

there Lhlaba, living in roomilo, 1., [ gave him the stuff,

and I had a slort chat to him, and then I went at sometime
later to retricve the material, and I had a subsequent dis-

cussion with him on this very icsue of the border dispute,

and my interpretation of the documents which I had left with
him and S0 ane.

I¥ 1 remember rightly there was a deal of contro-

versy about this border dispute?--Fy lord it was a matter of
tremondous interest to overybody inm the National Liberation
Fliovement in this country because to a large extent these

two countrics have, both in different ways, been something of
an ingpiration particulaxly te the non-curopeans. They am

two countriecs who have achieved their liberation within

uur own gencration. It was a matter of tremendous concern

that these twe countriocs were at loggerheads over such an

icsoun, and actually fighting a war, and wne of the things
which we found it very difficult to understand.

And 1 take it there was a great deal of discussion
about it among vour circles?---All sorts of pcople were

dizcussing it sir.

Can ycu remember how many times you went out al-

together?  Approxiwtely how many times you went out to

Rivonia during 12637--1 can i be sure. I would say probably
l-'l

4 or 3 tiwmes prior to the 11th July.

I think some of them said you were secn there two

or three times -~ you think it was more?--1 think it is

probably 4 or 5 but I can t be certain.
i~
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And was there an ocecasion on which you were asled

* to take oul more material to Rivonig?=-Yes sir, subseqguently,
I think it must be April or May I received a request for

material of this kind, relating to thke disputes of mattors

oV political theory betwecen the Soviet Communist Party and

the Chinese Lommunist Party, and I gathered some of this

material together, and It ook it out to Rivonia. This time

I met Mr., Hbeki, who was staying in the cottage, and I went

out perhaps 2 or J times to discuss this, which was a very

difficult and intricate problemn, and also one of intersst to,.
Why was it difficult and intricate?--This is a

quUEeSTIon, ..

AY THE COURT: lves it Tall within the bounds of this case?

logs it matter for the pdrposes of this case?
i, BERRANGE:

o I merely wanted to indigate the reason why he

went out two or three times,,

BY Tk COURT-

Tod iscuss this because people were interested in
this dispute.

EXAMINTION DY MR, BERRAMGE (CONTINUED) :

Anyway , it was a maotter that was also creating a
creat deal of discussion in your circle?--In Left Wing cirecles

now Ircan this is a matter..

n

-y

Yell I am talking about your circles.---Yes in my

particular ciecle.

And were there different points of view?-=Yes I

think there still are.

find were there many arguments about it when vou went

out there?--Yes, and very heated toc some of them wam,
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By the way, it has been said by one witness for the

« State %hat you haod something to do with the erection of o

radio aecrial at the house?---There is not g word of truth inm it
| And it wos suggested that this took place in the

afternoon,some time after one o'clock on 2 Saturday,---Well
my lord, on Saturdays my house arrest order in this period
convined me to my house st 2 pum. and I had to report to
Marshall Square between 12 and 2 p.ﬁ. I think the check of th
records ot Harshall Square will probably make it clear that
I could not have been at Hivonia at the time after lunch,
and have been at ForshallSluare, and have been home in my
own house by 2 o'clock that afternocon,

lire Bernstein, would you ever date to bfeak a

nougo arrest order? I am not talking about it from the
point of wview of the moralities, but..7---pAz far as the
confinement to my house goes, sir, I would not have dared,
because the police have been making it a practice, from the

time this order was issued on me, to drop in at irregular

hours just s they said, Tor checking up, Thoy would just
arrive, have a look if I was there, and go away.

20 you would never know when they might callf---
Never know when they were coming,

find was it at any time during the night? During
the afternoons, over a weckend?=---That is right.

==~ HNothing has been said by any of the wibnesses about

your visiting Rivonia in 1962, Did you visit Rivonia in 19627

--1 did on some occasions my lord,

Jid you see people theret--I sow pepple thern. 1
don't wont to be understood to say 1 saw people living therc

thouoh.,.

dhat part of the premisecs did vou go to in 1962 T—e-



In 1962 when I went there I visited the main house,

Jid you go there of ten?---Not terribly often, my

lord, I should say once in 6 weeks perhaps, or something
like that.

Was there any reason for you..no that is o matter

for argument. Mow at the beginning of July - you knew M,
Hepple of course,---1 have known Mr, Hepple since he was o
young child,

Uid he get in touch with ynu?--TES my lord, he got
in touch with me. He asked me to come into his office, which

l did, and then he w®ld me that some of the people at
Hivionia..

dhy <id you go to him7?---I had to be in town, the
day he phoned wme I had to be in town anyway to report beotween

12 and 2 with the police so it wos convenient. And he told

e that some of the people at Bivonia were getting very dis-
turbed about the 90 dav detention position, and the fact thot
dotentions woere toking place without sufficient protest and
utcry anongst the public., And also the fact thatfamilies

of detainees werc in considerable distress, and that thoy
wanted to have a discussion on the question of what should
be done to improve this position, and what arrangements could

be made Lo try and alleviate the distrfess that had been
causttl, and he asked me whother I would be prepared to go out
“o have such a discussion at Rivenia, and I said I would doso,

ond we Tiddled about s bit, we had a bit of oifficulty, I
think we had one or two false starts in an attempt to find

a date, ond we Tinally fixed a date for 11th July.
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Vhat did he have in mind for you to do7-=My lord,

he had in wind paorticularly that I would write, wiite
material for publicity and propaganda purposes, articles
fur the press, nither here or aoroad - that soxrt of thina,
find what type of stuff would you write, on what
themef===0h an this theme of the 90 day detention,

‘s there any talk about embarking upon a Tund-

raising canpaignT=-==Yeo, this was once of the proposals o
roioe funds for the assistance of dependants of poople who
vweroe detainod.
wnd you agreed to do so?---1 agreed to come out yes.
Mid he indicate of what race the majority of those

detained lplongedi---Well he told me and 1 knew of my own

belie? that the maojority of thom were Africans.

You krnewof coorse at that time that Hbeki was at
the farm7--Yes I had seen him,.well I did not know that he

was 5till there. I knew he had been there somo wecks bdbre
when 1 was there last.

Uid you know where dir. Sisulu was¥=-=No sir, I
knew that he was underground, as the cepression has it, that
he was in hiding, but wiere I did not know.

Mre DBerngtein, did vou at any time know that

Lillinglea? Farm wies bDeing used for work in econnection with.

Uakonto We Size?--- Mo sir, I never knew until I heard the

evidence in this case.

To have it formally on record, did you have anything
te de, at any stuge, with any acts of sabotage, either
girectly or indirectly?---No my lord, I never had anthing 4o

to, oither directly or indirectly, with acts of sabotane,
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Az wvou have already indicoted, you of course knew

oV the oxistence o the Umkonto we SizweT---Ch wves I knew
o it waell.

Amd vou knew that acts of sabotage had been carricd
ont==Uh ves.

And on the occasions when you went out to Lillies-

lead Fazm, as you have told us, to take literature out there
and engage in discussieon in regard to the topics that were
then current, was the guestion of vilence, sabotage, the

gencral political position discussed?---It must have been,

my lord., I can't remember cleady the discussions, but when
people of a political nature of our sort get together in

this situatgon , we must discuss politics and I am sure if

we discuss South African politics we could not have omittod
discuzsing quositions of viclence and sabotage and so on
which were in the forefront of South Africanm pelitics,

Guite. How you have told his lerdship that it was
necessasy ior vou to report at Marshall Square every day
bovween 12 and 2 o'clock?=--=That is correct.

Un Thursday the 11th July did you so report?--Yes
my lord, I reported os I think was admitted herc by the State
in Court. I reported at 1.55 ot Marshall Square. Then I
had certain business to conduct in town..

=™ Did you go %o Marghall Square by car?---Yos, 1 was
thar: by coar.

fnd Tran faving reported at Farshall Square, wheore

did vou go to7---1 had an appointwent..not an cgppointment,

I han to call on a firm of consulting engincers whose offices

are on the corner of Hissik and either Cudric or Albert S9to.
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That is oppusite the new Heceiver of dovenuels office,
I drove to HMorshall Dousre, it wos somewhere in that vicinity,

poriied wy coar and went up te their office.

Vet owag the none of the TirnT===The firm is colled
Eloin's “tructurca,

wom it on oa protessivnal maotter tht you were culling?

-—=Yasz my lord, they wore ctructural ongincers for a bueilding
winiogh I wan the architect, and I hao Yo teke some plons

in wo thom, and discuss with them some of the problems arisinag

i

from thoue plans. I did so. I discussed the watter tihen,

-

then I ledt their oifice.

Nid you dizcuss it with ong of the portnessf---1
discuzsscd it with onc ef the partners of the Tarm, Frown
thedr office I went ftovhe Lontral Hews Agency, which is
vertoer up Hisuik Utreet, and I bought some magazines, for
vivich 1 have get o standing reservatin, they keep them Tor me.
And then I went from there out to Lilliedsleoaf.

o at what timc opproximaloly, or as elosely as you
can @y, did you arrive ot Lillieslea? Farm%=---It wos very
o 3 o'clock, T can't say i7 it was o couple of minutes
before or a couplo of minutes after, but it was very cose %o
3 olclock,

fpproximatoly bow long did it take wou to drive
frow™tne Central lews Agency to Lilleasleaf Famm?--1 would
think the best part of half an hour my lord,

And on arrival, did you sce anybody there?---tell,

I did not sce anybody outdide, I only saw people ingide room

Moe L when I went in therc.
Whno did you find in the room,7===There 1 found lr,

5isulu, Hr. Mbeki, Kothrada, Mr. iihlaba and Hr. Hepple.
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They were all thern.

What happened theny Hre DernsteinY==Hy lord, we

B

spent o couple of winutes just chatting, greeting each other,

[}

some of these people I had not seen for some time. We worce
making light social chatter when Hepple suddenly znnounced
“hat <he pelice had arrived. I think he was in a positvion
viere he caw Sihn txucik drive in.  And then there was o stals
ey confusion which has been described herc by soveral of
the occuzed.

Uici @all thoe persons remoin in the room?--=lNo sir.
sisulu, fibeki and kathrada went out througin tihe window.

vinloba, Heppls and 1 romoained in the room.
find were you all thercafter arvested?--Thot is so.
You have heard the evidenee that the engine of
your motorcar was exgnined by br, Jirker that aficr nocn,

ane Lhat e Yound the engine cold.=-=Yos I heard that.

id bx, dicker pxamine the car in your presence?---
Mo sir, not in my presence at all. And I wmust say I rather
douisy whether he exsmingeg it ot all during the time that 1
Liie Tarm,
Mow would vou tell his lordship why vou say that?

===y loyd, ny cor was Titied from the day I boucht it with
a burglar alarm devirde whih was zo rigoed op that if you
opaened the bonnet, tho hooter started blowing, and there was
nq,way of stopping the hooter other than closing the bonnet,
or switching off the devide, a tiny little switch which was
turined inside the glove bex. 1 did not hear the hooter oo

oif during the time I was at the farm, which was until atter

dark I think or very nearly dark.

AT THIS STAGE THE COURT ADJGURNS,
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G BESUMING AT LD 2amy ON THE 4th MAY 1964,
UNEL  BUERNSTEIN, still under vath:

A INAT I WHANGE DHTINUED) »

I would like to go back a little bit Fir, Bernstein

o onc aspect that you dealt with when you were giving
evidence, and thuse werg ¥our visits to Lillicsleaf Farm,
Rivonia during 1962.--Yes,

I think you told his lordship that you went there
approximately once every 6 weeksT-~~Something of that sort,

UTE your visits fairly regular7---fFairly regular,

lid yuu go during the daytime or the night timeTee-
During the evenings, my lord,

And who did you go to see? What did you go there
for 7--My lord, I went out there to meet colleagues of
mine for the purpose of pelitical discussion.,

You mean plitical, not ar:hituctural, colleagues?
—==0litical cclloagues, yos,

#nd then until when did these vists of yours
cantinuef---Until I was placed under house arrest which
I think was October 1962, at which stage I was not per-
mitted to leave my house after 6 Pala

“ere you..did you find yourself able to go there
during the day time7?=---0nly with the greatest difficulty,
I haveexplained 1 think in evidence that this house
arrest order kept me extremely busy during the day.

And furthermore, fowards the end of 1962 what
about the colleaguss whom you used to meet with a certain
measure of regularity during 1962%-w=i'ell my lord,
some of them were also at one time or another placed

under house arrest. Some of them lefi the country,
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Gthers were unable to mect me during the day at all,
because thoy were in occupations where they had toc be on
duty during the day, and so my ccntact with them declined
very seriously.

%o these visits of yours thereafter ceased?===That
is right.

But you say that during 1963 you went out during
the dey time on some odd occasions, you think possibly
4 or 3 occasions, so far as you can remember?---That is
correct.

And you told his lordship that when you were first
apporached by Mr, Harmel to examine these pemphleds ,premises,
you told his lordship it was irt ended to buy them primarily
for the purpose of having a place of refuge for persons
who were hiding7?--~That is correct.

Pergsons who were hiding from the police, and also
fcr the purpose of carrying an politicel work.---That is
correct.

ftnd at that stage he gave you no further information
and you asked no further questions.--=That is so.

You told his lordship that you had a very shrewd
sugpicion on whose behalf these premises were bought,---
That ie correct.

I take it thereafter, Mr. Bernstein, when you
went cut to visit people with a fair measure of regularity
thercafter at Rivonia, at 1illieslead Farm, Rivonia, you
then confirmed your suspicions?---Yes my lord, 1 did.

The question of who bought the farm came up in discussion
on one occasion, and my suspicions were confirmed,

40 it was clear to yeu that this khad been bought

by the Communist Party as for as you could ascertainfe--
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That is cecrrect my loxd,

Lastly I want to deal very shortly with the
guestion of your visits to Mr. Kantor's office - I don't
know whether anything turns on it, but would you kindly
explain to his lurdship whether ycu went there, and if so,
why you wenlt therg.---1 did go to Kantor's of fice, for
severul years, 1 should hink from about 1960 onwards, when
wolpe becane a partner in the firm, Thcy'handled all my
iegd work, both work srising out of my profession, and
some legal matters which arose out of my politiecal wozk,

1 thirk you had certain acticns for damages which
you instituted in connection with your political activities?
-==That is courreet my lord.

hat was your first introduction to Kantor's
office?~--1In approximdely 15857, or it might have been
1938 I was apprﬁﬁthed by Mr. Hakda of Kantor's office
te appear as an expert witness in a hearing for eiher
the Group Ascas Board or the Resettlement Hozrd, on the
question of valualion of properties which were being
cxpropriated, And 1 did so on several occasions there-
after., That was my first introduction to the office.

And thereafter you retained them as your mlicitors?
~-=-~Yes, at a later stage.

Did you at any time do any political work there,
cther than work that was concerncd with actions or trial
m#ttars that you had there?=-=Ho.

Did you attend any political meetings there,7---

Mo meetings at =1l in his office.

“heny Mr. Bornstein, did you for the first time see
thisz document which has been referred to as Uperation
Mayibuye?--My lord, that document I saw for the first time

during this case, ot some stage durirq the preparation of it,
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Did yau know @f its existence before7--=No
sar I Jdid not know of *he existence of such a documont,
I don't rememnber very well Mr. Bernstein,
your lordship will forgive me if I am repeating myself,
your lordship will inform we, I don't know whether 1 put
it to you formally, you wre never a menber of Unkonto
We Sizwe or on the High Command.---No sir I was not,

Mifi, BERMAMGE : Mo further questiouns,

NOSS-EXAMINATION BY DR TAR &

May it please your lordship., Hr, Bernstein,

did this Upcration Mayibuye come to ¥ou as a surprisegle--
¢ll sir it depends what you mean guite by that, The
existence of the document 1 said I was not aware of.

The details of the document certainly came to me as g

surprise. The fact that such s document should be in

existence did not come as g surprise,

The fact that such a document should not,.7
=--0r perhaps 1 should Say, a document discussing this
Lopic did not come to me as a greal surprise.

Lid not?--<No,

And what then came to YOu as a surprice?
The details thereo? 7e—-The details certainly.

What details?---12l1l, the Precise operation
for guerilla warfare which is proposed, the suggestion

of ..that it is feasible within & very short space of

-
=Ny

time., These things surprised me.

find the formation of units of M.K? or as
the document pute it 'the proposed formation of uynits of
HeKe to commit acts of sabotage! - did that come to you
a5 a surprise?--I1 am not sure if I am quite following you,
The formation of units of M.K. I had known about for a long

'-t.im::.'.



- 38 - ACCUSED No. 6.

"Wrganisation® (I am reading from the document -
*perhaps it is only faix that you should have it in front
of you) paragraph 4 on the very last page: "OGrganisatibN
of freas, organiscrs and setting up of proper M.K., machinery!?!
Yo know that wunits of the M.K. were set up to commit
scts of sabotage. Did thot come to you as a surprisef—--—-

o you mwmean at the time i was done, or are you now

s aking of..7

nt the time when you read this document for
the first timei---1 am still not sure if I am following
you, It did not come to me as a surprise, 1 was aware
that units of Umkonto had been set up from 1961, December.

You were aware of thatfe--Well, I had seen
their Manifestoand 1 had heard talk that the organisation
was in operation,

find you of course knew that their main targets
wore strategic roads, railways and other communications,
power stations police statios, military camps, military
forces and major industrial installaticns?==No sir, I
wadd not put it that way. 1 think there are a number
of things included there which I did not understand to
be their mgn targets.

You knew lines of communication?---Yes,
lines of communication, certainly.

Power stationsi---Pouwer stations yes.

Police stations?---No my lord. I hae
never heard any suggestion thaet Umkonto is attacking
police stations.

Bantu fdministration offices?==Yeszs 1 had
heard such suggestions,

find irredeemable Government stooges, whatever

that may mean?--No sir 1 won't accept that as being one of
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the thing. I understood Unkonto to be attacking.

Mr. Bernstein, you have been in the Communist
Party on awful long time7=== A number of years.

Twenty-Five years, to be exact?--No sir,
1 did not say that.

What did you say7--1 said I was in the
Communist Party from 1939 until it was dissolved in 19350.

That did not dster you from being a Communist?
-==MNo it cid not deter me from being a Communist,

Shall ke put it this way then: you were a
Communist in 1939 and you are still one today?---Hy
belief, yes.

find an ardent Communist?--~1 think that is
foir enough, yes,

fi very loyel disciple of Karl Marx?--Yes,
s5ir, I think that is fair.

fng oll Karl Marx stood forft=-- pll, in
goneral. You ctressed the "all' - there might be things
I might disagree with, but in general I accept the
theories and doctrine put forward by Marx.

And you were a member of the Communist Party
from 1939 until 195C when it was disbanded?---Dissolved,

Yes - well up to 1950 you were then a member
for 1l years?--- That is correct.

fnd may I also pay you the compliment and say
you w&re oneg of its leading members, by rcason of your
'flair' for propaganda?---i:ell, there are two parts to that
question, sir. I think [ could be described as one of
its leading members. wWhether it is because of my flair
for propaganda ov not I would not like to say.

Alright - let us put it this way, vou were

cortainly well-read in Communistic literature?--Yes sir,
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I think that is fair.

WNot only did you provide yourself with an
adequate library, but you were the instrument of the police
providing themselves with, as you put it, perheps an even
better library on Communism?-==-That is correct.

You read far and wideT--Yes I did.

And you were called upon from time to time
to prepare, and issue, articles dealing with major disputes
within the international Communistic movement?---Are you
now speaking/Wi of prior te 1950, or speaking generally?
-=~=i/ell, generally.---Yes, 1 did prepare some documents
on those subjocts.

And you edited "The Fighting Talk?"---Not
really my lord. I was one of an editorial committee, I
was not the actual responsible editor.

find you yourself contributed a number of
articles to that magazine7---That is correct.,

Aind you have written for other publications,
such as Spark?--=Yes,

New fgef=-—-=Yes,

ind even Assegai is not unknown to youf---

It is not unknown te me, no sir,

Aind what rank did you hold in the Communist
Party until 1950 when it was dissolved?---My lord, at the
time the Communisi Party wes dissolved I was a member of
the Jshannesburg listrict Committee of which at one time,

I think in 1941 or thereabouts, for a year 1 was the
Secretary of the committee.
That was a district committee?---The Johannes-

burg District Committee yes.

Well the only other committee above that would

t: the Central Committee?---The Centml Committee ves,
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ere yud ever a menber of the Contial Committee?
w==lic ir [ was never a member of the Central Commiitee.

fnd then when the Communisi arty dissolved
in 1950, it wos revived in 19537---That is cocrrect.

You wore still a Communist.--Yos,

Did you rejoin the Party?

Fle OEHNANE:

I think my lord that I should ask your loxdship
toe wairn the witness that this is a guestion which might
tend to incriminate hin - an offence cther than that with
which he is charged.
BY THE COURY (to Do. Yutar)

Yesg well - are you prepared to give him an
intomnity or not?--—-Yos my lord, I give him a blanket

indemnity,

WITMESS ; Well my lord, if that offer is seriously made,
I would like to have an vpportunity of discussing the
questicn with counzel,

DR, YUTA: Ch yes, I make this offer in all seriousness.
I give you, on behalf of the fttorney-Genersl, a complete

indemnity from prosecution by rcason of your becoming a

member of the Communist Party from 1963 unwards, if in

fact that be the case,

ME, DLREANGE ; He wants to disecuss it,

BY THE CGURT (to the witress)

-ty

Well, why do you want to discuss it? Ferhaps
I can tell you that that is g valid indemnity, Mr, Yutar

has the authority to #ive you that indemnity.

WITHESS: No T am not doubting its validity, sir, It is

8 question of the scope of that indemnity that 1 would

like to discuss with counsel.
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. YUTAR:  Let me put it to you very clecoerly: it doos

ret, of course, offoct the preccedings in this ceso, the
four charges in this pase. But I undertocke to indemnify
you against prosecution against any charges that may be
brought horeafter the conclusicn of this case against you
arising out cf the ecvidoncoe you pow give.

MITHESS . My lord, is it unreasonable for me to have

g omall adjournment to discuss this matter with counsel?

tell 1 think Mrz. Yutar can go on to some
vther aspoct in the meantime, (te Dr Yutar) Unless
vou vould pefer to have this matter settled?---Hy lorg
it does form the foundation of certair important questions
[ propose to put to the witness my lord. But might I just
Tolbw that vp, my lord?

Yes.

CRGSS-CXANTIMATICH BY bR, YUTAR (CCHTINUEDR):

M:e Bernstuin, you understand tho teorms of
my indenniiy¥=-=Yos T do,

In other words, it does not affect the prosent
case, the 4 counts.---Correct.

But arything that you may say, in cross-
epramination, if it reveals that you committed an offonce
by reason of your joining a banned organisation, vou are
here and now cumplotely indemnificd zgeinst presccuticn.
HfLs BERKANGE :

Hydlord, I don't want to interject, but I
yeelf would Jike to have a discussion with my learned
friend in order to foermulate the terms of the indemnity,
If my learned Tri-nd can gu on with zsomething else in the
meantimz, nerhaps..

BY _THE CGURT:
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Wwell Mr. Yutar says it will make it incen-

venient for him in disturbing the thread ofhis crosse

uxamination,

AT THIS STAGE THE CGURT ABJOURNS UNTIL 11,30,

OGN RESUMING AT 11,30 a.m,

M, DERGANGE ADDHESSES THE COURT:

My lord, it would sppear as if we, at any
ratc = I don *t know if anybody else was under any mis-
apprehensicn, but on a perusal of the Code it seems, my
lord, that there is no power for the Attorney-General to
offer any indemnity. The only scetion that deals with
that, wmy lord is Section 254 of the Code, in which it is
thre Court that ultimately gives the indemnity, and that
refers only to pocrsons who are called as witnesses by
the prosscuticn, and who are accomplices.

BY THE COURT: (to Mr. Berrange)

Hasn': the Attorney-Generasl an inherent right

to give a person an indemnity?=--There is no such pro-
vision in the Code, as farow I can sce. But my lord, if

I can draw your attention to Section 5(3) of the Act,
may I mako it cleor that I don't for one moment trust ny

learncd frisnd's bong fides in this matter : It says

Mlvery Attorney-General shall excrciscess..(gquotes)
sssnsaspnicform any such function,™

90 1t would sppemx, wmy lord, that sven if we were pre-
parad 1o accept By learnnd frisznd's undertaking - that
is really what it amount te, not an indemnity, - an

undertaking not te prosccute, the Ministor himself has the
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power to rzverse such an undertaking. If my learned

fgﬂﬁnd were able to obtain the consent of the Minister, or
an undertaking from the Minis ter, not to prosecute tha
witness in respuct of any chafges which may flow as a rosult
af his snowering this question, not only in this, but in
ather Provinees, my lord, then we might reconsider our
poesition - or way wo put it this way, the witness might
roconsicger nis position, The position is my lord, that
when we went to docuss the matter with the witnoss, he
wanted to know what authority (he obvicusly seemed to knas
the law & bit better than we de) he wanted to know whethsr
my lzerned friend had the authority, and that is why we
went into this matter, and it does not scem to me that
he has ony autherity. Ho can, of course, gived an under-
taking, bul that is subject to reversal by the Minister.
fnd I think the attitude thet is adopted by My, Bernstein
in this woiter 1s thait if he can cbtain en undertaking
Trom the Hindister, which is opplicable not only to this
but io 21l the 'rovinces of the Nepublic, in tormg of
“ie su-colled indemnity thut my learned friend has offered
to bidm, then he might very well re-consider his posities,
May it please your lordshism. Hy lexd, I
nave given an offer of an indemnity, and it is irue, in

torms of sub-section 5 of section 7 as inserted by Lection

45 of Act 2Rk 60 of 1957, the Minister can reverse my
deeision in grenting indemnities, Now my lord, the position
quite simply is this: the Minister has in no way inter-
fered with we in the conduct of ihis prosecution, and I
have no doubt that he would not reverse my offer of an

indemnity, but be that as it may, if the indemnity in the
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terms 1 have offered is not acceptable, then 1 am obliged,

ﬁy lord, to asfgk your lordship to tell the witness that he
must answer thd question because of the provisions of Y“ection
228(d). Your lordship will recall that in Count 3 of the
Indictment the accused are charged with the contravention

of the Suppression of Communism Act to the effect that they
committed acts which were calculated to further the

achievement of one or more of the objects of Communism,

That being so, Section 22B8(d) spplies:

"An accused person called as a witness...(qudes)

wssss then charged.”
YUTAR CONTIN TO ADDRESS THE COURT 1 H ONN N.

BY_THE COURT: (to Mr. Berrange)

You are not contending that the matter is not
regevant, are you Mr, Berrange--My lord that is a matter
which we propose to place in argument before yourlordship
at the argument stage.

MR RITAN REPLIES TO DR, YUTAR,

BY THE COURT (tp the witness)

I think you understand, Bernstein, what the
position is.--=Yes 1 do my lord,

According to the law you must answer this
question. If you refuse to answer it all I can do is to
detain you for B days, which is not going tc do much harm
to yﬁﬁ in present circumstances. Sc you must make up your

own mind whether you are going to answer the questions or not,

-==Thankyou my lord.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DR, YUTAR (CONTINUED):

Alright Dernstein, we understand each other now.

I repeat the question formally: when the Communist Party
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was revived in 1963, did you re-join it7---My lord, I
am afraid I must deecline to answer that question,

On #he ground you say that it may incriminate
you=-~=It may incriminate me in charges which are not
before this Court.

0f course, Mr, Bermstein, if you had not re-

joined it, the snswer would have been a simple Ko, ---

Well, that is & deduction, sir, which 1 lemve to the Court
to draw,

Mr. Bernstein, one of the objects of the
Communist Party ~ by the way, despite your reluctance to
answer that question, or refusal to answer that guestion,
you still remain and continue to be a Communist?--By
belief, yes sir,

By belief. In fact you issued a number of

documert s7==No well,..

You wrote a number of articles?=---0Oh yaes, I

wrote a large number of articles.
hnd you subscribe to communistic literature?

-=Tgs | do.

Aind you follow at least the events, the

fortunes of the Communis t Party in this country?--Yes I do.
And you had no reason to depart or dispute

any of the terms of its policy?--In general not, sir, no.
And wedo know that the immediate short-term

policy of the Communist Party was to alleviate the

oppression of the oppressed peoples'in this country, as
the Communist Party puts it?--=That is correct.

And that of course, we have heard from another
witness, is the long-term policy of the African National

CongressY===That is correct.
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But eo far as the short-term policy of the

-

Communist Party is concerned, and the long-term policy of the
AeMN.C. is concerned, that policy coincided7--In general, yes.
Now we know that up to a certain stage Albert
Luthdli was the President of the African National Congress?
--=That is correct.
wWe know Accused No, 1 was one of his deputies?
-=1 am not sure if I would say that. He was certainly
one of the leading men bers of the African Natioml Congress.

wWe do know that accused No. 2 was Secretary-

General of the A.N,C7==-=-At one time, yes sir.

find at another time, when he was banned, he
also went underground, and still continued in the service of
the AN CT=-=-=That is what he said in Court, yes.

Wwho is the leader of the Communit Party in
South Africa?=-My lourd, I am afraid that is aother
question I must decline to answer.

On what ground?--1 am afraid my conscience
will not permi??tn disclose the names of people who par-
ticipated in unlawful organisations.

You know of course who the leader isT7==='/gll

I know some of the leaders, sir.

You know who the chief leader of the Commu=
nist Party is7--I don't know if there is such a thing.

Well, the head of the Communist Parfu--1 don't
think there is such a thing. The Communist Farty is led
by a leading committee which acts as a sort of collective
body. I don't think one can designate a single individual
as ths leader.

Who are the memers of that committee?===The

Same answer s
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You know who they are?---1 know some of them.

But you are not preparzd to answer?--No I am
afraid not.

Mot on the ground that you may incriminate

yoursolf, but on the ground that your conscicnce won't

allow you tof==That is correct.

“he was the tecsetary of the Comaunist Farty?
~=Tho sone answer.

ont where was the headquarterms of the Communist
Vartyi--Hy lord, the hesdguarters of the Communist Party
were in Johannesburg.

Jhereaboutt==That I cowld noi ancwer sir,

‘'hy notT==I don't know quite what that means,
I+ you mpan, where did they have e permanant office,
records, and se on, I don't know sir,

Take it in stages: uwp til 1950 when you were

i member of the Communist Party, wherc was its headquarters?
==Its hecadguarters my lord were in Cape Town in all the
timge I wan in the Farty.

Johannesburg had no headquaricrs here?=--1t
. hed o Uistrict Committce.

And then when it was revived in 1953 you don't
know whwre its headquarters were, except to say in Johannes-
burg?=-==That is so,.

And the Communist Party managed to exist from
1953 to 1961, obviously undergroundf=--I am not sure of
this 1561 date. My loxd, my impression is that the
Communist Marty first showed signs of its existence in 1960,
I think that iz so,

Hight, “ell what did it do from 1953 to 1960%7---

My lurd, T can enly assume that it operated secretly,
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Underground?=--1 take it so, yes
ind during that peciod you codtinuec writing
articles¥-1 did sir.

By way of explanation on conflicts in the

Communist movempnt?=-=1 don't think in that period, no,

1 don't think there were any such issues in that time that

I can rcmember.,
You certainly wrote articles defining the
Comaunist Party policy and furthoring its aims and bbjects?

—~-No my lord, that is not so. I wrote articles dealing

with political prdblems in South Africa, and possibly

international problems, I think that is as far as I can

take it.
Uell 1 proposc to take it a little further
allost Zmmodiatoely. and in,.oh yes, now this National

Liberation Movement, you hava explained to his lordship,

iz not an organic body?--Thot is so.

fAs his lordship put it, it represented a

cortain politicol ideclogy?--That is correct.
But it did consist of certain constituent
bodipgT===0oth bodies and individuals.

ind individuals, yes. And the bodies that I

am eoncerned with, of course, arc the Communist Party of

_"ul

‘suth Africa, the African Natimal Congress, the South African
indisn Congress and the coloured Pecples Congress.---Yes,
Thai i so,.

ind SACTU, the South African Congress of Trade
Unions .==-That is =o.

fnd yeu have explained to his lordship that

these bodies fumtioned by way of what is termed Joind
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Fxecutives T=—=Insofar as all the bodies you have mentioned

are: concerned, except the Communist Farty, that is truc.

Well how did the Communist Party functionf—--
My lord, it is an independent organisation, It functioned
independently, and the broad line of pelicy was similar
on many issues to thuse of the Congresses, but it did not
weot as an organisation, to the best of my knowledge, with
the leading bodies of the Congresses.

But it issued statements from time to timef——-
Gl: yns certainly. In its own name and on its own behalf.
0Y THE LOURT:

fire you now talking about this Joint Consul-
tative Committoo¥===Yes my lord...

“as there no representative of the Communist

VYorty on it ?--Nevezr at any time my lozxd,

CROSS=EXAMINATIGN BY DR, YUTAR ({CONTINUED):

That you know?-==lgll, I krow from having

nttonded mectingz of the National Joint Executivaes of the
Conoresses, and at no time when I was prcsent, and at no
time that 1 have hegrd of 2t all werc grepresentatives of
the Lommunist Marty present as representing the Party.

In whot capacity did you attend¥=--1 attended

a5 a MNational Cxecutive member of the South African

Congess of Domocrats.

Ut |

And we know, of course, the South Africen

Congress of Uemocrags comprise a large number of Communists?
~==There were many Communists in its ranks, and many non-
rommunisis, and several anti-Communists,

Yes. And is it not a faect, #Hr, Bernstein,
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that the Lommunists acted that way by infiltration into
varicus other crgonisations?--=My lord, I don't think I
would accept that as o formulation, 1 think it is true te
say thot Communistis, generally, don't restrict their ac-
tivities to the Communist Party. They join organisaticns
whose aims and objects they epprove of and they support,

and they become members of those organisaticns in the

normal way.

And in that way they capture and control thece
various organisations inte which they infiltratePe--My lord
o somc occasion when their point of view of the majority
point of view they no doubt manage to achieve control of
sume of these organisations. It iz not invarioble,

It dominated the Trade Uniong, didn 't it7=e=
I ) , :
Mo I durn't think that is correct, if you are speaking

about the 1rudn Unions in Youth Africa?

Yose==Nu sir 1 dnnnt think that is true,.

iid it dominate the South African Congress
of Trade Uniong?---There are sevoral Communists, or many
Communists, possibly, amd in fairly important positions

in the South Africen Congress of Trade Unions,

Thore arce Communists in the African Netiorg

Congress¥=---Yes theore arc, sirc.

There are Communists in the South African
Indian-Longuss¥=--Thee e are, sir,

ind thers are Communists in the South African
Colovred Proples Congress?---My lord, 1 have very little
knowledge of the South African Coloured Peoples Congress.,

I would not like to speak of thaot.
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fnd the Congress of Yemocrats, was it not

in Tact Communisticnlly controlled?--No sir, I don't think
that is correct either,

well, who was the leader of the Congreoss of
Uemocfats Y===licll my lor? at different times it had
different secretaries and chairmen, I think the President
oV the organisation at all times was o Mr., Peter Byleveld,
as Tar as I can recall,

A CommunistP--<~I don't think so, sir,

A man who has been restricted under the
suppression of Communiom Act?--Yes my lord,

fight, who elsc?---'gll that is the FProsident
or Lhairman, The secrctary of the organisation varicd frow
time to time. I think, as far as my momory goes, my lord,
I think llz, Cecil Williams ws the original sccretary of
the organization,

find he is also a co-conspirator in this case.
=Yoo,

Is he also not a Communist?--Yes he is my lozd.

Yes7---iAnd at a later stage Mr. Ben Turck,

filso o Lommunist?---1 am not sure about that,

But he is the one who placed the bomb in the

drawer of the Fresident of the Native Divorce Court i tha

Riszsik T“treel Post Off'ce?=-=-That is =o.
~ Mes Dernstein, I don't want to beat about the

bushs Let me put it to you quite bluntly - the policy of

the Communict Party is abhorrent te the Yest in gecharall

==My lord, it is abhoorent to many people in the lest, and

it has many supporters in the West,
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It is abhorrent to the majority of the people

in this countryf---No I will not subscribe to that, sixr.

thy not?--=-Because the opinion of the mujority
of the people in this country has never been tested on the
guestion.

Well, we know what the claimed membership of
the A.N.C. is - 120,000 out of 12,000,000,.---That is so.

\hat is the membership of the Communist Party?
~-My lord I can't say = it is very small.

hat is the memberbhip?--1 can't say.

dhen you say 'it is very small' what figure
have you in mind?--My lord, I think at itz peak in round

sbout 1946 or 1947, as far as I can recall, its membership

difd not run to morc than about 2000 at its very peak.

vell we will add the 2000 to the 120,000 and
make it 122,00C, Do you think that is representative of
the prople of this country?--iy lerd, 1 did not say that.
1 think, when onc is dealing with the Communist Party, it
must be borne in mind that mere support of the Pariy's
ohjects in not sufficient to qualify a persun Vor membexr-
ship.

My, Bernstein, arc you preparcd to cencede
thot during 1953 to 1960 or 1961 the Communist Party,

aven assumi: it had o peak membership of 2000, managed to

function secreily?---Yes 1 am prepared to concede that,

And what follows, underground?--Yes.

And it was one of the constituent bodies of the
National Liberatian MovementT=---My lord, as I explained,
diffeorent people use the phrase different ways. In my
vipw it was one of the constituent bodies.

I on occepting your explanation on Friky.
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find is it not a fact that in the National Libkeration

Movement the African National Congress was the scenisr
partner’=-Yes that is a fact,
And ig it not & fact, too, that the Communist

PFarty used the African National Congress in order to

propagate its aims and objrcts?=-=Ne I don't accept that,
Idon't think ths leaders of the African National Congress
are people of a calibre who ollow themselves to be used
by just wnybody who wunts to make use of them. They are
leaders in their own right, cepable of deciding their own
direction, and they do so, sir, not beccause they are being
uscd by others, but because they have decided for themselves
what is corroct.

You know of course Nelson Mandela, Accused
No. 1, he was one of the leading members of the AJN,C7=e==
He was, sir,

vould you not dexcribe him as a Communist as
wellP===No cir,

Although he took the trouble to write articles
on "How to be a good Communit?"---My lord, from my point
of vicw, those articles prove substantially that he is
not o Communist.

Don't you approve the contents of those
articles?-=No sir, I dunrt approve of then.

Why not?---Because I don't think they accurately
state the point of view of Communism,

Don't you agres with the Statement that a
Comaunist is a revolutionary?--Yes I agree with that.

Do you remember the avidence of Mr. "X"7ae-
I do, sir,

Who =aid that aces=d MNeo., 1, on his return from

Africa and Europe, reported to the Natal Regional Command,
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and amongst other things said to them "Let it not be known
among the rank and file that we are being supported by the
Comaunifts, "===1 heard that evidence,

~eutd-bhgd-be-fryesd IT that be rrue, do you

think it lends colour to my suggestion to you that the
Communists were in factl using the African Naticnal Congreas?
-==tir, all I can say is that ! don't accept that it is true,
or that it could be true,

And I want to put Zit to you that the Commu=
nist Farty, in fact, have manaoged without the African
Maticnal Congrese, certeidy up to 15960,%--1 am not Tfollowing
you very woll - mam ge what?

To propagatce its aims and objectsi===0h no I
dot't amgree at all, sir, The Communist Pariy propagated
its aims and objects fer itsfelf, in its own name, issued
its own propaganda.,.

The reason why T suggested 1960 wos this, Mr.
Bernstein: from 1933 to 1960, whercas the Communist Farty
was a banned erganisation, yet the National Congresses had
not yet been banned.---That is correct.

and there wos o wonderful opportunity for those
members who were members, and who were members of the A.N.C,
to use the A.N.C.in order to propagate the aims and ob jects
of the Communist Party.--Hy lord, as I have said bofoure,
the aimz of Commurists in this country, and the aims of

=y

the African Mational Congress virtually coincide on

immodiute problems, snd thorefore there iz no necessity

in the African U-g=~e Mationzal Congress to use that organi-
satbn for any purpose, He supports it becausc he Epproves
fundamentolly of its aims and poliey, and he would propagate
those aims bolh because he is a Communist and kecause he is

a member of the A.N.C,
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Are you suggesting, Mr. Bernstein, that in

fact the Communist Party and the A.N.C. did not work together
as partners in the National Liberation Movement?—-—-No sir,
I think that one could say that there was co-operation be-
tween them from time to time, What 1 did say was tht they
did not meet together in Joint Executive Committees as far
as I am aware,

I am going a little further than co-pperm tion,
I say that they worked together as partners, full partners,
in the National Liberation Movement?---That would imply that
they met together, and decided commen policy togcdher, I am
not aware that that took place during the period you are
spaaking nf! sir,

Tell me if the Communist Farty manage
Eﬁlt BEE- I

without headquarters from 1953 tao 1960, why did the need
arise in 1961 to establish a hesdquarters?---If you are
referring to Rivonia..?

I am,--=Vell I have explained the purpose,

so for as 1 was told, for which Rivonia farm was necessary.
It was not to establish headquarters, but to provide a
place far hiding, for people who might be in hiding, and

to provide a convenient place where political work eould

be done.

A two-fold purpose then - could I have it
again, Mr, Bernstein? Sorry to trouble You.-==Yog, to
provide a place for persons who required hiding, and to
provide a place where political work could be carried out,

Now did in fact the Communist Party use Ri-

vonia to carry out political work?--My lord, it is clear

from the evidence here that it did.

Now how required seclusion? What political
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refugees were there who reguired a place for a hideout?
=-My lord, at the particular time when Rivonia was bought,
I don't know if there were any. 1 think it should be

borne in mind that during the 1960 emergency there were

some several thousand political workers, supporters of po-

litical movement, who were arrested and detained; a large

number of people who were being looked for for detention,

who managed to escape the net, and I think everybody in the

political movement was conscious of the fact that a similar

situation could arise at any time again in this country,

and that the need could well arise on a very large scale.
Now up til then, who were the Communists
who were, first of all, in hiding? Who were actually in
hiding? Any7---As I say I can't recall that anybody was
actually in hiding until Mr. Mandela went into hiding in
1961,
But you said he is not Communist,---No sir,
Bt I am talking about Communig s,~==Well, as

I say I dunlt know of any other person at all, of any kind.,

-

Now, even after the state of Emergency, what

Communists were in hiding at Rivonia?---My lord....I don't

think that I can..,are you still speaking about 1961, or
are you talking right through up to..7

No, 1 am speaking of 1961,---0h I ses. My

-

lord, I don't think I can answer that question, The
people who I knew to be in hiding during that periocd at

Rivonia are all people who are accused hers in the dock.
I don't know of any other people who were in hiding at
Rivonia during that period,

S0 you cannot name & single Communist who was
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in hiding in Rivonia during 19617--No sir, except any of

the Eemmu accused here in the dock..
‘ho are also communists?---~Who might be Communisi
Now if membership of the Communist Party was a
mere 2,000, I don't suppose much money could have been
roised by the Communist Party by way of subscriptions from

those members?---My lord, a far amount of money was raised

by way of subscriptions - subscriptione in the Communist
Party have always been very high, by comparison with other
political organisations.

kihat amount, Mr. Bernstein?---1 can't say my
lord, but they are extremely high, and they tend to be on a
sliding scale, on the basis of income - the more your in-
come, the more you pay.

But what is the total amount? If we had a

balance sheet of the Communist Party, what would be the

capital?-~1 could not even venture a guess sir.
Not even a guess7-=No sir.

Not even a semblance of a guess7---No s I,

not even a semblance of a guess.

Well, would you say it was in very affluent

circumstances?---My lord, in the time when I know detesils of
it, it never had sufficient money for all the things it was
trying to do,
- Like most organisations?=-~-That is so.

If that be so, where did the Communist Party..
why did the Communist Party in 1961, embark upon a scheme
to purchase Rivonia to serve as & hideout at a cost of
R25,0007--1 can t answer that question.

You can't ars wer that, And also why, if £

it was only a hideout that was required, why buy a place
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of 2B acres, aspproximately?---fAgain I :antt answer that

question precisely. I take it that it was a secluded place,
and convenient for a hideout.

Well I am told Travellyn was also a secluded
place and convenient for a hideout, according to one of the
documents., And that is only a matter of an acre or so,
costing only R8,500. Can you see the need for a Party, not
in affldent circumstances,desiring to carry on political
work as it had done in the past, desiring to house political
refugees, embarking on a project costing 25,000 Rand?=--

My lord 1 can't explain it. I can only say that when I

valued the property, I told Mr. Harmel, as I said in
evidence on Friday, that I thought at that price this was

a very good buy indeed from a commercial point of view.

That is the only thing I can say.
Right you say that you first learnt of the

purchase of Rivonia from Mr, Harmel who asked you to make

a valuation?==~That is =so.

Harmel of course is a Communist?===Yes,

WAs, still is, always has been,--=Well in

belief, certainly sir.

A member of the Communist Party?---Up to

1960, yes, sir.

And beyond?-- I can't answer that question.

And in 19617---No I am notprepered to answer
that.

Then what made you have a suspicion, when he
approached you in 1961, that Rivonia was being purchased by
the Communist Party?---Well my lord I had known Mz, Harmel's
political views for many many years. I have no doubt that

when he is active, interesting himself in a political
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problem, he is doing so largely because his beliefs are those

of a Communist.

Yes7--Also my suspicions were confirmed when 1

found Mr, Jelliman had been engaged as manager of the place,
because my only knowledge of Mr. Jelliman was as he said heare
in evidence I think that he used to sell Left Wing literature
at Communist Perty meetings on the City Hall steps.

And attend meetings.--==Attend meetings and
spll literature.

You sce, seeim you have mentioned Mr, Jelliman,
we find you at Rivonia in the latter half of 1961, according
to Mr, Jelliman.--=Yes,

In fact Mr. Jelliman went further and said one
month you paid his saolary.--I heard him say that.

Is it trug?=--My lord, I would say not it is not
true, but I would just like to add this, that it is just
possible that at that time I could have been asked by Mr.
Haxrmel, since I was going out to meet a builder, to take

Mr. Jelliman's wages and hand them over to him. It is

possible. I have no memory of it at all.

And we find you at Rivonia on the day of the

police raid.-=--That is so,.

And on your own admission you are at Rivonia

during 1962 and 1963.-=That is correct.

Now Harmel you knew was a Communist, and you
knew he had a house somewhere in Orchards, wasn't it7---

That is so.

And so he was not buying the house for himself7---

Mo sir he was not,.

And he was a collague of yours?--Yes he was.

A close colleague of yourgs?=--He has been a
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friend of mine for many years.
Did you ask him why this place was being bought?
-==lo sir, as I say, he gave me an explanation why it was
being bought, and that is as far as I took the matter.
Did you never ask him where the money was
coming from?--No I did not,
You never asked him why this huge place?--No sir,
Althaugh you could have?--I1 could have, yes.
Yihat stopped you?--My lord I think I indicated
1 delibergately did not want to know more about this sort
of thing than I had to krnow, and I deliberately refrained
from asking any quetions.

Mr.Bernstein, wu know who the lcaders of the

Communist Party are, but that has not prevented you from

taking up an attitiude in thfis box "I refuse to disclose

their identity"---That is so.
You could have made those enquiries, and taken
up the same attitude saying "I refuse to disclose any

further details."---1 coudl, sir, but under conditiocne

where one is being interrogated under duress I much prefer
not to know, than have to rely on my own morsle to refuse

to answer.
You say your suspicions were confirmed at a
subscquent meeting that Rivenia was being purchased by the

Comfiunist Party?---1 heard it said at a subsequent occasion,

yos,
vhere was that ocecasion?---At Rivonia itself.

Who all were present?--No sir, I am afraid 1

must decline *o answer that.

When did this take place?---During 1962,

And your suspicions that this property was
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purchased by the Communist Party was confirmed?--That is so,.

But you decline ta tell us who was present?---
That is so.

fAlthough you know who they are?-=Yes,

Wos the purpose for the purchase discussed at
that meeting7===My lord, not as far as I can remember, I
mean, the purpose was by that time quite obvious, It was,
as I said, for carrying out political work,

This is 1962 now7-=Yes,

How many Communists had been using Rivonia as

a hideout in 19627---

The score is nil for 1961,--<~1 thirk to the
best of my knowledge, the score is nil for 1962,

The score is nil for 1962. And let us complete
the pidure now, and get it out of the way - what is the
score for 19637---Well, as I have said, my lord, the only
people..

Communists,--=..that I am aware of are those
amongst the accused, and they will answer for themselves as

to that.

So Mr, Bernstein we have this position then:

that although one of the first reasons you give for the
purchase of Rivonia by the Communist Party was to serve as a.
political hide-out, throughout its whole esistence not a
single Communist, as such, was ever housed therg or ever
used Rivonis as a hideout?--To my knowledge.

In fact, who do we find there? We find No. 1,
who is one of the leaders of the A.N.C; No. 1 Accused?--That
is so0.

We find No. 2 them, another leader of the

AsNsCo===That is correct,
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We find No. 4 there, a nother leader of the
iE.H.ET——TEE sir,

Ve find No, T there, another leader of the
AeNyC?=-=Correct,

Mr, Goldberg -~ what is his political colour?---

My lerd, I know that he was & member of the Congress of
Democrats.

Was it Mhlaba you met over there, or Motsoaledi?
-=-No it was Mhlaba,

Nos, 7. Well then if no Communists were hidden
at Rivonia, we can take it then the second reason applied,

that Rivonia was used to do the work of the Communist Farty,

~-=5ome of the work of the Communist Party certainly.

Well, where else did the Communist Party operate?
-=1 am afraid I don't know that.

Well why do you say 'some of the work! then?---
Well 1 am assuming some, It might be all, but I don't know.

Well, if a party spends £25,000 on a palatial
place like Révonia, and it is so beautifdlly secluded, do

you think it would run the expense of having another head-

quarters, or a sub-headquarters?=-~Not likely my lord, but

it does nat follow that all the work of the Party was in
fact done there.

No, I should imagine that some of the work is

done at the houses of some of the leaders.---That could well be,
It could be,==Yes,
Now I want to put to you some documents. The
first one is Exhibit C,M. no C,0. (page 24). Now Mr.
Bernstein, that is a document issued by the South African

Communist Party, right?---That is so, sir.
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"Worster's Nazi Law can Never Destroy
Communism«" "This message is to you from the South African
Communist Party."--Are you quoting from the document?

Oh I beg your pardon, at page 27. MNow let
us just look at page 24, the first page. You see this

documelt - have you secen it before?--Yes I have my lord,
BY THE COURT: Which document are you referring to now?

L,0,
DR, YUTAR: E# my lord, page. 24.

It deals with 1930 when Swart first brought

in the Suppression of Communism Act, and then the seventh
line "But these laws did not and could not destroy Communism,"
That is a correct statement 7==-Obvicusly, sir. The Commu-
nist Farty was still there,

I just wanted it on record,--Yes.

"No@ Nazi Vorster has brought in a new Folice

State or the so-called Sabotage Act. Again the Nats/they

will put an end to Communism and sabotage. The truth is
that the law will put an end to freedom, but will not put
an end epither to sabotage or to Communism," Is that right?
-—That is right.

Communism was still there?-<Yes.

And so was sabotage?--Yes,

When was this docoment issued?--My lord, I can
only fix a date from the internal evidence, I would have to
read the dncument..

Yes, Well we know when the Sabotage Act was
brought in. We know the Sabotage Act was assented to on
the 27th June 1962.--Yes,

So this is some time after that?--It would

appear to me to be about that time from the wording. I am

not very sure fof that.
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we do know, of course, that acts of sasbotage
had taken place on a fairly large scale up til then7--=That
is correct.

xfik The Communist Party is here ﬂuﬁpnrting it,
not so?=-1 don't koow if that is so, either,

Well, it says here "It will not put an end

cither to sabotage or to Communism,"==Wgll that is a state-
ment of opipion or of fact, whichever you like to put it,
" Why sabotage? Why do people resort to violent

acts like sabotage? They only do so when there is no other
way of expressing their aspiretions for freedom. When

all pecaceful legal methods of obtaining social progress
are suppressed by ©orce and terror, by reactionary ruling
class, 5o Vdirster's Nazilew means more violence, more

sabotage, in South Africa." Is that correct?---You mean,

is that & correct political statement, or is that what is

in the document?

Yes, is it a correct political statement7e=-

My lord, I would say in general it is probably correct.

Let us meke it perfectly clear, then, It sums
up the situation in this way: the Government does not
want to heed any representations made by the African

National Congress or other speakers on behalf of the

National Liberation Movement, they pass the Sabotage Act,
Sabotage had alrcady taken place, and will continue to taks
place?=-=That is so, sirc,

You knew of it,-=You mean that it would continue
to take place?

You knew that acts of sabotage had taken place?

-=Yas I knew that.
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You felt that it would continue to teke place?
==I gtill feel it will conginue to take place.

And you did mt raise your hand in any way to

stop it?--1 did, sir. I raised my hand to stop the suppressio
of legal and legitimate expression by the non-European
people which had led directly to the commission of acts of
sabotage.

_ And when you raised yur hand to stop the sddua-
suppression

4+4en you knew perfectly well, of course, that what you

called suppression would not be stopped?---1 am sorry

could you repeat that.

When you raised your hand to stop the suppression

which led to sabotage, you knew perfectly well that what
you called'suppression'would nt cease?---My lord, I

suspected it would not cease, because I did not think we
were able to force our point of view on the EBUEInmsnt,
but I sincerely attempted to see that it ceased.

And you are not a Pacifist7--No sir I am not,

In fact, being a Communist, you ere a revo=-
lutionary7--Yes, in the sense of wanting a radical change

in society, yes.

And let us face it, the aim of the Communist
Farty is the overthrow of the South African Government7=—-
Yes, that is so.

- If need be, by force and violence?--=My lord,

in certain circumslances yes.

A policy to which you subscribed?--Yes,

A policy which you advocated?7--Well now I am
not sure - if you mean, did I ever advocite the violent

overthrow of the South African Government, no sir,

a5 a leading member or as a leading supporter

of the Commund et Pawd+o e A i
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the Communist Party7--My lord, the ultimate aim of the
Communist Party was the overthrow of the South African
Government, yes.

be

Yes, if needs/by force and violence?==If needs
be by force and vilence.

Is that not the history of the Communist
Party throughout the world, the overthrow of the Povernment
of the day by revolutionary methods?--Yes that is so.

I need only mention Cuba and Algeria.--Yes,
quite correct.

Whose literature we have been enjoined to
read and study int his case7?==Yes that is right.

Now let us take the last line on that first
page "Such a law makes it certain that sabotage and other
forms of violence will increase." Is that right?---Yes.
Quite correct,

And who is it addressed to, this document 7===
I take it to the public my lord.

To the public, Let us take the next page,
Under the heading "Won't stop Communism™ and would you
plase help me there in case I misread because my page
is rather blunt "Laws and threats can never stop the
spread of Communist ideas, nor can they stop the African
Communist carrying on its struggles for the woekers and
oppressed people." is that correct?---The South African
Communist Party carrying on its struggle,

And look at the midle with the three,,---black
dots,

Three black dots yas, "That the Soviet Union

and other Socialist countries are foremast in providing a

better life for the pecple and striving for world peace."
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There referring to the Mother Country of Communism?7--Yes,.

Is that righti==Yes.

Are you rot there indicating that the Communist
Party in South Africa is gaing to join hands with the
African Netional Congress in order to get a better iwhk
life for the people and strive for world peace?---No sir,
I don't read it that way at all. I don't see any reference

to the African National Congress.

"But all the lies of the Nationalists, together
f:;:hcapitnlist press and the Nat. Radio South Africa cannot
hide the fact that the Soviet Union and other Socialist
countiries are foremost in providing a better life for the
people and strie for world peace." Is it not suggesting
that the Communist Party, wherever it exists, takes the
lead in the struggle to relisve oppressed peopleT---No sir,
what it is suggesting & that the Soviet Union is foremost
in the world in attempting to provide a better life for
its people.,

"That Communists everywhere are the most
tireless and courageous fighters for the peoples rights,
for freedom and democracy", Does thet include the
Communists in South Africa as well?--1 think it does, sir,.

Right, "That Communism is the answer to
poverty, exploitation, injwtice, unemployment and capitalist
society, the bright future of all mankind." Does that
apply to the Communists in South Africa?---Certainly,

Right. And just one other line on that page -
you see the second last peragraph "Secondly the Nats,
do hate Lommunists, because they hate every kind of free-
dom, and Communism means the §reatest possible freedom

for the greatest number of people,"--=Yes,

That was the aim and object of the Communist
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Party in this country, to achieve what it called the
‘lihuratinn of the native people in this country7--That is
correct,

Did you not join hands and forces with the
native people in this couniry in order to achiew that
ultimate goal?--My lord, that is a bit of a difficult
question to answer. I don't know quite what it means,
join hands with the native pepple.

Yes, the Communists were going to achieve
the freedom of the native people in this country?-=Yes,

I am suggesting that to do that you have got
to work hand=-in~hand with the native people?---Juite
correct.

That is all I suggested to you. And then you
give a pledge on the last page "we South Africaen Commudists
solemnly pledge that we shall work for the ending of
white domination, and the building of a non-racial
democratic society in its place." That is a solemn pledge?
-=-=That is so.

A pledge which the Communist Party on its own
could not achieve? Could not realise?--~My lord, that is
a matter of opinion. I think that possibly, even on its
own, if there was no other organisation working in this
dirpction , ultimately, even on its own, the Communist
Party would realise this aim,

Ultimately?---Ultimately yes.

With the Communist Party's ma peak members hip
at 2000, do you think that on its sMown could achieve that
ultimate goal?--My lord, [ believe that ultimately even
on its own, it would convince the overwhelming majordaty
of the people that that goal is worth fighting for, and

would by that means achieve that goal.
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For that purpose you had to make propaganda
amongst the non-European section of the populationfe--
That is so.

That is in fact what the Communisty Party didf
-=Yes,

And I want to putit to you bluntly that in fact
the Communist Party incited the non-Europeans in this
country,.,---To what?

To ovethrow the South African Government,
if needs be, by violence,---I don't think that is so my lord.

Well, what is the positionf---It urged the
peocple to struggle against the South African Government,
to bring about its downfall, I don't think that at any
time that I know of they actually incited the pecple to
the violent overthrow of the South African Government,

Isn't that the hallmark of Communists BVETY=
whese, to achieve its ultimate goal by revolution if
necessaryi--If necessary, yes.

Yesl--~'If necessary' is the ¢ important part.

Well Mr. Bernstein, let us just pause there for
a moment, to contemplate the position. The Communist

until
Party had striven f£xmm 1950 as a legal lawful organisation
to achieve that ultimate goasl?--That is so.

And it failed.---That is so.

The African National Congress continued in its
Fighihuntil 1960 when it was banned, and it also failed7—e-
That is correct.

But both organistions continued thereafter,
not so?-<=That is so,.

find was there any appreciable relenting on the
part of the Government to the demands of either the Commu-~

nist Party or the African National Congress 7--No my loxd,
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no appreciable relenting.

None at all. So had we not reached..now I
am going to quote s word in a document I am going to pre-
sent to you just now.. had the National Liberation Movement
not reached what it called an impasse?---1 think it wasl
reaching very close to that position. I still think there
were, and there are even now prospects.

find if these organisations or that movement
reached an impasse without any concessions from the Goven-
me nt, what was the answer thereto?---My lord, it has been
in the position of not receiving any concessions from the
Government ever since the Government was elected, which
was in 1948,

what is the answer thereto?=--The answer thereto
is to maintain your pressure, and keep on pressing for
what you stand for, sir, in the hope that ultimately you
will convince the overwhelming majority of the people
that you are right.

Yes, but the Communis ts tried it, feiled, and
was banned, the African National Congress tried it, failed,
and it was banned - we are now reaching the oitical years
of 1961/2/3, and isit not a fact that the Afro-asian
nations got together and earmarked the year 1963 as the
year of liberation?---That is what they said sir.

fnd we have passed 19635 and there has been
no appreciable concession to the demands of either the
4.N,C. or the South African Communist Party?--That is
correct.

What is the answer to that7--=The mnswer

is to maintain that pressure, and keep up with it,

What about gaing over te & policy of violence?

-=-=-My lord, the question of going over to a policy of
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violence is not because the demands of the Africam National
*Congress or the Communist Party have not been metj bath
these organisations date back over 30 years, and in the
whole of that period 1 think they mn both say that their
demands have not been met, The going over to violence was
not as e result of the fact that their demands had not been
met, but of the fact that no possible weans of expression
their demands were left open to them.

You know, don't you, that in fact theA.N.C.
had changed its policy from one of non-violence to violence?
===Wgll I think my lord I said in chief that they changed
their policy from one of non-violence to one where they
would no longer coddem® people who engaged in violent action,

20 you are not prepared to accept the
position so clearly enunciated in a Communist document
that the A.N.C. had now adopted & new line, it had gone
over to violence, and it was now the duty of the leaders
of the A.N.C. to educate the masses in terms of this new
policy of violence?---My lord, I would not accept tht as a
correct s tatement.

Although I am almost quoting to you wverbatim
from a Communist documentf===My lord, I think Communists
are just as fallible as other people - they also make
mistakes.

So if that appears in a Communist document,
it is mistaken?=-=It is a mistaken i terpretation of policy.
CF THE African National Congress.

Let me just finish this document please,
under the heading "Hit Back" you have got here "Let us
all, Communist and non-Communist alike, unite in a
stern and dedicated fight for freedom"., What exactly is
meant by that, Mr. Bernstein?--My lord, the Communist

Party has used this sort of phraseclogy ever since its
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foundation, It means, just what it says, let us unite,
and dedicate outselves to a struggle, if you like, to ..l
can't think of & better word, to a fight for freedom.

It does not connote necessarily arms or violence. It is a
phrose that was used - for three years in the Treason
Trial we heard this phrase being quoted from every speech
and document produced at that case. The word was used
cver and over again, It did not connote a policy of
violence, and stil doesn't,

BY THE COURT:

There is one difference, though, Mr. Bernstein,
when this document was issued, acts of sabotage were
being done.--Yes.

And everyone knew that the acts wereleing
done under the asuspices of the African National Congress
or of Umkonto,---Yes,

Now how would any reader of this document
understand this? Wouldnt he xrad it as an incitement to
join them in what they are doing?---Well my lord, I don't
read it that way. Vhat it calls for is unity between
Communists and non=-Communists.,

I agree with you that at a time when there
was no violence being done in the country, this would
gimply be the ordinary propaganda, but this propaganda
is made in the light of certain ewnts that were taking
place, and were knownly every reader to be taking place,===
My lord that is so. I am not trying to say that this
doesnot connote that the Communist Party would be pmpared,
under certain circumstances, to use violence. I only
say that that can't be read as an absolute...

Well isn't it an incitement to the readers to

jan in the violence?---1 would not read it that way. I
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would read it as an incitement to the people to join in
the general struggle which is going on, whatever the means
might be.

well the form of the genarasl struggle at that
time was violence.=-=0One of the forms of it, my lord.

wll, the only form of it.---No sir I don't
think that is the correct summary.

well, what other form wes there at that time
in 1962 that anybody knew about?-=<My lord, there was a
great deal of propaganda, of agitation going ong a great
deal of attempts made - this was 1962 was it7 & great
deal of attention being peid for instance to the preparation
of a campaign against passes, and possibly leading up to
the burning of passes, or some such thing., I don't think
that one can say that the only sctivity that was going on
was violence,

CAOSS-BXAMINATION BY DR, YUTAR (CONTINUED):

Fir. Bernstein, let us not quibble with words,
if I may just follow up his lordships'otmrvaetions, Up to
1961 you had tried all methods, pamphlets, strikes, defiance
campaign - that had failed.-~Correct.

By 1962 your main form of attack was viulence.
~—=Your meaning whose'

I memn the Communist Party and the A.N,C,7---
My lord I don't accept that at all. Possibly one of the
forms or methods they were prepared to consent to or
accept as justifiable, but I will not accept that it was
zither the main or the anly method,

And is it not a fact that all these other
suggestions that you have now told his lordship about,
defiance campaigns, burning of passes, were merely acts to

setaflame even more vigourously the spirit of the people
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to fight, by violence if needs be?-~ My lord, I would
put it just the other way around. I would say the acts
of sabotage were an attempt to inspire the people to
carry on theg political strugle. That seems to me..

And might I suggest to you one other difference
-~ in 1962 the AJN,C, had what they termed Freedom Fightﬁrs.
===My lord, I don't know what is implied by that. The
A.N.C. had spoken of their members as Freedom Fighters for
many, many years,

Amadela Kufa.--=Well my lord the pmadela Kufa
date back to 1952.

Yes, with this difference - they were now
being sent to Algeria, Ethippia and elsewhere for military
training.--~5ome few were.

How many7?===Well according to the evidence we
have had there in this case my lord I think a couple of
hundred.

lgn't that an important difference?---They
were few, if you take the overall numbers of the volunteers
of the African National Eongress, that is a very small
part of them.,

And these 300 (I think Suliman said 364)
but take 300, they were to go and come back, snd each one
was to train others.---That is what he said.

And just imagine how that was going to
snowhpll ,~-~Yes that may be so.

That may besol Now let us turn, in the light
of your reply to his lordship, let us turn to the very
next document, Exhibit C,P, (Page 27). Mr. Bernstein,
this is a document it is headed "1950 the Communist Paty

of South Africa, in 1960 African National Congress wvho

will they ban next."--=That is right,
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And then the second part of it "The
‘Communists cell for Action. " MNow both these documents are
issued by the South African Communist Party. Mr, Bernstein,
1 :nntt of course read all, and I am not going to read all.
I am ;nly going to read certain lines. You are at liberty
to take these with you, to study, in case I leave out any-
thing you want to add,---=Yes sir.
BY THE CLURT { to Dr. Yutar)

Have we any date for this documentf==-=No my
lord I was going to ask for that.

There is no date in the evidence?=--=No, no
date in the evidence.

CROSS~EXAMINATION BY DR, YUTAR (CONTINUED)

Now Mr, Bernstein..

BY THE COURT: During 1960 or aftee 1960, WITNESS; During

or after my lord, I am not sure when,

DR, YUTAR (CONTINEUD):

Well it is obvious, not so, Mr., Bernstein,
that it is sometime during or &fter 19607---That is so.

Now just a comment I want to make about the
second paragraph "They live on lies." Have you got that?
Third paragraph?--Yes.

Just a comment I want to meke: did the

Communist Party also not,.did the Communist Party £ not
liugmpn lies?--No sir,

No7=-No.

Iz there no Communist document which has not
falsely represented the position to the peoplef-==My lord,
there might be misstatements of fact in Communist documents
here and there. In general I do not believe that the
Communist Party have ever misrepresented the position in

this country to the people.
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I want to put it to you Mr. Bernstein, that
not only the Communist Farty has falsely represented the
;usitiun to the people, but that you yourself, personally,
whether as a member of the Communist Farty or not, but you
yourself have disseminated false propaganda ubruaq&huut
conditions in this country,---My lord, I will deny that, I
admit that I may be fallible. I might have on occcasion
made a mistake on facts, it is possible.

I will come to your own document presently.
Now we come to the next paragraph "The ¥wxh Truth About
Lommunists." Have you got that7--=Yes.

I want to read the sixth line.--Yes.

"For 30 yers the former Communist FParty of
south Africa stood in the front ranks of the struggle for
equality and human ranks. It wes dissolved. Most of its
members carried on wiith the struggle for the interests ad
needs of the people as they had always done." Is it not
a fect that the Communists carried on the struggle in
Trade Unions7---%ell, as members of Trade Unions, yves they
did.

And likewise in the A.N.,C7=-=--Those who were
meters of the ALN.C. yes.

And likewise in all other similar organisations
that constituted this Wational Liberation Front or Mocvement?
==Yes sir that is correct.

Now look at the last paragraph - jusgt read it
to yourself. "wWe Communists pledfe ourselves to work
loyally and courageously with democratic Youth Africans of
all political views to destroy racialism and colour bars,
Let us unite in the great fight for freedom and democracy
to whieh win for every single person in our land" and then

follows what I might term the Communists Manifesto, Mr,
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Bernstein have you read that?--<Yes 1 have read it.

Is it not a fact that here the Communists
indicate wuite clearly that they are joining hands with
the non-Europeans in this country?---European add non-
European sir - all democratic Touth Africans.

Fartnership - partners in the struggle?--Yes.

And at a time when violence had been raging

and ravaging this country for a period of over a year.

BY THE COURT: One does not know whether it had started

when this document was issued. DR, YUTAR: Oh I am so SOITY.
Frdably not.---Yes.
WITNESS: It is the sane phraseology my lord, a standard

phraseclogyl

CROSS-EXAMIMATON _BY DR. YUTAR (CONTINUBD):

But now you are uniting hands to achieve the
following: the right to vote for and share in the Govern-
menti=-=That is se.

Communist aims and objects?===Yes sir,

find likewise the others,'equal rights and
opportunity, enough wages, a life of ? peace and freedom,!
~-=Lorrect sir.

Now the next page, "The Communist call for
action: organise, unite and mobilise." Now can you tell
his lordship when more or less this was issued?=-=My lord,

only if I read the document and there is something in it,.

-y

BY THE CCURT:

This is not the same document?]

DR, YUTAR: 1t was found like that, my lord, and they have

both been numbered C.P.

BY COURT: Well it should be numbered C.P, 1 and C,P,2.

—-=-As your lordship pleases, But we found it like that,
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CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DR, YUTAR (CONTINUED]) 2

Now"the Bantu Law fmendment Bill which they

state will improve race relations in this country" - whik
date is that bill?---1 am afraid I can't answer that, mylord.
I don't know.

Isn't that the 1963 one?
BY TH LHT = {to Ur. Yutar)

Wwell it came before Parliameni lat year, but it
was not passed. ---That is so my lord.
DR, YUTAR (to the witness)

The Hantu Law aAmendment Bill -isn't that the
one which was before Parlisment last year, which was debated,
and then posiponed until this year, and it was in fact
before the Parliament this year7--My lord it might well be
so. 1 really can't say with certainty.

Yes alright - we will fix on a date later, You
go and think about it, and I would like to read to you just
some lines. You see "What do we do in this Situation?"---
Yes,

Have you got that7---Yes.

"To be silent is to say that we accept this
monster law. In the best traditions of the fighting spirit
of our furefathers, and our great African leaders and
martyrs of the past, we must Tight back as we have never
fought anything in our lives." Well, did the forefathers
of the-non-Eurcpeans of this country fight by way of
sit-down strikes, defiance campaigns, burning of passes,
or did they engage in warfare?---My lord, somc of them en-
gaged in warfare, and some of them engaged in constitutional
action, petitions to the King of England, and all sorts
of things.

and what do you think the Communist Party

rofarrina tn hernPee-Myv lord T must point out this °
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savs on the bottom "Issued by the I & D Committee of #e
South African Communist Marty." If I remember the evidence
it was indicated that another document I think with this
inscription on it came from Durban.

Yes.--] have never seen this document before.

What does D & D stand for7---1 toke it Durban
and District.

That is right., Uf the Communist Party. And
look what it goes on to say "As it is to be alive in
South nfrica is so little, when this bill becomes law
life for the Africen masses will be worthless. We must
do or die in the effort to fight this bill. It is better
to die fighting than to be disciplined.."--Than to submit,

"than to submit to this dastardly act on ow

knees." Is this document not inciting the people to "Do or
Dig7"=-=My lord it says so, but if you look at "Our Tasks"
which are presumably the tasks of dang and dying, I think
it is set out there quite c learly what the tasks are.

Yes = let us look wat 'our tazks! are, wAre
you a member of the Congress? 1If you are, then get youo
unit to maobilise the people in your area, your fTactories.
Explain the changes of the Bill." Member of Congress - what
Congress is that referring to%--1 would think the African
fatiornal Congress.

Good, MNuw we come to the second task. "Are
you mambers of a Trade Union"? "or an area resident organi-
sation." There tooc the LCommunist Party is now seeking to
act firstly throuwgh the African MNational Congress, and now
through the Trade Union.-=Yes.

"Attend all meetings on this subject and
VCIiCcE YOUr OpinioN.... in the bill" ] am not quarrelling

with that, but look st Mo. 4 now "In the rural areas do

what your brothers and sisters are doing in the towns and



- 101 - ACCUSED No. 6.

the epities - organise, mobilise, be prepared. Be ready

for any call for action your leaders and organisatian wmay

call upon you to take." And then it goes on "beready for
sisters

the battle." What were your brothers and ed$ies doing in

the towns and the cities in 1961, 1962 and 1963 Mr. Bernstein?

-=-=My lord, as I read this leaflet, that clearly refers

to these 1, 2 and 3 above, what they were doing, they

were organis ing the people in their areas or factories,

cxplaining the danger of the bill 'get the people mobilised,

altend meetings, voice your opigionsB - this is what,

presumably, brothers and sisters in the town ars doing,

ancd this is what it is suggested should be done.

"And be ready for any call for action your
leaders and organisation may call upon you to take."--=\lell,
that is perfectly clear.

Cf course it is. 1Is it not inferring to the
armed struggle ahead?---%Well, if the leaders and organisa-
tions called upon them, possibly it did.

And then follow the words "Be ready for the
battle", Which battle? Mt the battle of words, Mr,Bernsteinl
==1 think the battle against the Bantu Laws Amendmaﬁt Bill.

Just against that, and rothing more?---My lord,
this is how 1] read the leaflet. I think this is political
language - it might be over-dramstic, rhetorical, I don't
know what, but this is political language - all parties use
it., 77

And this is addressed to7--To the public, asz far
as I can make out.

And if the African National Congress members
were to interpret it the way I am suggesting to youT==1I

think they would be misinterpreting it. That is my view.

There is not a single word in these two docu-
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mentes te ey now "be roady for the battle, Tigni for

Froratiay, sut please wviic viodehcopei"---No =ir.

AT THIG STAGE THE CCURT ADJOGURNS UNTIL 2. pam,

CRGSE=EXARTNATIUN BY 0fi, YUTAR (CONTINEED):

o ——— ——

For, SJernotedn, wo nave findohedsbdhiixnibits L0 ancg

£y T want te ke veu on to o new Exhibit 00, (Your lord-

s

siidip hos i goi it in that volume, but I hand in L, whnich

ia ®ir itentical rcopy. Kow there is no date to that, Hr,
Borngteini=--That is =so,
dut ¢hn Exbibit wihieh I have given to his

Jurdship C.ie has ar envaelopc allfiached teo it, a Reversnd
it
Crawford, of Lsipetown, whe said he had received/through

the post, and the poodaark there dis the lst August, 19017
-==Yoo.

o owe can sey thet it was printed gome timejust
bafore ithon. Fow L went to put w you that this
ccounant Tully supporis slmost evervihing thal I put to
yuu «lids murning. I cen just perbhaps put it to wu, very
LrieTly, anc agein I om only going to read some of the

dinoi.  You will sco Vin svery sirugole of the people agains-

Tueiald wiscrimination, poverxty and oppresasion, the

Lommunict - asity Towoht in the fronmt ranks."-<Yes, I cez tioos,

& " 1 " ‘_.‘ u ]
ew the noxt line “"Tho ATrvican prople will

noves: forget the Communist rafty.M and thuen thoy go on
to roefte wiut che Comaunist Party did for the African

pecple, and wenltions names like rarx and yocs on

"Coeseleossly the Qummunist Party works to rouse the piunlo

o unite, to bLuild the Avrican National Congress' and

B Wi
O LN === 3

=

- F=l
a0 ]

low Lihere is o document issued by the Souil

i

Africen Communint Fozly -« wn gdindssion that Llhov were not
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only in the forefront of the fight, they wers building up
the African National Congressi--That is quite correct.

Not only the African Mational Congress, the
next paragaph deals with the Indian people?--Yes.

",.of this country cannot forget how the
inspiration,..(gquotes)..but aso the coloured pecple krow
the role the Cummunits have played in fightinh against
apartheid and bad conditions,"---That is correct.

And the very next paragraph deals with trade
unions. The second last line before "The sworn enemy of
nationalism"==Yeos,

Is it not & fact, then, that the Comnmunist
Party, banned in 1950, small in numbers, propapted its
aims and objects by building up the African National
Congress, the Undian Congress, the Coloured Peoples Congress,
and the Trade Unions7---My lord that is correct, not just
aTter the Communist l'arty was banned in 1950 but throughout
its exEtence it advocated the building of these organisations
ana attempted In every way to assist and strengthen them.

And I want to suggest that not only did you
«+did the Communist l‘arty build up the orgenisations, but
@lso invited the members o f these organisations to become
members of the Communist Party?=-=That is correct.

Sa that one day when the African Natioml
Congress takes over, in effedt the Scouth African
Communist Farty will be able to dominate the scenc?=--That
depends on whether the members of the Communist Party at that
time are in a majority position in the African National
Congress which nobody can sey with any certainty.

And now to explain the change in the pame -

the Communist Party was formerly known as the Communist

Party of South Africa, it is now known as the Scuth African
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Communist Party, and that appears in the second last
pgragraph.—--?cs.

The very last paragresph on that page "And
all Sputh Africa knows that shoulder to shoulder with non-
Communist democrats and fighters for freedom the
Communists have continued to play glorious parts in every
great movement of the masses ageinst the hated nationalist
rogime, " Agadin I say to you the Communist Party were
partneors, was a partner with the others, in this struggle
to relieve the oppgressed people from their oppressionf---
My lord that is correct, unless this word '"partner' means
there was somc mzx sort of written agreement or,.?

No, no.--=0r continuous join# meetings or
suie thing, in which case I would not accept it.

No, but 4#khe they worked..--They worked in
the same direction and in co-operation.,

They did have Joint Executives, the National
Liberation Movement,--The Congresses had Joint Executives.

And now let us look over the page, and see
how you are going to fight. "The African Revolution which
is sweeping through our Continent has won one victory
after another until independence has been won everywhere
except in a few pockets of imperialism such as the Porty-
geuse colonies, and the vicious white colonialsim practised
in this country and the Rhodesias.” The African Revolution

- that“was not a peaceful one, was it?--My lord, in parts

it was. I would say probably in the major part it was
peaceful. If one has regard to countries like Ghana,
Nigeria, the Sudan, it was certainly peaceful. In regard
to countries like Algeria not so.

The Congo?-=-The Congo I think was peaceful
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until the transfer of power io the Congolese Government.
vhat disturbance therc was touok place after the winning of
independence in the Congo.

And nowwego on "People do not get freedom served
up on a plate. They lave to fight for it. Sometimes they
even have to fight with arms in their hands, as is now being
done by the patriots of Algeria and nngula.“*-wThEt.is
correct.

Iz that not an incitement to arms?---No I don't
read it th at way. I think it is a plain statement of fact.

You see Mr, Bernstein by August 1961 Rivonia
had ;lready been bought by the Communist Party.--Yes.

By August 1961 talks had already taken place
for ihe formotion of M,K7 Sisulu said so.---1 am not quite
clcar on what the ovidence is.

Gisulu said that after the stay-at-home strike
on the 20th, 29th and 30th May..31st fay, 1961, there was
a demand to the bovernment to call a national convention
and it was ignored, then began taolks to resort to violence.
-==Nubject to correction, I FEUE just tried to recall the
evidence, I think whaot Sisulu seid was that at this period

the prosecutor is talking about, the African Notional

Longress revised its view to this preaching of positive now
violence. Then I think, if I roomber correctly, he said

that discussions to bring Umkontc into being as an organi-

sation were October/November 1961,

In Uctober already acts of viclence werc taking
place.,~-=Yes but they are not admitted to be acts of
Unkonto.

I understand that - you remember a quotation
from Mandela's speech to the Pafmccsa Conference?--Yes,

acts were certainly taking place.
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s Lhen the last paragraph "Build up everyone,
s groareronnd  frican Catispal Congross and othor Lrguni-
v de
pooienr e Tiohl Tor froodos,  wupport your owtsh african
cammends b orty tiw veice of the aoppressed... outh Africa."
_"'_"f i

vive i nolein, you cdited "Fighting Talk®
P .u - i - ] i - . ' =
ciim T o yoeut==a1 think § have exploined, siz, 1 wac one, ..
You werss un lhe pditorial bosrd, ! am sorry,
bowan ol trying te coateh you, You were on the ecditurial
boare in “opimboer 2& JUGLY==Yos uwir 1 was.

flright - bere isg oar ariicle, and 1 am reoding

Trom pxhibit b 150, "Uighiing Talk" wotod Lseplenber 1961,

covng aboel the sropericd we oro tolking abocut in the
prerhlet 1 bh=ve dost depld wilha There is an exticle
there "Theoo Donte Homelorgs" =Th: Srave of parthzid,

gsoys o olter Cdsuolu® - thol is accused No, 2, Have you

roat tnnt artiocleTe-=iy lozd I alacsi ceXtainly road it
- & [T 5 [ 1] - . : . e " -
it AT Lyinsz 2t cafep Al il e '...url'L J et eesll 3% now A Wy

vanit o nuestion oo sbouwt dL,
it Tomdiliar w oyou, the hraodngi==—is |
soy 1 musl hae read it at that time,

1 will just read the last paragraph, which 1
have taken the liberiy tu mark with red, part of it in
bold typing, (handed to thz witness). Have you read that?
~=Yuz sir 1 havercad it.

B “lay 1 trouble you for it% oo you agree with
itt=—-fs an accurale prediction , yes 1 think it is proubably
accurate.

"Cponer or later the country will be faced
with Jeerust and Pondoland on a large s=ale." What happened

al 7eeruvetfe-</1 Iverust there was a struggle between the

supperters of bantu suthorities 1 think and the opponents
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of bantu puthorities, which led to fairly widespread dis-

turbances.,

‘ dlovdshed f===Hloodshed, yes.
i‘nndolandy--Fondoland, a similar sort of

gituation,

Here accused No. 2. is now telliag the maders
uf "Fighting Talk"™ THAT SUONER LK LATER the country will be
Faced with feerust and Fondoland on a large scale = what are
they referring to%--My lord I think it is perfectly clear -
they ore saying that as things are going inthis country,
seoner or later large scale disturbances are going to take
place, of the characler of Zeerust end Fondoland,

"The Afrimn pepple cannot be expected to abandon
Lheir legitimate political struggle because the Lovernment
is przpating fur civil war., his is an issue which must
cuncern everyene" and shortly after this sahbtage started
in this couniry.=-==Thuat iz correct,

Let me now refer to an article written by

yourself, also in “Fighting Talk" pApril 1962 Cxhibit H,131.

Unfortunatdy it is the only copy we hae got, and it is
headed "Going down in Hloud - #r. Fouche's Invasion Myth®
By L. U rnstein. That is yourselfi--~That is myself,

(Fage T my lord), "Going down = in blood,"
‘ven yuu  have sufficiently refreshed your memory, I would
like you to lei we know, please, Jo you remember the
arti:lE?-—I romember it yes,

-hat did you mean by the heading "Going down -
in blood",  ===My lord, I an not certaim that the heauing
was mine - &s I say, 1 am not the editor of the magazine.
It seems tu me that the heading cculd have cne of two
possible meenings, before the heading there is r eference

to the critical stage that has been reached in the fillgerian

are It might have rofersnce to that, It might suggest



that what is happening is that France's attempt 1o hold
ndyerie is going down in Dlood, Jt is possible that it wight
have reference to the .outh sfrican "arlisment which at this
time, and the subject with which this article is concerned,
decided to place ‘euth sfrica virtwally un o wer fuoting,
and it might have refeorence tec that 2s o preparation to
vafonding their pusition by violent means, and going duwn
in bluod,

] somewhat assisted you in reading this article
by marking the passages in red = you see whet 1 am going
w draw stivntiun Lo e==~ ¢ll, you assisled yourself, sir,
I would have markeo different passages.

1 am guing to let you have this article, so
that ywu cen drow sittention to others. In the first place
in il ot o fact that you are herec gusting The minicter
ot irfence, fr, Fouche, who cpoke gbout military action
againcst the liepublic being oponly advocated and secretly
planned = and in effect you were telling your readers
that bhe is just telling a tissue of lesi==] think that is
appruximately so.

shd you go on tc say " wo are not expoedted to
take it seriously - it is not even presented in s manoer
whibh makes it credible".--That is so.

In point of facl sabotage was taking place
un an ever=increasing scale by ipril 1562%--=bUut the
rufnru;;u thare is tu an pomed invasion by African '.tates,

Yes, that is right 'military action against
ihe iepublic being upenly advocsted and secretly planned,!
¢ ge on: then you complain sbout a Kr. feorge 9
of the United Cforty rushing toe promise the Government full

ce=uperation in combating Fifth Loluwn activities, putting

(]
willd 1y
F- .
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seemovement, and helping Lo put sobuteurs in cuncefntration
sgpse” You are there atiacking the Uniteo : arty for
supporting the Govermnment in order to enable the Enuarngﬁgh
to put saboteurs in concentration canps? =-<That is perhaps
an over-simplification sr - 1 am attacking them forx
suppourting the Government in & plan to place bouth iAfrica
virtually on war fouling,

In point uf fact acts of sabotsge were taking
place in huuthlﬁfricu ot thail time own an ever increasing
scale===They woro,

su when youu telk about s aboteours you knew
what you were talking abouti==Yes.

Then on page U this is  what you soy there:
oh yes, you tirst refer to the Governeent's slaughter of
wharpeville, That is your point of viewi=-=1 think that is
the only possible puint of wview,

You have not read the inguest proceedingsf=-
Mo I have read summarised digests of it,

You have nut read the official inguest pro-
ceedingst=<ho 1 have not.

"ity = because then you might have changed
yuwr view and not have called it "The Government ' laughter
uf Lharpoville", Dut be that as it may, we pass on: this
iz what 1 want tu draw yuur attention to: "Dut for such s
claim il is now too lov, They know vat they arc starting,

They know that alrcady before this decisive woek of Mar ch
the non-white people have made a stort towards creating
their own armed force to bsck their claims with viclence,
They knuw thot already herc, as in Algeria, and in /ingola
sesefquotes) must expoct to be challenged with the rifle,

They know that there aro only two slternatives befure South
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africe tuoday, to talk cut & peaceful settloment, or to

Sohoot it ocut to Lthe death." That is vhat vou wrole in

spril 1962, Mr, Hernstein.---Frocisely the type of thing that
counsel quoted as having been written by me in 196U as well.

TYes bul you are repeating it in 1962%---

That is so,.

You might have been a profhet in 1960, but now
you are telling them bluntly a fect in 15627--=That is sc,

That is the imposse that has been reached -

the  fLovermment refuse to tslk it out round the table, &and
Nuw there is unly onc alternative, and that is to shoot ii
vut to the desthe--=-1 don' think i implies that this is now
& Finighed issue., The two alternatives were still upan in
1262 = they are in wy view still open in 1964,

nlthough you hove bad the answer of the Sgyprs-
Rt fa=fen,

fmd you conclude this article with a quotation
Trow the Pand Dodily #Mail, and you end withthe words "1t is
timc for deeds, not tears,"---That is richt,

vhot decds did you hove in mind¥=--lecds of
oppositivn to the Governwent who were taking thic incorzect
policy.

I wont to put it to you that the alternative
which cxisted today, cxisted in april 1962. You know perfoct-
1y well that the Povernment wos not preparsd to sit mund
the toble with the Communist PFarty or the Africen hational
Longress or the Indian Congress or the Coloured Peeple s
Longress to talk it ocut.-=-That is sc,

Then the only alternative is in yow own words
to shoot it out toc the dosthfe—m- Yes there were two
alternatives,

wagn 't #wut the alternstive that hag already boo:
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tu be applied in thisz couniry, first by sabotagef--Yes I
Lthink it was.

iwnd secondly by guerilla warfarc?--1 think
thot is the position.

fnd now let us just torn to some of the
livonia Lxhibits which we found, and I can desl with it very
briefly. The first one is Exhibit 20 - my lord, if Imy
crave yuur inculgence - 1 forgut tou put this. “hut was
your cunnection with The Wew nge¥--=Nothing, except that I
g4 vccasicnally wrute articles,

anc you read itY---iand [ read it yes.

Let wme just shew you Exhibit 1,135, that ia the

Morthern cdition, dated ZEth Uecember 1961, “‘hat is meant
by the Forthemn Editioni-=liy lord this paper was published
in Lape Town, and they produced aSouthern Edition for the
Lipe I'rovince and a borthern Cdition - I doen®t know how
different they were, I really could not say.

Fow the two things I want you to look at -
on the very fronl page is Umkonto UeSizee. You remember
the epvidence of Lieutenant van wyk that s poster, Exhidit
iﬂ? wis pastd on te the walls and they tried to take it
dowy they could nut but they took a photograph of it7---
Yes sir I remomber,

Is that & photograph of it7--This appears to
be o photoygreph of the game poster that he is referring to,

fnd it gives scme details by way of subscription,
—--fre you talking about ithe caption to the picture?

That is right.---No sir the capiion anly says
that thic iz a poster which wes pasted on Jehannesburg
winlla,

few urn to page 5 pleasec - the right hand

column - it is a photograph of accused No, 17==-=That's S50,
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and it is headedi--1t is headed "Underground

Leadeors”

There is a very short subscription, and it
riads, s f==="lplson Mendela, main speaker at the Haritzburg
Conference, secretary of the National Action Council which
launchod the May 24%th strike, now leading the freedom
struggle from underground,”

You read that at the time¥==1 think I must have.

snd what did you think it meant V===ly lord, if
1 did read it, 1 think it meant exactly what it says.

and remember that Umkonto we Yizwe blazed a
noew tmil during the weekend 153th to 17th Decembor 196)%---
That is correct.

You had no doubt ot all about the new policy
of violence in the country.---1 am not sure what you mean
by that,

You had no doubt &t all in your own wind of
ths new policy of vivlence that had overtaken south Africa,?
-==You mean that there was such a thing?

Yes.==Mo ] knew about it.

All designed to ovathrow the “overnment even-
Wwallyi=--=Yes,

Wow Lxhibit it,20 (wour lordship will find it
ot page 235%). You will find there "X Comrade" and there is
a Lhinese name given "menber of the Central Committec of thao
EDMMuHiEt.Pﬂrty of Lhina says:" (and I only read the first
four lines ) "wWe Communist Party members are the most ad
vanced revolutionaries in modern histery, and are the
contemporary fighting and driving force inc hanging scciety
enil the world."” That is 2 correet statement cf Communistic
philosophy® (i age 260 my lord, the last paragraph).——-1

think so sir, yes,
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‘nd 1t opplics to Touth African Communists as
Witllt==Yes 1 think so.

I will turn to page 262, ond it may be difficult
e Tind it - 1 will read it ot, "The aim of studying
Viarxiet phibgsephy is to enable us to direct more cffectively
revoluticnary mass struggles. To put it in a nutshell,

‘iprxiem is 2 guide to action,"---Abgolutely correct dr.

ihd you ore & Tollower and disciple of Marx7=—-
That is right, ”

263, the swcond paragraphs "The pamphlet compiled
by the south nfrican Communist 'erty to mark the fortieth
gnniversary of the Lommunist Farty of Sowuth ifrica, which
preceecds the Louth nfricen lommunist Party, and which
was declersd illegsl in 1950, correctly pointc ocut that in
spite of nll the formidoble difficulties that faced it,
the Communist ‘arty of fcuth Africa has in existence brought
sbout profound changed in the thinking end political outlook
of the oppressed peuple of South Africa."---That is also
correct.

Oy the way, the pawphlet thare refaerred to is
this the ong, this gmell little boukleti--]1 don't know sir.
i think wy lord it must be referring to this [xhibjit Ci
which gtarts off, the first line of which says "It is 40
VEartdess "

I rafors either to Ch or Cf, Is that & corect
ututnmﬁgk whot | hove just read out (quotes sbove dperagraph
again).=-=1 think that iso true sir,

snd one of the profound changes mentioned in
pxhibits UM pnd CU is '‘youcen't expect freedom on a plate,
It may be necessary to take up arma in achieving it7Ye==iligll

my lord, I am not sure if that is one of the profound changes.
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1 ihink that has slways broen part of the philosophy of the
frtiona) Liberation Movesdgt. ] don't think hat is one of
Lhe changns referrod to,

dut it is & vitel change, isn't it - from non-
vigclence tu viclenceY---That is not guite the same thing sir,
EIT| don't think 1 would say that that is what it refers to
gither. hot the change from non-vicloce to viclence,

This iz noti==1 don't think so.

rlright, we wen't argque,  Now tu;n tc page 205,

Thi: wery botiom, "The life of a Lomaunist revolutionary
i, no bed uf roses. 1t consists of sericus studies in
harxist litersture, of hard work and of constant partici-
raticn in numercus ano enddecs mass struggles," and it goes
it to gae further details, and 1 read the last fur lines
on page 26€C "In South ofries 4 Communist fortiy scober must
take part in mass struggles initiatad by the ‘outh African
Lowmmunisl i'arty, tho Cungress rgvemnont or by otheor political
budivg within the liberation movement," Do you hcar that’
~=Yoes gir I did,

“Injtinted by the “outh ffrican Communist Tarty.®
~=Tey thot is right,

fid the Communist Party dinitiate this new
policy of vidlonce9--MHo sir, T don't think it dJdid,

Lhe didi===:i0ll we have heord the evidence given
nere as to how it cone Lo be adopted, sir,

h wall the evidence of Bruno was thet he was a
atmibar of the hational..the Natal fegiunal Commaond, and they
corried on planned acts of sabotage on the instructions of
the kational High Command at Rivenia.---Yes | hoard that,

Lorrect, or nut¥%-=1 have no idea =zir, 7 moe=.

Ccun anly say I hrard the pvidence,
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fage 200 my lord, "In spite of this victorious
advance, the Cowmunist movement still feces powerful enemies
which must be completely erushed and wiped ocut from the
face of tho earth before & Communist world cam be r ealised.
Jithout a hard, bitter and long struggle against capitaliom
and epxploitation, there caon be no Communist wurfgu I1s tha
a correct stadoment of Moarxist philospphy7==Yes,

does that not envisege then in this country
that if the Government does not capitulate, it will be com=-
pletely crushed and wiped vut from the face of the earth?
==y lord, I don't understand it as referring to a Government,
It is referring to social institutions, capitalism, presum-
ably National oppression,

1t says here "Dut in spite of this victorifus
advance, the Communist movement still faces power ful encemieg"
tho are the powerful cnemies of Communismf---1 would say the
upholders of capitalism, nativnel diserimination,

The MNotionalist Governmenti?=-=1t would be included
in that yes,

ind the policy of the Communist Party is to
completely crush it and wipe it out.-—-well, if you are
talking about crushing, sir, I don't understand it that way .

I think it means to crush the institutions which it is
talking about, which is as I say, in my view, white supremacy,
capitalism, to be complotely crushed.

Wo you think you are gdang to crush out the
puwerful encinies of Communism by holding sit-down strikes, or
burning passes, defiance campdoigns? —--It is a possibility,

It is more likely to be crushed and wiped out
by scis of sabotage and guerills warfarefe-=tell sir, that

depends cntirely on the Government,
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s Af Lhat is not cnough, it cuuld be come
rloetely crushed and wiped wut by armed intervention by
fureign countriegf===-_0211, that is @ possibility which I
nersonally du nfcl helieve is feesible, but it is & possi-
wility,

Dul it is = pousuibility within the terms of
Aprxist philosoonyy=-=iy lord darxist ghiloscphy, generally
spuaking, has tsught for wmany many years thet you can't
dinport rovolution Ey foree «f armg from abroad. It is a
vundemen Lol prueposition which was stated at the time of the
vuzsion devolution by bening and it has been upheld ever
vince, that revoluiion iu not exportable by force of orm,s

Cemmunism, throughout the hitory of the world
van nul cruzshed znd wiped cut what it calls its znomies
dy military eetionie--Yoo, wir, but not by & fureign invasion
wolich iz the poeint 1 wmoke, dy wilitary action, inaide the
cuuntoy, veo,

nided and woetied by militery ossistanca from
withouti==Yes pussibly,

Let me repo frum page 269, Just tws short
paragraphs “wvery Loosaunist ariy wsember aust pussess the
Jiwvaleslt cuurage ane revulutionary determinaticn and must
ve prepared to put hic part and carry out all political
tasks without fear or hesitation," Highty=--1 {ihink eoc sir.

[he Cowmunist jaxty hes = code of visciplinge===
Ihat i;IEUIIEEL.

e which every muiber is bound, hand and foot,
-==13 which uvery mombaer is buund = | am rot sure of the
@ocaning of that,

ang he is required to carry cutl his instructions

mithous okt guoe 100 o eemily lord he is required

vut decisions of @ higher urgenisation of the rarty,



- 117 = ACCUSED NC. 6.

belt CUL, entitlad at all times to ask questions, but nevertheless
e is oxpected ito carry out the decision,

‘ and he is required..and he must possess the
grrotest courage and rovolutionary determinationie==]
think t hat is so.

~hich is not nccessary to distribute pamphibts?
—==toll if distributing pamphlets can sarn you a five year
gavl sentence, it is very recessary.

"In Tighting tu chenge the world, we must
gtart from the very people in close contact with us. ‘o
must thorcughly study out own situatien and probloms,
uncerstand thon complotely and work out appropriate
solutiong, "--That is correct,

That is corzect?~-Yes air.

Have the Communit Party not studied the situation
in this country?--1t has baen studying it ever since irits
inception,

Had it nct come to the conclusion that this
granite Government of outh Africa ¥ cannot be moved one
inch7==Na sir.

It has not come to that¥=-MNo,

~ell it has beern referred to in those terms,
the Bovermment has.---1'cllX, 1 don't think you will find
that Zn Communist Perty decuments generally . There might
be one as | suy which is,.

-y A mistake?---/ mistake, but generally spcaking
I don't think they will agccept that eny Government is com-
pleotely immovable, not even the South pAfrican Governmont,
fiight, the last quotation from this document,
tn page 27C:  "To sacrifice one's personsl interests, and
evenona 's 1ife wkhuut the slightest hesitation for the couse

Gf the Verty is the highest manifestotion of Communist ethicgd
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-=Yos I think that is correct,
) o whatever 1 have read from this document you
have subscribzd (eT===Yusg,

ing these extracts, and there are more, wer e
compiled by sccused No. 1, Part Une on"How tc be a Guod
Cemmunist,¥===That may be =0 sir. Ky lord, I only loocked
ut ihe first emnc in the originel, and althcuch it is com-
pilea by sccuseg No, 1 it is a dirpct quotation from one of
thu people who is recognised te be a leading theoritician (7)
uf the Harxist Movement,

Bocauos: I understood you cearlier this meorning
to suggesti that it was nut o very guod occout vof how to be
a good Communisi,---"rll, therc arc parts which are certainly
ntt a goow account, in my view,

Fow let us turn very brieofly to one extract

from the following txhibit, #,21, (Page 2B4). Now

I want to read this paragraph by paragraph. "the policy

of the Naotionalist Government whiech foreibly suppresses

the peaceful struggle of the people, has created new

conditions under which non-violent and peaceful methods of

struggle have become inadequate to adfoance the strugale of the

pecple and to defend their rights. Under these newm con

gitions it is ecasy to understand why the mazses of thepeople

arc scarching fur & new formuls of peliticalstruggle to

ﬂnuhlq them tu hit back effectively and halt the vidlent

ano reaciionery policies of the Government. vhilet in the

rast it wns correct to preach nen-violence, under present

conditions it is not correct tc go on stressing it as if
inherontly

nuthing had changed. Therc ic nothing sacred or/superior

about non-violent methods of struggle. %o long as they are

rTfective weapons to fight for freedem and democracy, they

met be employed fully, but it would be wrong to persist with
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them mechanically when conditions demand modifications."
Now that is Trom a Communistic document dealing with the
Communistic doctrine. 1t is Fart 2 of How to be / good
Communigt,-==.ell as a stotement, 1 agree with it.

You have always subscribed to iti=des 1 thirk
60 sir,

Fersonally, and because of your association
in whatever form with the Cowmunist FPartyf===That is so.

Is it not here cpenly advocating violencegfe==
Mo sir,.

No7==ko, 1 don't think so. 1 think it is saying,
thure comes a time, conditions change, when it is not longer
correct to stick exclusively to non-violent methods when
violent methods become correct and justifiable, Thate as I
pnderstood it when you read it.

Has that fime noct arrived?=--0Oh yes I think
that time had arrived.

In 1%61%~--vell round about that period,yes,.

Hoond about the time when the Communist Party
agreed to spend /23,000 on ithe purchase of Rivoniat==Yes,
round agbout that time, lthink that is correct,

how ihen there is a reference over here, in
the middle of the page "This is what teppened for instance in
hlbania, Bulgakia, China, Czechoslavakia, East Germany,
Hungary, North Korea, Eumania, Hussis and MNeth Vietnam.
la it ah}aut that changes were effected in theose countries
by revelutionary methodsi—--Fy lord, yes, that is a fact,
but the methods I think = 1 am just trying te think over
these vericus countries, seem to me to be very vastly differ-
znt from one country to another. 1 don't think one can

luap them all together like that,

"In all these countries" the author goes on to
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say herc "The cepitslist system wes overthrown, and
replaced by socialism"e--1f that is what the lumpting togot-
her means, it is perfectly correct,

"In our cwn country capitalism cannot and will
net last indefinitely. The peofle of South Africa, led by
the Ywuth african Communist Farty will destroy capitalist
cociecty and build in its pace socialism where there will be
no exploitation of wman by man.® itr, Sernatein, don't £
you thirnk ii wss rather prssumptioos of the Louth African
Communist i arty to say that tha people of Tputh Africa,
led by the Scuth Africen Communist Party?---Hy lord, they
arc speeking about lhe destruction of capitalism and the
ouilding of socialism, 1t does not suggest it is going to
nappen this vesr, or even within thz framework of what I
would call the immediate programme of the Farty . It ins
cealing with a long=-terw project, and itsays that when
socialism is qoing toc be built in thiz country, it will
be built under the leadership of the Communis t Ferty, I
inink it is probably & correct statement, but that is a
0it cof historical predicticon which might turn out to be
WIONg .

ut you know to speak of the Communist Farty,
which at poak mustered 200U members, legading th e people of
wowin sfrice = it ig bedng & little Git imoodest in its
cloims, the Communist Farty, to putit at ITS wry lowast?
-==riy lord, I am not guite sure of the figures. 1 think
the time the Hussian Communist Party led the people of
hussia it numbercd some 300,000 members,if 1 remember
correctly and the population was 1E6C,LCO,L00., The size of
tha party is not relevant, it seceme to me. The problem is

the suppurt which it ubteins amongst the populetion,
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Ferhaps the tenscit. ond the fighting revolution
ayy spirit of the leaders is more importanti--<That ia a
very important factor,

ind the degroe ef agitationT---And the amount
of sctivity they cerry out,ves.

By the way, what is the population of Soviet
Fussiat---Today 1 believe it is over 200,00G,00C,

ow many non-whitesi=--I really could not aay,
% 31iry, but o wvery larye proportion,

what do you mean by a ¢ large portionf--1 really
don't know the statistics, but there are & lsrge number of
fsien peoples i the Seviel Uniong, both fsian and Mongulian
pecple, and I would think they probably constitue a mejority
but 1 om not quite sure,

low the lest possage I would like you to read
depals whth the third propositicn and is at the bottom of the
PEQE. "Hence the transition from capitelism to socialism

and the liberoticn of the working class frum the yoke

cannot be offected by slow changes or by mforms as reactionar-
ies anc liberwsls often advisze, but by revolution., Une
therpfore must be & revolutionary and not a reformist, "
Ir ithat correct policy of the Communist Party7--1 think that
is corredt my lord, and the sensc in which it is used
mokes iE dFery clear thot it &  cdrawing a distinction b etween
o reformist who belisves that yuu can bring sbout a change
in society from c apitalism to mcislism by amall changes,
and a revolutionary, who believes you can anly do it
hhy one radical transformation,

The last paragreph there "Finally, if daevelop-
munt and change in 1 hings take place by way of collisions
vetween upposite furces, then it is clear tha t the struggle

botween workers and capitalists is natural and inevitable.
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Hence we muzt not try tc proach pocace and harmony between
workors and capitalists. e wust stimulste snd encowr age
claas struggles. e must call upon workers to conduct a
ceaseless war against the capitalist class and for socielism.®
Is that & correct datement of Marxist philosaphyf=-=1
think perhaps it is a rather vverbeld statement, but
agonerally speaking it is correct though yes.
"e must not iy to preach peace and harmony
botween workoers and capitalists,"=-<-That is correct.
"o must stimulate and encourage class struggles®
agitate, in other words, tir. Bernstein?---My lerd 1 don't
know sgitate in othor worde - 1 epprove of the formulation
therae, I hink it is correct.
“nce in point of faetl is t hat not the policy
of the Communinst NMerty throughout the worldi--iAs stated there?
Yes.--You sir it is.

You krow this book, Exhibjt T,99,..rather

T,00 was found at hivonia "kill or Get Killed." At
Travallyn, Lo you know the buok T===Nlever seen it before.
Have yuu any jdea why..it deals wth self-

]
defence, doesn t itT-=-pll my loxd, judging by the cover

-
it says it is for peolice and military, the last word on
mob control,

There were no policemen in hiding at Travallyn
were thergi-—-tiot to the best of my knowledge,

- The only pesple in hiding & Trevallyn were,
lei us iske them in turns - accused MNo. 2 at one stage=-=-
b I hear in evidence.

fecused o, 37--Likewise,
recused ne, 4Y==That is so,

nccusee No, T7-—-=-Yes.

Now what would any of those be doing with tiot
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book7===My lord I don't know = they might have been
brosdening their mind, or they might have hed other reason,.s

It says tecrets for i‘olice and the military
last word on mob control, but it aslso has this '"secrets of
subduing individuals and mobs by a world authority, end
hand to hand fighting and meob control . For defence and
law enforcement agencies..({quotes)...controlling mubs,
step by step illusiratiouns and instructions" and t hen "Kill
or Get Rilled is a book which belongs in every institution
charged with the training of police officers or snlqsﬁrs.“
vias the M.Ks net training scldiers Y==jAccording to the
cvidence it was.

Now there is an nteresting Chapter 153 in this
book end I would like tuo read it to you because uf what is
stated here in this paragraph I have read un page 286,

You how 'we must stimulate and encourage class struggles' -
and you have adnitted that is Yarxist philosophyi==That
is right.

I am going to read from page 372: "Public
incidents are used or fabricated tu spark riots", Oy
the way, this is under the heading of Communist Tamtics
and Ltrategy in [irecting FHobb Violence."™ "In the case of
ssslquotes)...especially the case in Jopanin 19%6L." Is
that truet---My lord, 1 don't know the fects sbout the
incidents in Bagota but I would say as a statement of
Enmmunggt volicy it is absclute balderdash,

Ealdnrdash]———nhaulutnlyr

"Elgewhere in the world similar tactics...
(quotes)...frequest success in the past. The overall
strategy is one of armed revolution and ssssupported and

fostered from cutside the target nation. Guerilla warfare

is co-ordinated with sabotage, espionage, terrorism and
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mob wiclence., In actual fact viclence in a planned mob
action can be characterised as just another form of guerilla
warfare, although wedged in urban areas.," lo you accept
thatte==lio sir.

You don'ty==ho sir.

This was Tound at Travallyni--That may be,

It wes not left there by the former owner of
Travallyn. You see we had here sabotage?---Correct,

We ha.ua here espionage, peuple tnding to gt
into the pulice, trying to get into the army, trying even to
get intoc the public prosecutor's division?--1 am mct aware
of eny of those sir,

You are not! Terrorism and mob violence -
has that not been triecd, terrurism?--I1t has been tried by
song puople, not oy Lommunists sir.

You have teard the evidence ;n this casec of
cirw lars issuedin the Eastern Province, of people who must
be got rid ofi=-1 lave heara that evidence.

iamed, and we find them stabbed - is that not
mob viclencef--It may well besir, 1 am just saying it is not
oy Lommunistis.

ot by Communisis?--hNo sir,

Lne last passage: "The discrediting of the
sesregulor police and military forces whose responsibility

and the maintenance of law anc order is & prime cbjective.”

Haos an attempt nol been made in this case toc discredit the
polic gt===ily loro 1 think the police discredit themselves
very sotisfactorily, without sssistance.

Jithout essistence?--That is so.

what have you in mnd7--.ould you like incidents?

Yegs=-=well wy lord 1 can't help feeling that

the r ocent cese in Bultfontein was a very fine example,
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I was hoping you would mention that = who in=
vestigetes the charges in the Dulffontein casei=--=The police
did,

The pulicel Uid they fail in their duty to in-
vestigate that case properlyi---No they didnot but the
officers who were charged failed in their duty.

I an talking about those whu investigated the
allegations in that case - did they fail in their dutyie--
lio I don't think they did.

The prusecutors department - did they T ail in
their duty to bring ihecase before the Lourti--io sir thoy
did not,

And did his lordship the lcarned judge fail in
his duty to meke a bola finding i=-ko he did ot sir,

voes this not happen amoungst every profession’
- hafixw have had dishunest attorneys and alvocatesf--1t
dues so.

@ have hac evidence of advocates viu have been
planning sabotage?=-That may be.

loes thot ciscredit the whole prefession of
adivucafesi--No sir,

"when pulice and military forceS....the
Ccommunisis can move rapidly to power, and aficr power has
been seized the new Governmeni acis rapidly tou disband and
destroy prufessiuvnal wmilitary wund puliceforcos...all other
colleciad evidence of Lanmunist activity are destroyed,
Lubg under Castro is & classic exauple of this tactic," ls

that & true record eno account of Communistic strategy?—--

fibsolutely felsoe, sir,

Did it not happen in Cuba?=--'hat is said thern

certoinly not,

How do you knowi~--Becauwe I have read authori-
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tative accounts by people who are ¢n the spot, cbservers,
whi have studied the subjeci, and none of them would have
substantigted that.

iight = @and this is & book we find at Travallyn-
not soi=<kot an suthoritative one.

Right., I don't want to argue with you, We

come now Lo fxhibitK,3%, page 379, HNow this is a circuler

addrossed to Young (omrades. By the way, let me just ox-
plain Lo you wbout it - that is e circular which was found
at Hivonia in bulk in a storervom complete with the envelope
as it is attached there, It is eddrossed to "young comrades"
ana is that not the manncr of addressing young Communis ts?
=Y,

‘n fact, it is issued by the Juhannesburg
Listirict of the touth sfrican Comaundst Party?---Yes,

and it calls upon them "Tha fouth Africen
Lommunist Varty calls uwpon each and everyone of you to jdn
in the fight fur Freedom, for demecratic rights for all the
peuple and for socicliom," Righti==Yes,

ind then it says "'hy the Youth?" And then
at the last page tho answer is given,,the lat poragraph on
that page: "This attitude is contrary tc the nature of the
youth, in all countrics the youth are the first to fight
for freedum, to sacrifice their very lives for the noble
couse of the peuple's liberation,
o "That is what happened in Cubo when the
young workers, peassants and s tudents fought with & book in
one hand and a rifle in the other. Now that they have wen
their liberation it is cnce again the youth in Cuba who
are fighting ancther bottle - tho tettle against illiteracy

ant disease.” and then it says "Costro is the youngest

Lrimoe Ninister in t he wurld" dirc, dernstein, dis this naot a
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girect ond blatenteffart by the Communist "arty of Louth

-t
F

oo b dneite the youth to Lake up wming F==o ] would
ot aceept that siz,

Lhat duee the raiiy mean when it zays "This
i wvhol happence in Cubo, when the vouny workars, prosants
cind students Tought with & book in one bhand ond & rif le
i the ctherl---'iy lurd, it hos got to be read in its
cenlext. The context is Lhat seme of the youth sre inclined
Lo stene pluel in the struccles of their poople, They
woule rathor criticise froa the sofe and rospuctabic side
ut the fence, as if thoy noed not take part in the s truggle,.
This atiitude is contrarzy to the nature of the youth, as
iu down sy the exporience of Cuba, where the yvouth in
Faet, far from standing aside, took o place in the foro-
Frunts Thot ds all it i saying,

AU are you not asking the yoeulhh  in this
country o eu thy samsi==<To teke o lesding position in
whe struggle of the peunle, certeinly, sir.

s#nd te follow the wxample of the young Lubans?
-==Insafaxr oas they stows in che ferefront of the s trugole, voe.

nnc if necessary, therefore, te fight with a
sk in the ene hand wnd & xivle in the other Y==1% does not
Tay 86, sir, and | jnn.t Lhink one can read chat nocessarily
into it,

hy meniion it then¥=-ily lord, it is saying
Lhis ds "whot happened in Cubs - hore S an example of the
Tact thal the youth did not stand aside,

bet us just read now, in the light of what you
hove just tould hig loreshnip, an page 2 of that document
(page 380} *The youth of our couniry have shown that they

can {ioht ooavely for their rights. At Fore Hare, Turfloop,

caldicwn, Lovedale, hilnerton and the doth High tcheool,
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Ter oxanples, thay steed ve and took militent action, regardless
e b cunsenuUeNErSGe hon nurses werTe cancd, tney went on
DRTAKC . hen Lhe wirkers in o fectery cemand better con-
citions, the yuuih ore with them," By the woy, what is
meant tha: oy wilitont acticoni===1 think militant wmeans
vigorous = that ie the nearect word J ocon put to it,
You know of course, fron Fort Hore, sccording
o L pviaonce, swie s tudents wero sent acrogs the bordenr
Tor wilitory traeiningt--They were on their way but thoey were
crrentorfeme== 1 oun 't conombir thot evidence, it may well ba.
Yuw Lhot ucoument Is the saone as Lxhibit %o,
Gl P e e Be fxhdifdt h (A0, did you draw this up,
ay e way 't "wiffoancas in the Woamunist dovement, o

Tors Informationee~Yos my lurd 1 cid,

ALy

I iu crawn up on your typawriier?--) don't
titdnk o, but..

Maivir & loik at jle~==3 can't recnll, You
aean this asctuel typewriter hare is not mine,

This dis nut typed on vour typowriter?=-This is
e AN .

DU youu Crew Lhis op¥-=Yos sir 1 :dd,

el U oam not going W denl wih that document,
it whizrles with thn cifferances in the conmunisy Party moveo-

et = whu askoed you Lo drew that upf==imy lora, 1 think 1

s X oecuieston bye s bob Pepple siz,

hent===ien f wenlt out te Fivonia o discuss
ihis guetion wilh bz, Hbeki, which was .pril/iay of 1%63,
was
i &w wnn of the discussions I/havéing  Mr. liepp lehappened
e drop in a2t Hivenisa - 1 think he had come to sco bNr.
tbeki fur sumcething,  He pntrercd inte the disoussion, ond

when we were hoving the discussion he said "Look, people orc

crying cut for information en what thic dispute is all about,
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“hat were you doing at Hi*unia?--l was discussing
this very question with #r, Mbeki.

whyt=-ily lord he had cent a message tome
asking me to coac out and bring documents sbout this thing
LHecause he was intearested to find out what it was all ebout,

ibeki of course was one of the leaders of the
e KT===l0 the evidence =zays, yes.

You d id not know thazt befora?--io Idid not,

Mbeki duking April/Hay of 1963 was in hiding?
-==Thet is so.

Hcy 2s far as you knew then, was just a member
of the AN,Ci=~=jis far as I knew,yes.

Jid you ask him "What are ycu doing here?"—--
ffosr,

«hy noti--Becawse I knew he was hiding thore sir,
It was notl necessary.

Lid you know what he was doing therp7=--=No sir,

w«as that not the time whoen the acts of ssbotage
were reaching a crescendo in this country, fpril/vay of
19637==]1 am unable to say, sir, It might be zo, 1 dunnt knowe

and he wanted you to ceome cut7-=He wented some
information, documents dealing with this stuff, and I
took then out,

About this subject?---This very subject,

«“hat was his interest in it7--My lord I take it
he i interested - amajor dispute aon politicel questions
between the Chinese Communist Ferty and the “oviet Lommu-
nist iarty is o matter of greot interest to pecple.

ls he a CemmunistT=-=1 am afraid you will have
tu ask him that questiun,

I am going toi But don't you know?--No sir, I am
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net proparec to ancwer thoat question,

Yui you cou knowt--Yes 1 do,

You are nut propared to answerf--No,

and  how long uicd you spond with himP=-=iy
lurd, I gsiscusseu with him on twe or three occasiocns,
probably an hour our an hour =znd a half at a time, something
like that,

wa5 he a beoped persun @ that time?=-1 think
that is cuzroct.

snd you had no compunciisn, despite the banning
order served cn you, in meeling up with a banned person e
ay lord, perhaps 1 should exslain ihat when 1 met Mr,
sweki at Rivonis he wes vsing the newe Dhlamini, I have

d in evidence that | had not met him Loefore. AT the time

[E'M

i
he used the nose Uhlamini, and I accepted hinm 25 Dhlamiri.

At tu whether 1 had any compunciion sbout wmeeting banned
prople, sir 1 did not.,

You had nu cumpunctionf=---No,

Tou s2e you complained, 1 won % say direcily,
cevtainly implicitiy in your evidence, that becouse of the
action of the EnuernMEnt in banning you, housc arresiing you,
rastricting you, and all that, you had no time to eke out a
living. You were confined to work during the dayf==~That is
correct.

Tou cumpleined very bitterly because of that
hnnninﬁ*;uhndy covlo come toywu, you had to go to thewm in
vider to see them obout buildig specificationsi=-Thet is
corract,

And you stayed in Uksteen Stroet Observatory?
-=lzgent Ltrect,

But vou get a message from ilr. Goon Hbeki "Come

Lut? end you comply with that, ond you go out to lHivonig,=--
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Yos my lord, when 1 founda that I had an hour or an hour and
2 halt to spare,

You went cut to Hivonia - by car, or ware you
tken therat--ho by car.

find you spent sone fTime with him - and all he
wants tu know from you is "ir,Dernstein, what is sl1ll this
trouble abovut differsnces in the Conmunist movement" yee-
fmatter of great jmportance to him,

and you touok the trow le to explain tﬁ]1im, and
you wrote this 11 paged documenti---=lUell when you say that
you wilil see that it is practically all quotationsfrom
publiepntions, it is just 2 matier of scissurs and paste, really

He could have done it tooi=-=Fossibly.

If he had more time, but perhaps he was iuo
busy with M.Kk. but you would not know thati=--1 mould not
answer that sir.

Now y ou knew he was a meabar of the AcleCYt===1
hod hpard of him as a member of tha A.N.C.

In i'ort DlizebethT=<=In vort Elizabeth,

did it never strike you to ask him "ywhat are you
doing her @7V--<My lord, it struck me, but as 1 said before
1 don't want to know the answas to these questions when
it is none of my bheincas.

But you do know the answers tc quite a few

questicons | have put tcv you, and although you know the

|

answers, you refuse to tell meY==when information came my
way, sir, I could not help hearing, That is ioo bad, but
I never wont out of my way to get information which is not
my business

Fow you know Mr, Berretiein by that time,
fipril of 1963, the {tate slleges that over 1ltl acts of

sabutage hod buen committedi=-<Yes,
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That is why I seid it had reached its crescendo.
id you not stop to find cut "fow who is directing this ¥"---
ﬁut my lord who wos directing s lot of it, and that was
Umkonto We Lizwe,

-ho told you thati-=1 sew their original
honifesto, it was common talk in Con gress circiles sir,
l'cople in the political movonent were a2ll aware of this,.

Mame some of the pecple who spuke about itf=-
My lord, pecple onec weets in pulitics, discussing polit?
svents in this country, were all aware of this,

bMome some of the peoplei=-=FPeople one meects in
pulitice were all aware of Umkonto we Sizwe who said it was
gung to conduct acts of sabotage, and from to time claimed
actual acts by statmments in the press and so on, - Therc was
no sccret about it.

chen did you first hear about acts of sabotage
comnitted by deks ynitsi---sfter the 16th December sir.

i it was discussed in politicel circlesi—--
Yeu certainly.

Jould you mention some of the pe ple with
whoii you disoussed it?--My loru, thare are lots and lot
of poople [ have discussec pulitics withe I can't remember
any precise persocn | discussed wihis particular questiun,

1 havea had discussions with most of the leaders of the

African National Congress who were in Johannesburg; I have
hod disrussions with leading neople in the Indian Cangress
and in the Congress cf Uemocrats, Communists, all sort of
people. 1 oould not say who talked ebout this,

Now you discussed it with leading menbers of the
FalNaLT==Yrs,

uch agf=="eople like Nokwen, people like Tisulu,

I used to meect thfse pecple from time to time,
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Leading people from the Indian Congress or the
Indian Community?---Yes.

such as?---Mr, Kathrada I would see on occasions.
Mr, Eﬂchaliai?ll would see on occasions.

Jusuf  cachalia f==~=And Hs brother,

And leading members of the Communist Party?---
Well people whom I regard as Communis ts, people like Ketane
and Harmel and Marks and so on. I had discussions with all
these people.

You still won't mention who the leaders were?
--=No sir,

And you naer stopped to ask with what they were
committing the se acts of sabotage, or where they were getting
it from---1 don't undemxtand,

The material, the explosives?=-No sir, it is
not my business,

OUr who was financing it7=-No.

But did you know the M,K. was drawn from the

AsNsC?=-1 knew that a large number of tieir mm bers ware membars
of the AN.C. ves.

Did you know that the AJN.C. like the
Communist Farty was also not in &fluent circumstancesTe—-

never
It has/been in affluent circumstances to my knowledge.

Did you wonder therefore where the M.K, got
its money from to finanee this campaign of hatred?--=Well,
I had my"suspicions sir.

What were your mspicions--=That -thny ware
collecting money, both here and abroad for the purpose,

so this evidence about Mandela's viait.nbrnnd,

collecting money, gave as no surprise to youP===Well I

knew that he had been abrosd on this tour sir,
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Dr., Letile (7) you krow him7--Yes I do,

Treasurer of the A,N,C7--1 think that is so,
I am not absolutely sure,

Member of the Communist Party?-=--Not to the
best of my knowledge?

A Sympathiser?--Not even that to the best of my

knowledge.

Not even that?=--As far as I am aware,

Turn now to Exhibit R.,39 (page 391). Oh by
the way, to round off this conversation with Mbeki, you
promised to draw up this article, and in fact you went back
and set abat it7--1 went back two or three times to discuss
matters with him.

And you eventually gave him the f inished article?
-=No I gave the draft of the aticle to Hepple,

fod what was he to do with f it7---Hepple was
to circulate it amongst interested people in the political
movement.,

Well you must have been a most important ad-
herent to the Communist Party if they called upon you to
draft ..make this exposition on the differences in the

Lommunist Movement?--1 did not say that the Communist Party

asked me, sir, I said Hepple asked me.

I knowl|--/nd Hepple may have aiyg high regard
formy ability, I don't know.

Now Exhibit 39 "Present South African Communist
Farty” - you know that booklet7--Yes sir I have seen it.

Did you participate in its,.in the drawing
up thereof?--My lord I was asked to comment # one time
when a draft of this document was circulating. I was asked

to make my comments on the draft, and I did so.

And youdid so7===Yes.



- 135 = ACCUSED No. 6,

Who asked you?---1 am afraid I em not pregpred
to reveal that.

What drafts were you giveni--My lord I was
givena roneoed document, which was a daft of this one,
that is all I can say.

find you are not prepared to tell his lordship
who asked you to check the draft?--=-No sir.

But they asked you to check the drafts,.-=-=No,
not to check the drafts, to make my comment on this draft
document.

And you did so?=-=pAnd 1 did so.

And this final product, is that a correct
statement of the South African Communist Party7?-=--1 take
it it must be,

You have seen this before?--Yes, oh yes. I take
it it is a correct statement.

You must have known an awful lot about the
Communist Party if they ask you to make your comments on the
programme of the South African Communist Party?--My lord, I
bhave said that I have been aCommunit for a long time, and
serybody knows it, and when they want opinions on a document
of this sort, they are likely to ask opinions from people
like ma,

Now here is the Exhibit which goes with that,
Exhibit78, This was foond & Rivonia, and it is headed
"On our_npew draft programme, a message from the Central
Committeeof the Commonist Party." Isn't that so7=e=That
is correct,

MR, BERRANGE: (to the Court)

My lord it seems to us apparant that the witness
will at some s tage wish to have a look at the Exhihits that
have been placed before him for the pmrpose of giving further

EUidEI‘IEE in rnqﬂrd thEI‘! .tﬂ '#'F [N - Tt - T T LT — = B = =
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through pour lordship, ask the witness to make notes as he
goes along of which Exhiite he would like to look at during
the interval.

BY THE CCLRT (to the witness)

Well will you just bear in mind which you
particularly want to see.--I will do that my lozd.
DR, YUTAR: In fact Mr. Bernstein I am going to help wou - 1
have got a list here of the Exhibits I am dealing with, and

vou canch check with me, and than you can have them all,—=-

Thankyou,
Mow that document E. {8 does that explain
why R, 39 was brought into existence?-=Yes, why a new

programme has been drawn,

So I think it will be more logical to deal with
R, 18 first, We are now dealing with R, 78 which you
admit gives the reason why Exhibit R.39 came into existence?
~~=That is so,

And R, 78 justlook at the reasons "A message
from the Central Committee of the South African Lommunist
Party" - that of course if the highest committee of the
S.A. Communist Party7--That is so.

And you are still not prepared to tell us who
constituled the Ccentral Committee?---No.

Now look at that first page "Since our 1933
nrogramme the world Communist movement of which the 5.A.
Communist Party is an integral part, has made a number of
important theoretical advances." have you got that?=<Yes.

Look at the last three lines "South Africa
itself ¥ ripe for, and is approaching the beginning of, a
national democratic revolution," Do you know when this
was drawnup?==My lord I don't know precisely - I know

that this document, the programme itself, that is R.39
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would think early in 1963, That is approximately right.

"South Africais ripe for and is approaching
tﬂs beginning of a national democratic revolution." What
is meant by that7?--My lom, this is an involved question,
There is a chapter of this programme here which is headed
"The national democratic Revolution®™ which attempts to
explain what it means., I would not like to try and summarise
it in one sentence.

What appears there on pages 53 to 55 are those
the page mferences7--No 49 to 55,

Thet is rights And I am gong to quote from
pages 33 to 33 which sets out what is meant by this
revolution.---This national democratic revolution,

Let us summarise it now) does it not mean
violence and sabotage and guerilla warfare?--No sir - it has
not got anthing to do with the quetion of methods.

Nothing at all?--No sir not st all, It is
dealing with changing society. ‘hen Communists talk about
a radical transformation of socciety they cell it a revolution
and that is completely independent of any consideration
of methods whatsoever - it has got nothing to do with
methods at all.

Nothing at all?--MNothing,

Well then bear your answer in mind when 1 come
to deal with that document, because this documet R,.TB
givesus an answer over the next page. "The Vderwoerd
Government is isolaied and hated by the people at home and
ir. the entire world, the country is pregnant with mighty
changes" - ap you following me7--Yes,

"which cannot much longer be postponed. MNew
problems arising out of the new situation face us with
questions which we had to seek answers for beyond the =cope

of our old programme. Famed with ever-increasing rep
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gnd terror aginst nearly every form of peaceful activity,

tbu people hae been compelled to seek and find new methods of
struggle.” VWhat were those new methods of struggle which

the people had been compelled to seek and find?--1 think

this is a clear reference, my lord, to sabotage.

A clear refer ence to sabotagef===Yes.

Right., And then we can miss the next two
paragraphs and take two lines of the third: "The fresent
draft is intended for publication on as wide a scale as
possibles" Is that righty=-Yes that is what it says.

That was the intention?=~1 can't speak about
tiiec intention - that iz what it says.

Dis tribute this publication as widely as
possible, and then on page 516 dy lord, it deals with
eight eessions to be held in order to frame ths draft
and at the sixth session Section 5 of the draft under the
heading "African Revolution" (page 518) look what is said;
"Suggested reading: nearly all issues of the African
Communist deal with this questim, In addition discussion
leaders arc recommended to read the books by 7 of Africa,
The Roots of Revolt and the Lion Awekes, works of 7
dealing with the Chinese Revolution, material on the Cuban
and other anti-coldnislist revolution would also be useful
if available." Mr. Bernstein, did you hear the evidence
af Mre X7--1 did sir,

- Remember he told his lordship he was given
this book by Jack Wallace(?7) on Africa, "The Roots of
Revolt".-=Yes 1 remember that,

Why was he given that book, can you just tell
us, if South Africa was not ripe for revolutionfe-=ily

lord, one would have to look at the book "The Roots of

Revolt" to answer that gquestion, It deals with the origins
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of the national liberation movement throughout Africa,
taking practically every country in Africa one by one and
listing the history of the development of the national
libmaftion movement.f The title, the "Roots of Revolt"

is the origins of the National Movement - that is what this
book deals with . Why he was given it to read, sir 1 can
only say, to broaden his mind,

To broaden his mind, and possibly make use of it
when similar revolution overtakes South Hfri:a?-;Tﬂs
possibly sir,

The Works dealing with the Chinese Revolution
for the same purposef-=--Fossibly so yes.

find of course Cuban and others. This"African
Communist" - we have got a lok of those booklets over here,
lthere were they published?==According to the imprint un
them, they were published in Geat Britain

Do you know who the publishers are, the
authors are or the editors?--No,

You don't know, But it was received in this
country?==It was received in this country.

By whem?==-That I cannot say.

Did you receive that?--Occasionally I received,
not always.

And you will notice some of those books came
here under false covers, plain covers?=--That is not the
ﬂfrinéﬁ.tummunist, gir, That is Africa.

And also the African Communist, blank white
dovers.--- White covers, not false covers.

Well blank F white covem, and underneath that

you get the "African Communist".==~That is correct.
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And that also dealt with the activity of the
Umkonto Yesizwe?=-Yes I think there were articles touching
on that.

Where did they get their information on the
Umkonto WEsizua?--—ﬁy lord, 1 assume they get their infor-
mation fromeit her members of Umkonto wesizwe or possibly
from members of the Communist FParty who themselves are
members of Umkonto Wesizwe.

One last passage here, page 519, "Our
proposals in the National Democratic Hevelution. Suggested
readings not only discussion leader but all members of the
group shall obtain and re-=read the Freedom Charter to
refresh their memory of its contents. Programmes of other
Communist Party, particularly those in :ﬂlnﬁiul countries,
2eg. that of the Communist Party of India should also if
possible be obtained and read by the discussion leader,"
You know we found about six copies of the Communist Party
of India, What differentiates the Communist Party of
India, that causes it to be raaﬂ so carefully?--My lozd,

I don't remember - Ime y be wrong - I dun;t remenber any
exhibits of the programme of the Communist Party of India
being put in - I may be wrongs I think there were some
newspapers put in, publihed by the Communist Paty of India.

Those are what I had in mind.,---Presumably
pecple, dther Communists, or indians, or Indian Communists,
are interested in this sort of thing.

And their history is also one of bloody revo-
lution,--=No sir. Not at the stage with which we are
dealing here. India is the country, I think, my lord, which
¥you can say achieved its natinnﬂl¢hduﬁendei, its national
democratic revolution, if you like, by nnn-uinlent.mEans.

Completely?==Not exclusively, but overwhelmingly

by non=violent means,
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There were vwioclent means employed?-=0Occasicnally
there were violent outbeeaks in the course of non-violent
struggles.

Now having cbfained the reasons for the programme

let us go now to the programme itself, Exhibit R,39 and 1

would like to read to you just & few passages (page 53).
Have you got that?-=Yes I have.

"In the face of these provocations the liberation
movement has had to reconsider its attitude towards non-
viclence s a universl principle. The patience of the
pecple is not endless. They are determined tc win freedom
in our lifetime, They would prefer to achieve their liberation
by non=violent means, but today they are left with no al-
ternative but to defend themselves and hit back, to meet
vwolence with lence. The Nationalists are forcing the
situation in South Africa in which patriots and democrats
will take up arms to flefind themselves, Organised guerilla
armies undertake Avarious acts of armed resistance culmina-
g in a mass insurrection agasinst white domination., In
such a conflict, howe¥er long and costly, the fighters for
freedom must win, for they will enjoy the support of the
overwhelming majority of the people of our country and the
whitle world." 1Is that a correct statement of the programme
of the Communist Party?=--Well I take it it must be, otherwise
it would not appear in this document,

You see they speak there "The fight is for
fxe freedom" and it is not the "fight is for freedom®
about which so much is talked about in the Traaaun Trialy
as his lordship pointed out to you this muréing, at this
stage already acts of sabotge were being committed., You
say 'l take it this is the correct policy'! - is therc any

doubt about it? 1Is it not an official document of the
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Communist Party?-=No I take it that this is an offical
ddcument, and therefore this would be official policy.

And you, as a loyal Communist, support it,---I
think it is a correct statement.

And you as a loyal Communist support it?-- As a
Communist I think it is quite correct yes.

find 1 think you support it7--Yes.

This goes on then "The Communist Party considers
that the slogan of non-violence is harmful to the cause of
the democratic national revolution in the new phase of the

disarming
struggle, dishessdening the people in the face of the
savage assaults of the oppdressor; damping their militancy,
undermining their confidence in their leaders. At the
same time the Farty opposes undisciplined acts of individual
terroTeess (quotes)..and continues to advoeate the use of
all forms of struggle by the people including non-
collaboration, strikes, boycotts and demonstrations." Correct?
-=Quite correct.

"The Party does not dismiss all prospects of
non=violent transmission to the democratic rewlution,

This prospect will be enhanced by the development of revo-
lutionary and militant peoples forces." Let us pause there |
a moment: dis that not what I was trying to tell you this
morning, or suggest to you this morning? The official
policy now of the A.N.C. - we are now dealing with the
offical policy of the Communist Party - was one of violence,
The non=violent methods you had still in mind was 'to enhaoce
the development df the revolutionary and militant peqles
forces." Isn't that so, Mr. Bernstein?-=No sir.

Doesn't this document say that?--1 think ypu

are reading it absolutely upside-down, sir, What it says is
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that the prospect of non=vioclent transition will be
E;nhann:nd by the development of militant peoples forces.

In other words, the prospect of peaceful transition in this
country has been improved by the emergence of militant and
if you like, violent, peoples forces.

Sabotage?=--That is right, but it improves the
prospect of peaceful transition - that is the point that
is made here.

Wall you know we have a document of course
which speaks about power comes out of the barrel of a gun,
Do you ecall it peaceful..if wu have a firearm, and you
say 'Gis me your money' to someone, and he hadds it owver
peacefully - would you say that is a peacﬂfu; method of
cbtaining his property?=--My lord, that is not the aﬂnlugy.
If the gun is being pointed at a man who I8 unarmed, it is
being pointed by tha Govermment at the unarmed non-white
peoples gnd what ecnhances the prospect of peaceful nego-
tiation and settlement in this country is that, if one man
is going to point a gon, the other man should have a gun
to defend himself. Then there might be prospect of talk,
That is what this document £ is saying.

If the Communist Farty..or the M.K. units, let
ug put it that way, was to derail a titain and kill innocent
people, that would enhance your peaceful methods of pam-
phlet distribution and strikes?==No I did not say that sir,
I said-~that if the development of militant forees of the
peoples movement to face the armed forces of the Government,

to assist
is likely/to bring sbout peaceful settlement of the dispute -
more likely, than if the situation is maintained where one
side is heavily armed, and the other side is completely

disarmed, That is what I said,
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that do you mean by the development of the
militant foreces?--1 am speaking about for instance the growth
of such an organisation as Umkonto,

Development of that?==The emergence of this
the fact that it exists at all is in my view a help in this
situation,

The fact that it embarked upen a policy of
sabotaoe?=-Also & help.

The fact that it was already employing gquerilla
war tactiesT--No I dont't accept that it was sir, -

You cdon't accept that it was '-=No,

fnd the fact that it planned the acquidition
of arms from gutside countries?=--Tle is parxt of the process
of building up the peoples forces as | understand it.

And that would enhance the peaceful methods?
~--Not peaceful methods, sir, The prospect of a peaceful
settlement in this country, the peaceful transition from
what we have now to a democratic socigy. That is what
I am saying,.

Fointing the gun in effectf=--1 am saying
thet there is only one gun being pdnted in this country,
in the first place, and that was pointed by the Government,
This is an attempt to even the situatin up so thit
the sides will talk. That is all.

In other words, then,you agree then that the

=y

only way to foree the Government to tezlk peacefully around
a table is to emnbark on esbotage and guerilla warfare7=-
It is not the only way sir, I think thet this % & help.
Well we have 193 acts of those acted.==That
is so.
Has it helped?--Unfortunately not sir.

What is the next stage?=--My lord, as I sa d
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before the next stage in the struggle is the continuation
of what you have been ding.

I will read on "The crisis in the country and
the contradictions in.thg ranks of the ruling classes will
depen, .. (guotes)...whatever its end, whkk whether its end
is brought about by such a peaceful transition or by
insurrection, the vicious type of colonialism,..(qudes)..
certain in the near future." 1 want to mad one paragraph
more: "The Communist Party unreservedly supports and
participates in the struggle for national liberetion, headed
by the African National Congress in alliance with the
South African Indian Congress, the Congress of Trade Unions,
the Coloured Peoples Longress and other patriotic groups
of democra®s, women, pecasants and youths....(quotes)...lt
considers that it is important and urgent for all the forces
and movements for freedom to agree uponall their main goals
and aims at this time." Is that a correct statement of the
policy of the programme of the Communist Party of South
Africal=-=luite correct.

You subscribe to it fully?-=Yes I do sir,

You support it7-=Yes I do.

find of course, not being a pacifist, but being
a revolutionary, you actively supported it7--=-I am not
quite clear what you..7

Well you are a Communit 7==Yes.

Therefore by nature a revolutionaryi--Yes.

Not a pacifisti--=Corrat,

Belt G91E, In fact not even a reformist. Therefore you
as a loyal Communist supported this programme of the
Communist Pariy?==-=Yes I supported it sir.
And how did you support it7--My lord I support

it in my outlook and my opinions whibh 1 have expressed
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through my writing,

And no other way?--My lord, I could have parti-
cipated in movements in this direcition = I can't think offhand.

Yes, writing articles encouraging people 1o
revolt?--My sir, I have written articles calling for this
very thing, a national convention of the South African people
to settle the thing, I have written thzse articles.

Tou of course did not take part in any of the
acts of sabotage?--No sir I did not,

No that was left to the rank and file of the
natives in this country.-=No sir,

Well who did it?--<Members and units of Umkonio
Wesizwe.

Any Europeans among fham?——l understand there are
Europeans amegg them,

fipart from Strachen who else?==1 don't know
who they are, sir, but I understand there are Europeans in
their membership,

Name them?-=1 am unable to name any of the menbers
of Umkonto.

Well how do you know theme sre Eyropeans among
them¥==1 say I understand there are because I have been told sc

By whom7--This is general discussion in the
movement, and it is borne out by the statements issued by
Unkonto itself that it is composed of pecple of all races,
- But can you name anyone, apart from Casrils (7)
of the Natal Regional Command and Strachan, of East London,,
of Port Elixabeth?---Well my'lurd, according to the evidence
there has been in this Court, one can add in Hodgeon and

Goldreich and Wolpe and = few more.
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Oh no = those gentlemen were very careful,
They merely taught the natives how to blow up, they did not
do any blowing up themselves|-=-<Well it seems to me you are
Jumping to conclusions sir, there is no evidence to that
effect.

Did Hodgson blow up any places?--=No, I say
there is no evidence to the fact that they only taught
Africans,

Well do you know of any places that they blew
up?=-=1 don't sir,

You don'tl Do you know of any places that
Goldreich blew up7-=I don't,

Do you know of any places that Hermel blew up?
-=No sir,

Well then you cannot tell us of a single Euro-
pean who blew up anyiting?=--And I cannot teli you of a gingle
non-Luropean who blew up a nything either sir.

But the evidence in this case shows that part
from Casrils, all the non..only the non-Europeans were emp loyec
to do, and I must repeat the phrase I used the other day,
to do the dirty work.-=My lord, it might be accoding to the
evidence in this cese. [ ss it is not according to my

undastanding of the position,

And I forgot to mention one other, Benjamin

Turok.==That is correct,

He placed a bomb in a drawers WNow we come to

Exhibit R,40, This is a statemetit by the Central Committee
of the South African Communist Paty. I am not going to go
into this in cetail because I covered this with Kathrada in
detail, but I must show it tog you ~ that is a Communist
document? We will come back to that later - turn to

Exhibit 51, =--Yes,
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(Page 446). U\ew Problems of a Democratic
Movement," Now this document, Mr, Bernstein, was found at
Rivonia.-=Yes.

In the fow th room, It was also, an exact
cqy of it, Exhibit R,Bl1 was found in the studio of Goldreich
in the wain house - you get me?--Yes.

And then another exact copy of it, Exhibit D,E.
was found in the Durban office of MNaicker. Found in the
wastepaper basket. So this document, therefore, we find in
two places at Rivonia and in Natal, It is a document issued
by the Communist Party, it does not say so expressly, but it
is quite clear from the reading of it.--Yes I think it &
clear,

Is it correct what is stated there on page 447,
the first paragreph under The new Line of Congress: "All of
us are probably by now well avare that the A.N.C. Eas
finally discarded the line of f'nmon-violence! which character-
ised the organisation for many yearsg that it has adopted
the attitude that force must be met by forceg that the
African people must learn to defedd themselves and hit back =
an eye for an eye and a tooth for a tooth,"—=-My lod,
in my view this is not a correct statement,

How does it come about that the Communist Party
prepares a document dealing with the new line of the
African Maticnal CongressT7--My lord it is quite clear that
the cnmmunist Farty produces deouments which deal with all
sorts of pdlitical matters in South Africa; matters of the
Congresses themselves, matters of the United Faty, of the

Nationalist Party of the Progressive Party and so an,
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so there is nothing peculiar, to my mind, that the
Communist Farty should be expressing itself on a new policy
of the African National Congress.

But whoever wrote this, made a mistake7==I
think he stated the position incorrectly.

Just one further par;graph "But the fact re-
mains that the masses of the African people are not aware
of this new line of the A.N.C. The many years of non-
violence propaganda, which continued right through the
Treason trisl and even persisted after the emergency cannot
be dispelled merely by one or two rather ambiguous stat ements,
It has now become a matter of great importance that Congress
should announce and campaign for its new line among the
massess" A correct statement?=--1 think it i probably
correct, ves,

Frobably correcti--1 think so.

S50 when Kathrada says..when Sisulu sas it is
wrong, it is a wrong statement? Ygu disgree with him?7---
well my lord, as ] understand what this statement is saying,
it is saying that the African National Congress has dis-
carded its former line of non-violence, which is wht I
have said here in evidence, and I have explained the con-
text in which I make that statement., Then it goes on to say
that the mass of the African people are not mware of this
new line, I think that is probably correct, ¥ they aze not,
because I cannot remember the African Natioml Congress pub-
licly proclaiming that its advocacy of positive non-
violence had come to an ends I can't remember them doing so.
50 I think this is probably correct, Sisulu might disagree.

Might 1 just reinforce that by saying that
throughout the treason trial the defence, including yourself,

laid great stress on the fact that the policy of the A.NC,
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was one of nonviolencei--Correct,.

And that policy was put across successfully?
And that defence was put across successfully?--That defence
was upheld by the CLourt sir yes.,

And that is what the whole mnk and file, in fact
the whole public of South Africa was led to believe to be
the true position?-~It was the true position,

I sn not denying it = the Court found it to be
S0 4~==LCorrect,

I don't dispute a décision of our Courts.-—-Yes.

But now we find it is the leaders of the A.N.C.
who have decided on the policy of violence and now the
leaders are enjoined to put that across to the massesfe—-
My lord, what I think would be a better statement is that
the A.N.C. has abandoned its fommer policy of positive
non=-violence. This is known to the members of the African
Natioml Congress and to the leaders of the African MNational
Congress, but because that fact was not publicised, the
AMfrican masses are not aware of that fact - the fact that
tha A.N.C., has abandoned that policy - the masses are not
aware of it, That is what this is saying, and that is why
I say I think it is a correct statement,

Of course this does not say the way you are
interpreting it7?--No but speaking of the newline, which I
have explained is my understanding of the new line,

Now page 448 you will find under paragraph 3
"The Image of the Movement at Home and Abroad", the paragraph
commencing "serious and harmful consequendes" - have you got
that?--Yes sir I have.

"Serbus and harmful consequences have flowed

from these departures, Since the A.N.C. is the senior
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-partner, representing the majority of the population whe

ﬁf necessity carry the bant of the struggle, the C.0.D. and to
E;ME extent the S.A.I.C. have tended to adopt the role of
msra.auxiliarins and assistants to the senior partner, -
negleting their essential and primary function of working
among their own population groups.” Miss the next paragraph
andithan go on to the final one: "we in the movemsnt

know very well that the A.N.C. is the senia and leading part-
ner in the alliance, but also and mainly because it re-
presents the cause of Africen nationel libmation which is the
core and essence of the democratic strugle in this country,
Because of this the question of numerical representation

and 'woting'! has never arisen at meetings of the Joint
Exccutives, etc. " Hemember I put to you this morning

that you were all partners in this one scheme, is that not
507-=Yes you did put that to me. |

Is it not = —-1 am not sure which one scheme,
and who you ' al1l1'is referring to?

The C4E€,Dy---The C.0.D. yes

The S.A.l.Cu=~Yrs.

The Communist Party?--No sir - you see, if you
read the paragreph before the one you started with, this
document is dealing with something amorphous called the
Congress Alliances Now I said in evidence before that the
Cokmunist Party was not ever part of this Congress Alliance.
The Congrses Alliance is an alliance of Congresses, and
does nt include the Communist Party,

YesT==And to the extent that you csll thoee a
partnership, they are partners, but it does not include the

Communist Party.
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The African National Liberation Movement7---
Yas the National Liberation Movement would in my view in-
clude the Communist Party.

And the Joint Executives?==The Juiﬁt Executives
does not incdlude the Communist Party.

Why was the Communist Party left aout of the
Joint Executive? ---My lord, for the precidse reason that
these were the Joint Executives of the Congresses, and the
Communist Farty was not one of the Congresses. It is
a simple proposition,

New let us turn to paged51 for a final
reference on fis document, You know my learned friend read
this out to Sisulu in re-examination as if I had left it
out deliberately. "An unrem sonable proposal.® "We hau;
indicated above the undesirability of mixing up legal
and illegal actiuities;?pﬂrti:ularly harmful suggestion
which seriously infringes this principle would be any
suggeation that the U.W.5. as the military wing of te
movement should place itself under the control and direction
of the MN.C.C." The N.C.C. of course if the National
Consultative Committee?---That is correct,

Now if the author of this document not making
UsWe5, the "military wing of the movemmt, '==He clearly does,
air, yes,

Rightly or wrongly7--My lord I think I have

i |

answered thic question before too, If the phrase is intended
to mean that Unkonto has an organic lnk somewhere with the
National Consultative Commitee, then wrongly, because it
clearly has not and what this document is saying is that

the proposal that it should have such an organic link is

o wrong proposal., If it just means it is a militery group

which falls within the ambit of the National Liberation
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Movement then it is quite a correctstatement sir,
On that let me show you Exhibit R,61, (Page 501)s
Now this document - tel his lodship who the author of this
document ie, what movement or party?=--1 think I will have
to read this document., I don't think I have read this
before.
"The Crisis is Deepening in wouth Africa."
Y'/ell perhaps you can read it - might I just read to you
one passage on page 2 Eﬁage 502)s "The masses of the
people on the other hand have also become impatient and
desperate. The National Liberstion Mgvement, led by the
AsliaCy was engaged in edensive preparations as revealed
by the 7 Conference in Tanganyika for an armed struggle.
It found expresson through what the A.M.C. cells the
military wing of the hNational Liberation Struggls, Umkonto
WE Sizwe which has been delibering one blow after
another at Government installations and institutions,
including an attack on the officers off the Minister of
Agriculture." Mr, Bernstein, if this is & document
drawn up by the Communist Party, then it has again made
a mistake when it calls the M.,K. a militay wing of the
AeNoC?==No 1 don't say that. I say if by this phrase
military wing you are reading into it that therefore it
has an organic connecdidon, then I think it is a mistake,
But if you can talk of a military wing, and not imply
by thégtﬁhrase an organic connection, then it is a
perfectly satisfoctory phrase, as far as I am concerneds
Whetk do you maan by t'organic connection?!'-—-
That i% is not under the immﬂdi;ta direction and control
ef the African National Congress or whatever the document
SaYSas

BY THE URT:
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What do you mean by 'immediate directiont! -
do Jyou mean it is under the general direction, but not under
the day to day direction?---My lord, in a general sense
Unkonto is under the diredtion of the African Natiord
tongress., If I can explain it this way sir 3 if Umkonto
Wesizwe were to take & decision that in fubure it will
conduct its struggle by the systematic assasgination of
whitc people, regardless of which white people, they would
just systematically aasasinate. My lord, there is
nothing constitutionally which can prevent them taking
such a decision. They can take it, and they can attempt
to carry it out, but the minute they take such a decision,
which runs clearly counter and contrary to the plicy of the
African National .Congress, the Africen National Congress
will inform all its members, beth in the leadership and
in the units of Umkonto We sizwe, that if you follow out
this policy, you are bresking the policy of the African
Notional Congress and you must choose: either you follow
our policy, or thdrs. Since the African Natiomal Congress
is the older organisation, it has much longer and stronge
loyalty from its members in my view than Umkonto, I think
if such a gituation developed, my lord, the members and
those ;n the leadership of Umkonte who kawe owe loyalty
to the A.N.C, would say 'In this situation we cannot
persist in this decision, we have taken a bad policy®
Ez?thia#éﬁtent, as I understand it, the Africen National
Congress exercises a virtual veto over the broad general
policy of Umkonto,

Isn't there very much more, even accepting
the evidence of accused No., 2, that there was a constant
touch thgrough him = he used to asttend the meetings of

the High Command?--0n occasions, yes,
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On occasions, on freoquent occasions and on
the‘qusstiun of pol¥cy , whatcover you mag mean by policy,
the Unkonto was guided by the AJN.C7==<Well, for this
reason that I am expressing, my lord., Not because it had
any constitutional provision which said they could not
decide on their own, or that there was any obligation on
them to report to the African National Longress.

Well any illegal organisatiom , Mr. Bernstein,
which is not bound by any legal ties with another organisation
obviously can't be controlled by that organisfation,---
That is so.

I mean, you-here have an illegal organisation
vhich i either sponsored or allowed, which is the word
which the accused preferred to use, to take its members,
and draw its members Trom the A.N,C. members, and carry
out a certain task.---That is so. But once they started
doing something beyond that task, my lord, then they would
be faced with the problem "Is the AJ.N.C. going to withdraw
its members at this stage?®

Well that situstion has never arisen?--No,
but I say if one is speaking aboutthe ALN.C. controlling
this organisation...

In fact, what is the difference between this
and a company which forms a sub-committee and allots a
:extainﬂﬁaak to that sub-committee? What is the difference?
===#gll my lord the difference is that it has formed the
s ub-comnittee, it has nominate the personnel, and pre-
sumably given it its terms of refersnce. That did not
happen in this case, as I understand it.

some people say it did not happen that way.---
I am going by the defence evidence which I accept, my lord,

that it did not happen this way.
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Bﬂlt EEE .

N RESUMING AT 10 a.m, on the Sth MAY 1964,
FURTHER CROSS-EXAMIMATION OF ACCUSED Mo, 6 BY DR, YUTAR (CTD).

Mre. Bernstein, yesterday yﬁu conveyed to his
lordship whilst the South African Communist Party was a
limb of the National Liberation Mgvement, it was not in
fact a limb of the Longress Alliance?---That is correct.

nndiiﬂu rightly pointed out, for the simple
reason that the Congress Alliance was a Congress alliance
of the African National Congress, South African Indian
Congress, South African Congress of Trade Unions, South
African Colourcd People!s Congress and the Congress of
Democrats?--That is so,

\then was the Longress of Democrats formed?---
I think it was formed in 1951 or 2, during the defiance
cempaign,

And by whom was it formed?---It came to be
formed in this way: the Afrian National Congress and the
SeAs Indian Congress jointly invited several hundred Euro-
peans in Johannesburg to a meeting at the Hall,
They suggested there very strongly that it would be in
the interests of South Africa as s while that there should
be & vocal and effective body of Europeans putting forward
the view which they themselves were putting forward, fﬁat
this country should become a non-racial society, and as
a result’of that a Resolution was moved at that meeting,
which I myself moved, to found such an urganisatiut,rénd
it was adopted by the meeting,

All very interesting, but what I wanted to
know is who was the leading figure in the formation of the

Congress Alliance?--0f the Congress Alliance?

I beg your pardon, of the Congress of Democrats.
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===My lod that is hard to answer. As I say, I moved the

Resolution, if that makes me the lesding figure, I don't know.
wWwho launched it 7--A provisional committee was

electx my lord. I can't remember now if it was at that

meeting, or a suhsaqj.lﬁt meeting and that committee then

set about the job of organising branches and units of this

organisation in different parts of the countryg,

who led it,7---Yell I would say the Committee
led it, I can't think of any single individual who ond
would descfibe as the sort of undisputed leader of the
organisaticon,

Are you serious when you say that7?--fuite serious,

Quite serious, And ynu.are telling his

lordship the truth?---Yes that is my view of it.

Your view7--Yes.

Were you on the editorial board,.when did you
join the editorial board of "Fighting Talk"7--1 am not
very sure my lord but I think it would be zbout 1949 or
1950,

And you wrote articles under yourname7-=HBoth
uncer my name and under pseudonyms, and anonymously,

Soch as?=--0n occasions 1 wrote under the name
of Ben Giles(?) on occasions I wrote ander the name of
Elwood Cholmondeley (7?) and on occasiens anonymously,

And you sometimes signed your articles L,B7=—=
Very likely wyes,

I am not trying to be familiar, but you qrﬁ
also known as Rusty?--That is so,.

And you are married to Hilda Wagtts (7)7===That
is so sir., |

Now I don't want to embarrass anyone in this
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Court, I am going to show you a document which has not
wet been put in as an Exhiit, it is "Fighting Talk® of
Septembar 1963, I don't want you to mention names, but
did vou write that article?---My lord, it hes the initials
L.B, at the bottom, it is familier, I think I probably did.
1 have not read the whole article to make surea,

I am not going to read out the title of the
article, end when I refer to the party in guestion I am
not going to mention his name, I will just cell him MR, "AY
(Not to confuse him with Mz, "X"), "For ancther man, that
alone would be enough, but not for A. He has found time
and enegery, made time and energy, to launch and lead
the Congress of Democrats to carry on the struggle against
South African racialism and to hold out a hand of comrade=-
ship alliance to non-white fellor-gitizens who striae
for democratic rights and liberty." Is that correctfe==-
Yes 1 think that is correct.

50 when you wrote this article Sepltember 1963,

you knew that it had been launched and led by Mr. "A"7es=

Well I would say one of the group, Mr. A was one of the
gfroup who launched..
You did not may it in this article?--No siz
Idid not, but that's..

And Mr. A, shall we say that he is a listed

Communist, and leave it at that?===That is correct.

In fact, w hen you speak for another man, yau
say just before that "Largely through his efforts and
activities there emerged Transvaal peace council and
now with wider suppori and more representative backing
the South African Feace Council of which he has been

elected Vice-president." So we find the Communiste have a

finger in the pie of the Transvaal Peace Council and the
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South African Peace Council.---They participated in that,

High-sounding names, wonderful sounding names,
ﬁ;t with Communistic interests?=--1 don't know how wonderful
or high sounding the names are - they stand for wh&t they

say. The stand for the maintenance of world peace end
Communists participated in them,

Mr, Bernstein, if you want to resd this to
refresh your memory you mays. 1 am not putting it in as an
exhibit===tell if it is not going in I ..

You can refresh your memory. You don't deny
you wrote that article?--No sir I don't,

My, Bernstein, yvou are a listed Communist?e--
That is correct sir,

5o is your wife?=-=Yes, that is correct,

And according to your bail applicaticn addressed
to this Court you made it perfectly clear that you were
not prepared to have yourname taken off the list of
listed Communids?--Not under the conditions in which it was
offered to me, sir, no.

And your name was listed in the Govermment
LGazatte Extrasordinaxy of the 16th November 19627---That is
very likely sir,

And you are not prepared to have your name
taken off the list of Communists?-=Not on the basis on which
the offer was made.

wWwhat was the basis of the offer7=--That I should
give reasons why my name should not be ind uded on the list,
I requested, or I don't know if 1 requested sir, or I
objected to the fact that no hearing was given to those
pepple who were being subjected to this form of punishment,

that no attempt was being made to provide us with the
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evidence on which the Bovernment was acting, and 1 refused
*to participel= in such a travesty of judicial procedure.

You could of cow se have said "I am not
a Lommunist, because I am simply NOT a Communist and 1 dnnlt
belong te the Lummunist Party™ but you did mt do that,—=-—
The guestion was not whether I belonged, but whethexr I had
belonged prior to 1960 when it had been legal to do so.

You remember yesterday I referred you to an
article..] asked you about the Assegai yesterday, and you
said it was printed in London?-==Mo I th ink that was sbout
the African Communist.

where was the Assegai printed?--My lord, I don't
think I know - I have 2 feeling, I may bte wreng, thet one
of the issues says 'Printed in France! but this is an
impressicn,

And did you ever contribute to it?--Neve:,

Did the South African Communist Party pass on
information to it?--To Acsegaif?

Tes.---1 would not know. I would be very
surprised if it did =o,

Do you know who the editors were?--Only from
what has emerged from correspondence read here in Court,

I prefer to put those documents to another
accused, if he goes into the box, What sbout the African
Lommunist where was that printed?---In Great Britain.

On behalf of?---0On behalf of the South African
Communist Party,

As & quarterly journal?--Yes I think so,

Fho contributed to that journal?-=My lﬁrd.
there are a large number of names of writers listed in it,

Lid you contribute to it7--No sir I did not,

At no stage?--No,
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Right. Having said that - you remember the

_"Fsghting Talk™ I put in yesterday Exhibit 131 where under

the heading "Going down in Blood" you took Mr. Fouche to
task?--Yes.

The Minister of Defence, and you spoke sbout
the large amount of money that he wanted out of the tax
payers in order to contend with the military action which
was being secretly plannedf--=Yes,

I want to zefer you to "The African Communist®
Exhibit R,227, that is the issve for July/August 1962,-=-Yes,

The Fighting Talk I referred to was April 1962,
and this is now July/August 1962, And as it says here, it
is published quarterly in the intemsts of African salidarity
and as a forum for Marxist-Leninist thought throughout our
Continent by the South Afrisan Commonist Party." And we
have an editorial note Fascist South Africa., I just want
to read to you a short passage "The statement issued hy
the Congress Alliance, 50,000 copies of whi h were seized
by the Special Branch of the Police before they could be
distributed to the public, points out that if legal and
peoceful means of siruggle..(quotes)..the people will
turn to methods which are neither legal nor peaceful.

which
"New Age" the fighting peoples! newspaper/for many years
has kept the flag cf frcedom and equality flying in Case
Town, now itself under imminent threat of banning, links
the nEE-Faa:ist legislation with the decision of the
Goverrment te spend R120,000,000 on defence under cover
of a fake scare of l'invasion'!', The Government prepares to
rule on war footingy as has been proved by the history
of despotisms in all countries, this szbotags bill will not

achieve i s object and it will merely steel the opposition

and encourage it to adopt new and better methods of achieving
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its targets. Thow ands of leaflets issued by the South
African Cowmunist Party on the passing uf.Uantar’s new

1&“ are a vivid illustration of what is proclaimed by the-
text itself, that such laws cannot destroy Communism,
because it is true and in the interesis of the people. " Can
you tdl his lordship who wrote that, who conveved that
information to the African Lommunist in Londonf---No my
lord I cannot.

You will agree that in essence it iz in agree-
ment with your article 'going down in blood! in Fighting
Talk of April 1962%--1 think it has much the same point
of view on the subject.

And what is more, the leafiet, The South
African Communist Party, the thousands of leaflets shere
referred to, is the one we discussed yesterday Exhibit
C.0., "Vorster's Nazi Law can Naer Destroy Communism,"==-
fes, that is probably so.

Whilst we are on that - are %jx these the
correct aims of the Communist Farty, the same leaflet
"Down with Nazi Rule, down with White Supremacy, for
Treedom of speech,of movement,of the press, of organisi-
tion for work, land and fiedom, votes for all, power to the
peeple?"--Those are slogans which express in a vay shori
and summary way their aims.

Or as said in Exhibit C,P,1. "The righi to
vote for a share in the Govermment",-=Yes.

"Equal rights and cpportunities, regarcless
of colour"?=--Yes,

"Enough wages or land for a decent life"?==Yes,

"A 1life of dignity, peace and freedom,"--That

is =0,
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Apart from those basic principles, 1 take it
‘the Communist in Russia lives a normal way of life?--=1 am
sorry, I don't follow that question,

hpart from these political ard economic prin-
ciples xuaf for which the Communist Party stands, I take it
the Communist in Russia lives a normal life? He buys his
food in the shops?¥--He certainly does so, yes,

He either owns a house or he rents a house?--
Yes sir,

He pays taxes?=-Yes he does.

And in that regard he has :hﬁnrmal obligations
of any human being in any country?=--0h yes,.

Mow I want to show you another document which
has not been put in. 1 want you first to identify it -
you see this document here? Is that a document issued by
the South Africen Communist Party?--This is wht it says.

This will be EXHIBIT "DM," This is now "A
message to you from the S5.A. Communist Party" and I think
wecan date this document. It must be st least November 1961,
~==That would be so,

Decause it is 44 years after the Socialist
levolution,-~=-That is so.

Which took place November 7th 1917,---Correct,

%0 this & issued not before, possibly after,

~==]t would szem so ws,

Now look what this documert says "For higher
wages, land, freedom, equality, 44 years...(quotes) Socialist
Hevolution, free bread, free public transport, free education,

fres medical services, free holidays, free meals at work -

o rent." Is that a true stetement?=-=iy lord, one has to
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read the following paragraph,which says "Sounds like a
<raam, dussn't it, but that is what Communism is bringing
to the 200,000,000 people of the Soviet Union" and I take
ity sir, that what is said here is not a description of
what octually exists, but of what is coming.

Wihat is comingl--And I think as a description
of what is coming in the Soviet Union it is probably accurate.

Frobably accurate?--Yes,

For whose benefit was this dream issued in
circular form?-=-My lord, apparently for thec public.

For the public. European?=-1 coulo not say sir,
I would have to read the document T see whether it makes
that cluar.

Well I can help you very mmply, If you turn
aver the page you will find, also written in two different
bantu langusges.--=¥Wes that is =0,

len't you agree that this is & wickedly false
representation te corvey to the native people of this
people, telling them that under Socialist rggime you
can gt free bread, free public trensport, free everything?
In fect, zccording to this document, the Government pays

you to livel--My lord, if one reads on a paragraph further
thke n the paragraph I read, it says "In the next 20 years
the Soviet people will be building & Communist society,
and by 1570 they will surpass in production per head of
pﬂpui;tinn the strongest and richest capitalist countroy,
tha United States.m

Yee¥==And it is dealing, as I say, with what
is coming in the Soviet Union, and in my view, probably
accurately.

And what is coming in South Africea, under

Communistic regime?--Very likesly, siz. In the long-distant
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future, yes vezy likzly.

But you know, you donft say it here 'in tle
long distant future' and if a banty reads this, - you know
of course bread is one of his staple foodsi--That is so.

"Fiaoe transport® - transpezt is 2 thing that
he has got to use every day, and you are halding out to him
wonderful »ait?--1 think it iz wonderful bail.

Wanderful bait|--That is so.

And you think this is true¥=-1 think this is
capable of realisaticn, my lord,

dut do you think the bantu, Jim Fish from
rish Hoegk, or John Mhlaba from Pori Elizabeth, or any bantu
for that matter, when he reads that, will understand that
this is something thait is going to happen, not in his life=
time, but in the lifetime of his grest, great, greaty
gandehildrenf---4el 1 it is nt telling him about his lifetime.
It is telling him what is happening in the Soviet Union.
And 1 think it is going te happen wvery likely in his lifetime,

You think it is likely?--Yes.

You see 1 put to you yesierday that in a num=-
ber of documentg the Communist Party has falgificd the
true position, or hzs misrenresented the facts to the
public, and perticularly to dv non-Europecans,.,--1 dispute
that,

Now we can continue where we left off yesterday,

and we were dealing with Exhibit R,61, MNow you have had .

a chance to read this document?--=Could I just sce it again?
You know "The crisis is Deepening" --=Yesl

have ramd that,
Iz that a Communist document or an AJN.C,

documepnt?---My loxd it is not clear to me that it is issued
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by any organisation at all. It could bell be a pergonal
statement that somebody ¥ has used n my opinion,

Alright - but it shows a fair knowledge of
the political pousition in this ccuntry?---Yeg the person
iz fairly well-informed,

well I donpt want to quibble with words again
and argue with you but whoever expressed this vicwpoint
certainly tought of the M,K, az a military wing of the
AsN CT-=May I see it?

Yes sure = I have marked it.,--(Handed ©o the
witness), My lord, in fat the expression used here is
"The Umkonto we 5izwe is what the A.NC. calls the military
wing of the National Liberatory Struggle.”

Yets y===That is the phrasc used here.

Now I want to put to you a simple proposition
arising out of this: will you agree, Hf. Jernstein that
the bantu population of South Africa are in general a very
law-abiding population 7--Yes I think that is so.

And as a rule not given to wviolsnce? Taking
a general cross-sectionf---Not more than most perople,.

The pulicy of the A.N.C. up til 1961 was one
of non-violence?---That is correct,.

And most probably that policy proved attractive
to 2 large number of the 120,000 bantu who are zlleged to
be members of the AJN.C?7--1 should say to all of them sir,
or they-woud not have juined,

Don't you think that if the ALN.C. publicly
came cut with a change cof policy, th& it was ~ow going to
resort io violence, it would lose a goodly percentage of
that membership?--1 think it probably woudl, my lord,

And don't £ you think that this was then juét

a subgterfuge to say that the M.K. was an independent ni;
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ganisation, and had nothing to do with the A.N.C. in
onder to pz=vent z split in the menbership of he A.N.C?7===
iy loxd, you say a subterfuge which implies that in fact
the heM.C. had changed its policy to one of violence?
Yes,.,~=Which 1 have consistently denied here in
the box, Su [ wili not accept that that was a subterfuge.
Right.=-If you mean that the African National
Congress was aware of thz fact that if it itself started
conducting acts of sabotoge it would lose a large proportion
of its members, I have no doubt they were aware of that.
They were aware of that, and therefore it would
be most impolitic to put it at its lowest, for the A.N.C.
expressly to align itself, publicly and openly, with the
acts ¢f sagbotage of the HeK?-=-No I don 't even think that
Tollows.
Youu don't think so7=--=No,
fnd ic that not the reason why we find in
some document they speak of the M.K. as the military wing
of tha AWN,C, and in other documents we find it deleted, or
cxpressed dilferently?--No sir, 1 think the different ex-
prizussions arisc from the Tact that there am different panplu.
writing, thoy am interpreting A.N.C. policy in different
ways, and probably interpreting the phmse "military wing"
i different ways too. 1 don't think they areattempting to

conceal anything.

Alright - 1 don't want to dwell on that document
any further. I wart to deal now with a series of six docu-
ments which I passed over yesterday because they were being
exanined by an expert, and here they are. Exhihit R,40 (Page
292, Mre Hernsiein would you just look at this document in
the meantime - I am not going te deal with it in deteil, I

did that with sccused No. 5. I am going to show you in
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connection with this document the following co=-related

documents, R, 83, R, 84, R 685, R,94, R121B and R,143. Now

I put to you the general prepositien that you personally,

and ] willcome to your document almost immediately after
thiz and the Communist Party purposely misrcpresented con=
ditions in this country to people in this country ond abroad.
—=w=fo I will deny that.

You deny that. Well, we find on page 399
(Red4l) you will find this paragraph "Nc desperation, no
adventurism but firm resolute revoluntionary acficn,
planned onlocal initiative in co-ordination with the
natiogal leadership of the liberation movement headed by
the African Natiomal Congress and its fighting wing the
Unmkonto WeSizwe - this must be the watchword of the Westenb
Cape and all other parts of tge country. This is the
policy of the Communist Party." Correct, or not7--Yes 1
think that is correct,.

You see what it says, "The African Mational
Congress and its fighting wing, the Umkontoc Wesizwa,"==Yes.

And that is the policy of the Comounist Party.
===No gir, the mlicy of the Communist party is nc despemtion,
no adventurism but firm resolute revolutionary action,

And in co-ordination?-=Yes, in co-crdination
with various bodies.

Headed by the African National Congress?e—-
That is correct.

fnd its fighting wing Umkonto Wesizwe.--That
iz what it says.

'This must be the watch®fd. This is the policy
of the Lommunist Party,"--That is riqht.

Now turn for one last reference page 406,

I don't want to dwell on this longer: Now isn't what is
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1t 93E stated in the parayreph beginning with the words "What

dopgs this mean?" 1z that not a shocking misrepresentation

of the truth, the true pesition in this country?---No sir,

I don't think so,

You agreec with it7--- 1 think,..

The refergnce to 'our Courts?! - do ycu think
that is 2 true cxposition of the position?--1 think the
reference to judges who put the preservation of white
supremacy before consideration of justice is farfetched,

For the rest I think it is correct.

'"Points of law and court procedure are thrown
to the winds"-=That is correct =i,

That is correct?--=fbsodutely.

Correct of this case, too7?7---Currect in general
of the South Africancourts, sir, snd of the procedure.

vWhat courts have you in mind then?--My loxd
I had in mind procedure, for instance, which has been adopted
in the “outh African Code recently where points of law
have been thrcwn to the wind, such things 2s for instance
holding a person under duress in order to Torce Fhim to
meka a statement, which he then gives in evidence. 1 think
this is a new point of procedure in South Africa. Such
matters as not releasing a prisoner on the expiration
of %their scntence which is a new point of procedure in
south African law.

o That is what you had in mind here?~-I donf't
know what the writer had in mind sir,

But you are justifying it7--As far as it goes,
wherz it says 'points of law and court procedure? are
being thmown to the winds' I think that is =o,

But as far as the judges, you say that is far-

fetched?--I think that is far-fatched.
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Now when you elaborate that, that is what you
have in mind when you think of points of law and court pro-
ceduref-~lell those are some of the points that come imme-
diate ly to mind, sir.

Have you not yourself personally misrepresented
not only im the legal position in this country but ithe
events in this bery case itself7--1 don't understand what
you mean..about the aents in this case..?

Have you not expressed .. do you remember my
learned friend Mr. Derrange cross-examining Mr, A7 Remembex
thati--Yes I do.

find he suggested Mr. X was tailoring his evi-
cgence to fit in with the State case?=-That iz r ight, that
iz what he aaid.

Do you subseribe to that?--ily loxd, on the
evidence which counsel produced of hic testimony in pre-
vious hearings, compared with his testimony in this casc,
it ceems to me it is guite a reascnable assumplion,

You agrae with it then7--1 think so sir, yes.

Did you ever go further than that7--Ma
personally?

Yes, you personally?--In regard to..7

Witnesses in this case. Have you ever accused
the State of 'coaching its witnesses'?=---1 possibly have
sail:!":i.‘:h_a‘l: S3ir.

In this case---Yues possibly.

Have you accused the police in this casz of
acting improperly?---1 can't recall if I have sir, but I
think it is possible,

\'\nat grounds have you for saying that the

police in this case have acted improperly?---Well my lord,
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I can only refer to the testimony of one police witness
wht himself said here under ovath that whnen you have a 20
day ¢ etainee, ond you want to get a statement cut of him,
you tell himwhat you know are the facts, and then he con-
firms them,

Then he confirms them?--that is whatl he mid yes.

fnd he confirms itT=-=i/ell he says this is the
cnly way you can get astatement out of & detainee, is when
you tell him what you know, and then you put it to him
like =<hat,

ind if the detainee denies it, are you suggest-
ing that the pulice then force him to agree?--Ro they just
xesp b adgering him,

until he syreesi--=Possibly until ke agrees,
or pussibly they give up at scme stage.

Any other examples of improper behesviour by
the polica in this casei---1 am not sure that T can call
gy to e mind right now.a

You say you might have said that the 3tate
coached witnesses?--1 might havs.

That is a reflection then on the ttate prose-
cutors?-=-1 am afreid so sir.

Have wou any evidence to support that wicked
suggestion?=-My lord, we did have one incident here in Court.
I den't kngw if I am forced to deal with this question, sir,

It affects your eredibility%--%Well I would
like his lordship to tell me whether this is all strictly
relevant to the case?

BY THE COURT:
It ie a relevant guestion, Mr, Dernstein, You

can answer it .,

YUITNESS: Well my lord we did have cez case of a witness
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who testified here on friday afterncon, who went away

for the weekend, who ceme back on Monday morning, was asked
precisely the same questions he h ad been asked on Friday
afternoon, and gave different answers, from which I deduced
that some coaching had taken place over the weekend.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DR, YUTAR (CONTINUBD):
Who is that witness?=-1 am afraid that 1

can't recall,

That was a witness where we were having a cer-
tain measure of difficulty with the interpreter?--That is so,

But you don't ascribe it then to the difficulty
of interpretation, you say directly that the witness was
coached?--Well that is my deduction.

That is wur deductiof---Yes.

Any other instances of witnesses coached?---
I an not sure that I can recall any others sir,

But notwithstanding that, you make these
wild statements?---Well I could have made these suggestions.
It is possible.

Did you ever say'apart from police esvidence
and documents, all the substantial witnesses OTHER than
people who gave purely technical evidence, about for example
who bought a partialar car, etc. ALL the substantial
witnesses have been d etainees who made ststements under
pressure and while subject to detention and solitary
confinement, and subject certainly to thraats of either
indefinite detention or prosecution or both?' Did you
make that statement-==Yes I did sir.

Is it true or false?--1 think it is probably
true sir,

Youthink it is true - vhat have you to spport it?

--=My lord, most of t he witnesses have testified here that
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they are 950 day detainees.

Most of them?-~-Most of the substantial ones,
iet me put it that way.

I am sorry that 1 am being diverted from my
Exhibit 40, but I want to put this to you now at this s tage:
do you know how many witnesses the State led in this case?
--No sir,

Any idea,--=No sir,

Well the number is 173.--Yes.

Do you know how many of those were detainess
under the 90 day lawi--No sir.

Any ideg?===MNo sir,

What makes you say then that substantially
ALL the substantial witnesses have been detainees?--My lord
a large number of the witnesses in t his c ase lave been giving
what I regard as purely technical evidence, that an ex-
plosion took place, that a motorcar was bought, that an
invoice was written out - this sort of thing, I don't doubg
that the majority of the witnesses were not 90 day detainees.

You say ALL the substant ial witnesses have keen
detainees.---Well that is my understanding of a substantial
witness, a person who is testifying nut'juat to some purely
technical formalitys

I will give you figures now = of the 173 who
were witnesses for the State, 29 were detained under the 90
day detention - 29, Of the 29, now comes the process of
elimination, 8 came.,.consisted of the bantu staff at
Rivonia. I need not mention their names, we know who they
are7=-=Yes,.

Was any suggestion made to them that they were

threatened?--My lord one of them testified here under oath

that he was assaulted,.
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That is right. One of them offered that after-
wards, and you heard his lordship ask me to investigate, and
you heard what I told his lordship in open Court.-=I did sir.

Was anyone of those asked, and that was my
guestion, whether they had b een coerced or threatened to
give particular evidence?--1 don't know if they were or not,

Right, 1Is it not a fact that the defence have,
substantially, admitted their evidence?--Yes. That is so in
large part. |

50 we take away B. There asre the two witnesses
Emily Sebone and Eva Hlnngwénu, the two female witnesses from
Mountain View. Has it ﬁuur been suggested to them that
they were threatened or coerced to give f alse evidence?--

I am not aure, sir., 1 dn't remember.

Right. And in point of fact has the defence
not agreed with their evidence, again, substantially as to
who stayed & Mountain View and what happend?--=Yes I think
it has. |

That makes 10. Now two others, Balph Sepple,
the elerk in Attorney Furman's office and Ronald First -
you r emember those two gentlemeni--1 do,

Two Eurocpeans?--Yes.

Was it ever suggested to them that they were
forced by the police or coerced by the police to give f alse
evidence?--]1 am not sure, sir., I don't remnember,

== Well if you can't remember, then it s atisfies
me because his lordship has the record. I can tell you
now that no such suggestion was sver put.tn them 7=-That
may be so,

Right. Then we have this old lady Florence

Ntombela - you remember her?--1 do sir.

She was an active member of t he A:N.C, a very
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active member, and it was never suggested to her that she
‘had been forced or coerced by the police, or coached by the
State.-==I don't know whether it was or not, my lord. Her
evidence was c ertainly contested by the paiizmx defence.

Yes = she denied it7-~Yes.

It was contested to this extent, that she said
Gis ulu said that the young must now hold parties to raide
money , the young must now carry out instroctions and burn
down post offices and reilway staetions., =---Yes.

And lombs. So we will put her down on the
list., You romember the witness Alfred Jantjies7==Yes =r.

This man whe went across the border and gave
his lordship a detailed study of what training he underwent?
-=Yes I do.

He was not even cross-examined7?=-=That may be
so sir.

Right, we will put him down on the list., And
. you remember hix compatriot Isak Rani, who gave the same
evidence, and who was hardly cross-examined at all - at
any rate, no such suggestion made, right7--=Yes.

Then we got Cyril Davids, who dealt with the
Mamre Camp. He was cross-examimed but it was never suggestead
to him that he was forced to give the evidence he gave?---
1 don't think t here is evidence thet either Rgni or Jantjies
were 90 day detainees.

Uh yes. I am giving you an accume list
aof the 29 detainees.--=-Sorry sir.

Now Cyril Dawvids, he was another 90 day detainee.
He spoke about the Manre Camp?=-=Yes he did.

It was suggested to him that this was a spirit-

val and health camp.--I1twaes not suggested to him - he said it.

That is vnat he was told?7--He s aid that is what
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the camp was for when he was told what the camp was for,

That was suggested to him by Mzr. Berrangu.-—;
1 dont't think that is so sir.

Wwell I can tell you that definitely. MNow he
was corroborated completely by a man called Caswell = do
you remember Caseell?--Yes I do sir.

Caswoll, much to the surpirse of my learned
friend, said he had never been detained under the 90 days?-=-
Yes.

So we can rule out Cyril Davids?--Rule him out
from what sirc?

From being forced to give false evidence, or
being coerced?---1 won't accept that sir.

why not7=-~Because he was held as a 90 day
detainee, and his s tatement vaxis waes taken from him under
conditions which I regard ss conditions of torture.

Of torture?=--Yes, having suffered it}

That does not happen in Soviet Russia7?7--1 am
not discussing that question sir. If you want my des-
cription of Soviet Russia, I will deal with it. I consider
these conditions as torture.

You know of course that this one professor
Danziger (7) gave mixm evidence in Cape Town?7--Yeos I
undanfanﬁ 50,

Now we come to Essop Suliman - he was aso
another 90 day deteines7-~That is so.

And he in effect, I won't go into details,
spoke about the conveyance of over 300 recruits across the
border.~=Yes.

That has been accepted by the defence?=-f I
don't think a word of what Essop Suliman said has been

accep ted by smybody sir.



- 178 - ACCUSED No, 6,

Oh?=--As far as I am aware.

In fact has it not been admitted by your co=-
accused that recrud ts were conveyed across the border7—--

Yes sir, but I don't think the dates, the grangement, the
payment or anything e lse testified to by Essop were accepted.

I &m talking about the recruits?---The mere
fact that recruits were carried anfnsa the border by Eseop
has been accep ted.

That is all I want! You remember Harry Bambane,
that is a recruit vho is srving a two year sentence. It was
never suggested to him - that he has been either coached by
the 5tate prosecutor, or forced by the Police to give
false evidence.---That may be so ) I can't besure.

MR, BERRANGE: My lord, my learned friend is complkly wrong,
1 don't krnow where he gets this evidence from - it was in
fact suggested that he changed his evidence threestimes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DR, YUTAR (CONTINUED);

You know Mr, X7=-=-Yes.

You heard what he told his lordship?--1 did sir,

That he decided, before he had been even
arrested, let alone detained, to come out with the whole
truth?-~Yes I heard him say that.

Are you now suggesting t hat he was tortured
to give th e evidence he did7-=No Idid not say that.

Or coactdl by the State?--My lord, as to
whether-he was coached or not , 1 did not specify tht he
was coahed. I think his evidence is subject to a great deal
of EUEPiE%DH.

I am not denying it, but I am dealing now with
the allegation that evidence was forced out of him as a re-
sult of detention?-=No ] don't think in his cess, according

to his evidence he gave it voluntarily.
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And what about Abel Mtembu, Mr., Z7 Was he
not in the seme position?--My lord, he is a man who was not
only ddained, he was detained, released and re-detained, and
then he gave his evidence. I think his is open to grave
suspicion,

And you know why he was redetined? He gave
his statement the moment Mr. X pointed him out to the
Policpf===That may be so.

You remember this old bantu man, the herbalist?
~-==Yes I do,

He was detained?--He was.

He is a relatie of accused No. 97--He is sir.

It was never suggemted to him that he .had been
forced to give the evidence he did7?==1 am not sure about
that, I am not quite clear, but I think his evidence is
very seriously contested by the defence.

Oh yes? Of coursel! Because he gavemst
important evidence, that No. 9 brought dynamite to his
garage on three occasiona,and buried it7-=That is so.

But I am talking about - do you suggest he was
coached by the State Prosecutors? that he was improperly
forced by the police to give evidence?--My lord I have made
it quite c lear that I say that every detainee who gives
his statement under dﬂrasa and conditions which 1 regard
as torture is being forced to make & statement, end his
statﬂﬁ;nf is subject to suspicion, 1 have dealt with
one case in which I think that there was clear evidence in
this court that maching was taking place by somebody.

By somebody?---By somebody.

1t could only be by the state prosecutors?--

Or by the police.
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But you have got nothing to substantiate that?
———=No I am drawing a deduction from the evidence in this
Court,

You remembesr the witness Feter Mvombu who
testified to the commission of two acts of sabotage?==Yes.

Do you think he was forced to say that he
commited two acts of sabotage and not one?--My lord he was
eithe forced or induced or he was persuaded by some fantasy
but it was shown in court here that he made three different
statements about the aame s ubject, all under vath, at
dif ferent times.

So the police must have been awfully inefficient
in forcing him to make one s tatement - they got 3 different
statements out of himl|--=~Yes, and t hey have 1l ed all three
in evidencel

We are left now with S..no 7. Luf me get
another two out of the way. Dondashe Noerman and Petexr
reyise, Member those two gentlemen spoke about a conference
in Luhatai?--fas.

Did such a conference take plade?--1t did,

They say that Oliver Tembo was there. Was he
there?--1 understand he was.

They say accused No. 4 was there - was he thera?.

-==] understand he was, yes.

They say both these speakers, and they were
only sked about both these speskers, said that recruits
were obtained in South Africa and sent across the border
for training?-=-They did.

Has that been admitted by the defence?--My
lord I don't know whether it is admitted by the defence

that that was discussed at Lobatsi, but if you are talking
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about these two witnesses, they are both testifying my
lord to a conference which lasted two days.

Yes?=-=-They were both extensively cross-
egxamined by the defence if they remember any other single
fact in these two days other than this one factor which both
of them testify to, and neither of them remembered another
single thing.

But was it not an important item on the agenda,
themeruiting of r ecruits?===1 have no idea s all sir,

No diea Jdea?--No,

And to & raw bentu that would be an impor tant
thing wouldn't it 7--My lord, to anybody it seems to me
renmarkable that his memory of a/d two day conference is
precisely the same as the memory of the next witness of a
2 day conference.

And because of that are you aggesting that the
Folice coachd them?--1 am suggesting that somebody per-
suaded them that this is what happened.

Now of the 29 then who were detained I have
eliminated 24 and we are left with the following 5: Bennet
Mashiane, Reginald Mduli, let us take those two just for
a moment, Is it not a fact that learned counsel have been
guoting t hse twﬁ peocple, and saying that acts of sabotage
were never discussed at the meetings of the A.N.C7-=1
think that is so.

- 5¢ if the police were forecing them to make
statements to suit the police, they were singly inefficient
in not getting them to say that acts ofxma sabotage were
in fact &iscuasud at the A.N.C. meetings?=--That is =&
deduction you are making, I am nui. |

You den't want to choose that dedution, you

want to choase the reversel And finally we are left with now
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7 witnesses of the 29 detainees, and they are John Tshingane,
the taxi driver, and the two Nkikelanes, Zizi and Sikumbuzo -
who, between

/ the three of them testified to totally different facets of
this case, from the Eastern Province?--=I think these are the
38% witnesses of whom the police officer said that their
statements were got from them by telling them what he knaw.
1 think these were the three.

One of them.--0r one of them,

Card. And despite what I hae done now, the
analysis 1 have made, you still say that"all the subetamtial
witnesses hae been detainees who made statements under
presure, and while subject to detention in solitary confine-
ment, and subject certainly to threats about indefinite
detention, or prosecution, or both? Their behaviour runs
complet ely according to pattern. All of them have lied or
distorted or fabricated their evidence to a greater or
lesser extent, some cunningly exculpating or hiding their
own part in the events, some not." Is that a fair and
honest description of events in this cese?--=That is my
summary my lord., Other people might differ with me.

And you s tick to it7=-Yes it is still my
opinion,

Tou s tick to itY And you go on to say this:

OURT:

What ducument are you referring to now?
DR, YUTAR-{to the witness)

You wrote this letter didn't you?--=1 did.
DR, YUTAR {Fu the Court)

I am referring to a letter my lord which this
witness wrote to two other people on the Bth February 1964

' (to witness)

and it has not been put in my lord, /I don't waht to em-

barrass anybody and say to whom you wrote it,
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THE WITNESS:

Well perhaps you should embarrass people, sir,
and say how you came into possession of the letter.

DR, YUTAR (Continued)

Yes = you know perfectly welll|===I know sir,

It was interceptedly the geol authorities, to whom it was
handed for censoring.

Yes! There is nothing wrong with tha£ - all letten
are censored?---That is right.

And t his is what you go on to say "So this
is now patently X the basis of operatiocons. You arrest
a man, hold him in solitary confinement, tell him that he will
be held indefinitely unless he answers satisfactorily -
that is the key word, and tell himvhat he knows are the
right facts, and just keep at it until he answers satis-
factorily." Is that a correct description of what
occumsd in this case?---1 think it is a correct description
of what occurs to 90 day detainees.

I am talking about witnesses in this cagg7=-—-
Those who were 90 day detainees, I think that isuery
likely what happened.

And t hen you go on to say, pay me this compli-
ment: "Here too Vernon did a great job exposing this very
patent, blatant is a better word, coachingof witnesses."

How dare you say that if you have got nothing to support it?
===My loxrd, I have explained the case on which I think
it is an adequate statement.

You think so, and you could only quote one
case?—-Th;t is the case 1 am quoting.

The witness where we had difficulty with inter-

preting?--That is so,
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And one final extract from this letter "And
yet the whole thing disgusts me, the unprincipledtimidity
of people and even the more unprincipled willingness,
gagerneas, of the authorities to use them."---Yes,.

You adhere to that 7=-=] adhere to #at.

That is a condemnation of course not only of the
investigating officer buff also of the State prosecutors in
this case?-=It is a condemnation of the State,sir, which
has provided facilities for witnesses statements to be
taken from them under duress.

Have you told your friends overseas, to whom,,
information this was, most probably for publication ,.-=It
was not at all ©r pubdication my lord, and there is
no possible suggestion that it was.

Nol==Not at all sir.

Did you tell your good friends across the
border that the defence have in fact admitted the major part
of the State case in this case?--My lord..

Have you done that?===1 have only written one
letter dealing with this cese at all, my lord, and that is
the one, and it has been stopped by the gaol authorities.

I have not written anything e lse about this case.

But in this letter did you tell them that
the defence was in effect admitting the major portion of the
State cese?--1 cant recall if 1 dd or not.

Well 1 can tell you, no, end I can show you
the letter, and did you perheps tell your friends overseas
that the documents in this case supported the evidence ina
large measure, even of the 90 day detainees?--My lord py

friends overseas read the newspapers, thay see what the
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evidence is and what iz being admitted.

Yas - it all depends what newspapers they
raaé doesn’®t it?---1 take it that all newspapers which
report the proceedings, report the proceedings sir.

Now let us carry on, I am not going to reag

anymore from Exhibit 40, and I show you Exhibit R83, in support
Whose handwriting is that, Mz. Bernstein? Do you know the |
handwriting?--No my lord, I can't identify the handwriting.

Do you know a man called Hoowitz, Cape Town7---
Yes I do.

| He is an a::hitect?--ras = he is no longer in

Cape Town. ”

He was in Cape Town?7--He wss in Cape town,

An architect7--Yes,

lg that his handwriting---It i possible, my
lox, I just don't know,.

Exhibit RB4 - dyou know whose handwriting this

is?--No my lord,

It may be ihe same personT=-Well that
is possible.

find then R,B5- do you koow that handwriting?
~-My lord they all appear to me tc be the same handwriting,
but I could be wrong about that.

In fact you are right, because that is the view of
the expert - I can't cell him now., And by the way, who is
frchip?---1 don't know my lord.

You speak of an ArchHe 4in this letter of yours,
don 't you?--0h that is possible, if that is the Archie you

Belt D4E. are refﬂrriﬁg to. It would be Mz, ARchf% Levdtan.

Archie Levitan?=-Yes.

who is he?=<He is an old friend of mine.

What ars his political colours?--=Reddish sir,
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Because we have some documents which we found
in the coealshed with Archie's name on top.---Well it might
or Might naot refer to him.

Uo you know any other Archie?--I know several,
sir, yes.

Whae? We know Archie Levitan, he is Red in

colour, political colour. Yes, what other Archie do you know?

==1 know a men called Archie Dumede in Natal, I know an
Archie Sibeko in Cape Tawn.

hed in ecolour too7--1 think they were probebly
supporters of the African National Com ress.

Ee24, that is & typed document = do you know
whose handwriting appears there on top?=--0n the document?

No the covering letter,---This here?

Yes.-=That is my handwriting.

Mr. Bernstein, you know what gquestions I am
going ic ask you on this,--I am not sure if I do,

That is yur handwriting. MNow you write # ere
"Have made a few nutes on the first copy. Will be back for
lunch 1.20 approximately." ---Be back approx. l.20,

Wwho is Ed7==-That is the name that I use on
vccasions sir,

Eddy?--That is right.

That of course is known to Sisulu isn't it7--

I very much doubt it my lord.

Who is Ethel? Who is Tony?--I am not prepared to

Sy

apswer that guestion sir?
And who is Ethel7--Likewise.
You are not prepared to answer those questions?
-=ko sir,
Who gave you this document 'Into 19631'7==Isz that
the document attached?

Yes, It is R,94, and it is headed "Intoc 1963,
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===kho gave you this document?====My lord, I am not clear

if gnybody gave me this document, becsuse although the first
.+the note says "I have made a few notes on first copy"
the notes that are in fact m ade on this document are not
my notes at all. These are not my notes at all,
Well leook at pmp 3 - whose handwriting is thd?
Page 3 in the column?==I think it is # the mame handwriting
as the documents ypu have just given me =r.
That is right. And on page 4, the word "Security "7
-~=It lecoks as though it is alsc probably the same.
Now what document was given to you ¢ if itis not
this? That is how it was found in the coalshed?--My lod
I really cannot remember what document this refers to where
I say "Have made a few notes on the first onel.
Well it is possible that there was another
copy of it attached, and youmade your notes on that?==It is
possible sir. 1 just can't remember what document..
HBut it is attached revertheless to this docu-
ment?--Yes it is.
Now here 1 just want to read two very short
extrazts, page 5 (page 611). Faragraph xxix: "Umkonto
we Fizwe, This organisation sssumes prime importance in
such a time as this when the pepple are turning to direct
and wvivlent forms of struggle, seeking for leadership in
su:h a struggle, and when violent upheavals are imminent,
Thus far Umkonto has to some extent stood spart from the
general political movement, conducting its activities of
s abotage in a way which did not closely and directly
link these acts with the political organising and agitation
of the rest of the liberation movement, Just as the
people's movement does not stand still, but advances con-

stantly to new struggles and new fields of action, so
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Unkonto cznnot stand still in the position it now holds.™
Correct, Mr.Bernstein?---1 am not sure if I understand it
at all, sir.

There are no corrections madel--No the sense
of it rather,.Il don't understand whet the meaning is sn.

I could not really say if it is correct or not.

Vould you like time to consider it, because I
want to read toc you the next paragraph, and then the
summing up on the next p age--tell I think if you want me
to comment on it I will hae to read the document. I can't
understand the sense of it

But now let us make it perfectly clear - can
you indicate to the Court when Tony akked you to go over
this.."please run over this redraft in the meantime." It
is obvious thatsomebcdy had drafted it, it had been redrafted,
and you were essked to cast your eyes over it,---That is |
apparent, sir, from the note.

‘nd can you recall having cast your eye, or
run over such a redraft?-~0f this document?

Yes?--Not that I can recsll my lord.

Ie it possible?--It is possile yes, I can't
recall it now.

I would like you to read peragraphs xxix and
#xax, and then the lest page, particularly the summing up.
—==] will du tht gir.

.nnd now finally I want to put it to you that

all these documents I have put to you so far, Exhiit R, 40,

R,083, RB4, REJ and R94 is the one we are dealing with,

aBe compilation
ix drafts which culminated in the final ssmpsiiakian of

Exhibit 121B, You can check on th&, You can perhaps do
that at ledisure?--Yes I think that better.

You will find it deals with the same subject
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matter, higher wages, the pass laws, into 1963 - some of
the words are even the same, as that document I have given

you, Exhibit R,121B - that was found at Rivonia, and Mr.

Dirker said he roneced it from a wax sheet found over there,

and the identicial copy of it, Esh ibit R,143 ¥ was found in

Goldreich's motorcarw--These that you say are drafts of
this document, how far back do they go? Do they include
R.4C7%

Yes, starting with R.40, and you can has the
whole series. And not only was this found in Goldreich's
motorcar but it was also recovered in Natal, the identical
COpY. Can you recall when Tony asked you to cast your
@zue over these documents?--1 can't my lord. It would be
sometime in the seccnd half of 1962 to 1963 - I could not
say when,

In fact youoften did this sort of work at the
request of people whose names you are not prepared to
divulge?-=] did a lot of this sort of thing.

Because you wereregarded as & propaganda expert?
-==No I would not say that, my lord. I was regarded as
one of the writers in the movement.

And you knew the facts of the case so well
that you were asked to check £ #e drafts?=-And make
comments, yes.

And if necessary delete anything which was

false or :Eﬁng?———ﬂr which I did not agree with.

AT _TH1S STAGE THE COURT AD.J URNS,

Ul RESUMING AT 11,30 i .

CRUSS-EXAMINATIGN B¢ DR, YUTAR (CONTIMUED):

Well Mr, Bermstein, you have had & chance now

of going through this set of Exhibits?--Yes sir,
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Now paragraph xxix, is it not clear to you
what it means?---That is of R94 is itP---

Rg94 - is it not clear to you now what paragraph
x ®ix meansT--My lord, when I read it together with the
following paragraph, it seems to me to be saying that what
Unkonto should be doing is that it should be co-ordinating
its activities very closely with such things as for instance
the struggle against the pass laws end against bantu
authorities.

Right. Well, we have read paragraph xxix,

I would like to get paragraph xxx on record in these words:

"In the main,focal points of political struggle during the
coming period - the fight ageinst the pass laws and the fight
against Bantu authorities - the work of the Umkonto groups
needs to be closely co-ordinated with the work cf the
liberation movement, In the types of activities derived
above" is that right?---4ell it seems to hae bean amended
to say "described",

"described sbove in both the pass and Bantu
Authorities cmmpaigre, Unkonto units can be a towar of
strength and a source of inspiraticn tn the pecple. Dis-
ciplined, effective and determined actions by Umkcnto designes
to bolster and support the peoples political struggles can
@lso serve to heed off reckless and degperate s chemes of
e Pogo type and give the whole people an important object
lesson in_HuQ to fight, not to use violence, not for its
own s ake snd blindly, but for the cause of liberation
and as a part of the liberation struggle.” I notice I
have marked part of the following paragrash, which is
terribly importent Mr, Bernstain, you have read this too?

-==Yes 1 have.
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It is paragraph xxxi: "Umkonto's aim is the aim

of tBe liberation movement -~ the overthrow of the state of
white supremacy. That aim, as has all along been undemstood,
cannot be achieved thgrough acts of sebotage, however help-
ful such ascts might be in raising the moraleof the p;anpla,
and unkrmining the confidence o f tha snemies, Ultimately
the aim of Umkontoc will have to be reached by the turn from
sabotage alone to the mounting o¢f a full-time armed struggle
@ainst the forces of the state, Such a turn dows not take
place accourding to a timetable of Umkonto's leadership.
It tekes place according to the tempo of development of the
struggle, and in a8 way and at a time determined by the course
of our history. 1t is apparent that present developments
in the South African situation may well proceed faster than
Umkonto 's p lanning, and burst out in dir ections not con-
templated at present by us, It is thus necessary for
Unkonto to advance speedily with its preparations for full-
time armed military operations against the goernment, and
at the same time to be ready to seize unexpected unforseen
opportunities for entering on such struggles which might
arise in the course of political campaigns.

To Sum Up: we are approaching a period filled
with revolutionary possibilities, in which new militant
and viclent forms uf peoples siruggles become possible and
likely" And it continues toam up, I am not going to
read it ail. and the lastone "The direction of Umkonto's
woIrk must be designed tou merge with and complement the
political struyggles cf the people, inpreparation for the
estublismment of a fulle-~time pecples armed force for
liberaticn.," Can I just sdum up Mr Bernstein by saying

that these documents that I have shown you, Exhidts 40, R,B3,
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R.B4, RBS, RS have culminated in Bhibit 121B "The Revolution-
ary-Way out" a statement by the Central Committee of the
South African Communist Party?--=That appears to be the
position, my lord.
DR, YUTAR (to the Couxrt)

My lord, afier considerstion, very deep con-
sikration, in view of certain legsl difficulties which I
need not put now, I am obliged to put in the two exhibits
I referred to this worning. One is "The Fighting Talk"
September 1953, an article by L.B. (Exhibit D,N,) It
deals with the formation of the Congress of Democrats, and
article by yourself, Mr. Bernsdtein.--WITNESS: Yes siz.
(to witness) And tien my lord the letter which I have raferred
to, Exhibit + 8 letter by L. Bernstein, yourself?--That
is so, sir,

To two parties staying in London?7--In London,

The address is given here, Exhibit D.O,
Now Mr. Bernstein, I think we can very quickly go through -
what is left. The next one I want to deal with is
Exhibit R,92, (page 596 in the third volume). Mr, Bernstein
this is another Communistic document, atleast, to put it
more correctly, another document of the Communist Faty
of South Africa?--1 think that is so,.

Headed "The new Year, some Taks and Per spectives™
In the second paragraph it refers to the new Frogramme
of the Soviet Union which was adopted at the 22nd CONQgrEess
held in October 1961." 1Is that right?--iaa-

And we have got Exhibits desling with that
congress,including the speech by Mr, K7--That is correct,

Not accused No, 5 this time7--No.

And now we come to page 598 and that is paragraph

J and it is headed "Some local problems.” "The mecent period
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in South Africa has had the appearance of comparative

calm without any major mass struggle. Already last May

in ;umming up the experience of May 31lst the Geneml Strike

we recognised tha t a combination of overwhelming force

and emergency rule by Government had brought the legal

mass movement to a turning point in its hiﬁtﬂry. We recognised
then that the prospects of legal mass actions were growing
more and more remote, and that the way forwsrd lies through
illegal actions cf both a8 non-violent anda vidlent character.
Since then illegal actions of a new type, acts of political
sabntage against the Sovernment and its installations

have tkeen carried out in different parts of the country.

The most widespread, coordinated khe and planned of these
actions have b een c arried out under the direction of the

new organisation which has come into being Umkonto We Sizwe."
That speaks for itself, not su?=-Yes I think it does, sir.

Clearly)--Yes,

No doubt sbout thatl Miss out the next paragraph
and I will just read the first part of paragraph 6., "In
political statements in the past we have curselves pointed
out that in the conditions Exiating in Zouth Africa the
liberation movement dare not assume that the struggle canl
necessarily be won by non-viocleni tactice. Government
policy makes it i ncreasingly likely that in the long Tun
the liberation movementi will have tu resort to arms against
the Government. It is for this reason that we welcome the
appearance of Umkonto. We mgard it as a valuable weapon to
supplement the work of mass sgitation at present and also
8 valusble field for the training of militant liberation
fighters in the techniques of armad'ntrugglu which they

may well have to carry out in the future,® May 1 stop

there, Mr, Bermstein, and jwu t point out to you thatthe
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liberation fighters are not used in the s ame context
inmﬂinh the liberation fighters was used in the treason
triel?---1 am afraid I amnot following you sir, I don't
see those diberation fighters heref?

Oh yes they arel "The training of militant
liberation fighters! ===Ch. |

Have you gut thatT==Yes,.

Used in this document, it assumes gquite a
different connotation tc thati which spplied to that phrase
during the treason trial and up to the treason trialf=--
well it says quite clearly,sir, this is a new field, they
will be teught the techniques of armed struggle.

That is right. Now page 599, you will find
the last portion of paragraph 6, "Unkonto's Manifesto
stetes that it will act under the general inspiration and
in accordance with the line of policy ef the established
national liberation allisnce." In brackets, may I say
that included the Communist Porty.---wWell it is a rather
odd phrase sir, I have never used it used, the national
liberation alliance. I think it probably does include
the Communist Party.

Well it is the sam=2 as the naticnal liberation
novement?--Yes I think that is vhat it means.

"It is correct end sghould do so, It is in
vur viewelwasys bad for the control of political decisions
tu be in-the hands of military leaders selected less for
their political than their military ebility. Umkonto is
noi @ substitute for the established m ass political organi-
gsations + It isaspecialised organ for a specific and
liniited purpose." Mr, Bernstein is it not a fact that
according to thie document of the Communist Party, the M,K.

was established to commit acts of sabotage, under the
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guidance and direction of the National Liberastion movement,
from whom it had to receive its instructions in the political
fi;ld?—-—when you say under the dir ection, sir, I would not
say that., Under the guidance, certainly, ves.

And if the Netional liberstion movement said
to the Umkonto's leaders "icw I don't think you should
atteck the old Synagagoe where the trason trial was held,
where sccused Ng. 1 was tried for political reassons" then
MeK. would listen to it?--~I think it probably woudd sir,
although t here is no legal cbligationon it to do sa.

tnd if conversely the political leaders of
the Netional liberation movement said to the M.K. military
leaders "From the political psychological point of view,
it would be desirable that you blow up the o0ld synagogue,
the gmbol of apartheid and oppression” then it would so do?
--=Very likaly sir yes,

Faragraph 7, just the fimst two lines: "™We are
in full agreement with the need for these new methods to
supplement and inspire our traditionsl methods of mass
action.” 1 am leaving out the rest for no other resson
thoan that I want to get on, and likefwise the first 3
lines of paragraph E. OCh 1 am sorry, I missed that ene
part in paragraph 7, the lines beginning wilh the word
"Naturally." "Wdturally our units will be interested in
discussing the part which Umkonto plays in relation to
the main pulitical problems of the country."---Yas.

And then 3 lines in paragraph B "Thers are

that
signs/in our recent activities our whole organisation hag
tended to focus too much of its attention on discussion of

political mbotage and too little on the developmant af

Our mass poliiical work." 1Is that not an admissbn that
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up to this time when this document was drawn, the
fwnmunist Party was saying, eccording to the adthor of
this document, Ytoo much attention to oolitical sabotage,
and toc littles attention, by comparison, to mass political
work"?-==kell, if you mean too much attention to committing
acts of pclitical sabotage, it does nct s ay that, sir,
and I don't think it sven suggests it.

Well, what wre the discussions then of
political sabotage, if not perheps selection of tergets?

~==My lord, this is a matter of speculatien, and I cannot

answer that gquestion,

CONTINUED ON PGE 197,
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"~y

L.G. BERNSTEIN.

No. Well, L shall argue sbout ft. I think 1%t s
all I need to worry about that concerns you sbout this document.
You can go on now. ©2. The next one 18 85, my Lord, page 6l4
This 18 a lengthy document, I don't propose to read a single
portifon of 1t except the hanﬁing- It 18 entitled "4 Syllabus
on fundamental prineiples of Marxisin for advanced YCL educaticon
and for party branch members." Here 1t 1s R.95. And then 1t
deals with contents under qulet sessions, not so? -~=~ Yes, that
fa correct.

Apother dooument drawn up by the Communist Party? -—
My Lord, I couldn't say that. 1 don't know whom it 1s drawn up

by unless I read it. '

Well, syllabus on the fundamental prinetples of
Marxtsin, that's your philosophy? -—- That's the International
philosophy of Communfsm. '

For advanced YCL, what does that stand for? =-- Young
Communiat League.

Young Communist League education and for party branal:
classes? -—— Yes.
BY THE CQURT 2O DR. YuTAR: Is there any date on this doeument?
=== No, my Lord, I was gning-tu ask the witness that.
MR. BERNSTEIN: My Lord, I don't doubt that it is drawn up by
somebody somewhere in the Communist movement. Whether it 18 a

South Afrfcan document or not I just can't say unless 1 read it.
That I don't know. +

OROSS-EXAMINATION BY DR. YUTAR (OOWTD.) Well, just take the
heading then. 'HY storical materialism, ﬂl.P!tlliIll,.. development
of capitalism to the stage of fmperialfam, scefalism, communisnm
the transition to scotalism. All subjeets very near and dear
to the hearts of Communiats? =-~ Yes. 4 Communist just any
where in the world, that 1s the point I'm making.
Well, that was found at Rivonia. Have you ever seen
that dn?umant before? =-— No, my Lord, I donft think I have.

£l
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.LG. BERNSTEIN.

You don't think you have. So you can't tell us where
1t was drawn up? === [efther when nor where, sir.

But the purpose, of course, speaks for Ttself. The
head!ng makes that clear? =-—= Yes

All right then. Now,96 13 the next one, page €38.
No, that we have dealt with already. 96, that 15 a copy of
EXHIBLIT 35. We dealt with that yesterday? =-- Yes, we dealt
with that yesterday.

" we need not delay fn that at all now. R.P6 1t
corresponds to R.35. EXHIBIT R.105. Now, Mr. Bernatein, R10S,
that 1s the rules as rev!sed by the sixth Natfonal Conference,
aud 1t '3 the constitution of the Communist Party South Africe?
Pifteen coptes hereof was found at Rivonta? --— Yes, my Lord, I
think that 18 so. )

Yes. That deals with membership, organ!sation,
conffdence due to the Central Commfttee, the District Committes

funds and discipline? ---= Yes, sair,

We need not delay on that then. It apeaks for i1tself,
not 80? === Yes, I think 4t does from what I see here,

And then 121(a) page 650. You will resall this is &
dooument ent?tled the Central Commfttee of the South African
Communt st Party. Mr.Dirker told his Lﬂrdﬂh!p that thias was
ronsod from a wax sheet which he found at Rivonia in the fourth
room. That documsnt too speaks for ftself? ~—- That'a right.

Now, doesn't this document rfng a bell? === In what
respect?

Who drew 1t up? =—= No, that I couldn't answer, sir.
It Ippﬂl?lwiﬁ be a raualutiun_frum the furm of 1%, I would asay.

It deals with the dfspute between China and Indla,
you were régarﬂad as the expert on 1t7 —== Yes, 1t deals with
the dispute between Chfna and India.

It deals with the People's Republic of China, Asian
African unity, unity between Communist and non Communist and

the second last paragraph: "It further direets all members to
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do thelr ulmost Lo see that the Natfonal Liberation Movement
and ybrklng Clasges Movement tn South Aprica throw 1ts full
tnfluence fnto the task of securing a apeedy negotiate settle-
ment 1n the caunse of world peace for Afro Asfan .. in the
liberation of South Aerfoa from white domination.” Can't you
tell us who drew that up? ~-- My Lord, 1t 1s obviously a
resolution from the Central Committes of the 3outh African
Commun?! st Party.

And does 1t cofnelde with your view? -~--= Well, I
would have to read 1&. (Wttnese reads document) Yes, I thi nk
*t does. )

It doea? =--= Yes.

Conld youn nave drawn it up? --= You mean am I capable
of 1t, atr?

I'm sure you are. 1 wasn't asking that? =--- Oh, I

L]

thoupght that was what you Were asking.

Could you havc drawn ft up? === jo, I did not draw 123.

Were you conasulted about 1t? === Not az far as I can
reoall, wy Lord, no. '

121(a). That 1s 121(a) 1sn't 1t? =—— Yes, that 1s
121(a)

121(b) We have dealt w'th, that 13 the document
entftled "The Revolutionary Way out". 121(ec) That s
df fferences 1n the Communtst Movement. We've dealt with that.
That corresponds to EXHIBLT R36. We don't have to worry about
4hat. And then we come to a new document, EXHIBLT R130, Page
676. That is the document I'm sure you drew up, R1307 =-—= Yes,
this {s a Jocument I drew up, my Lord.

China and Indla the Border dfspute, and 1% 18 a
lengthy document. It speaks for 1tself. I won't delay his
Lordsh?p on that.

HY THE COURT: What 13 the date of this? --—,Hﬁi;ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂlﬁlﬂi_ My

Lord, the Border Dispute, as far as I can remember, was about

the end of 1262. This document, I think, was drawn at the time
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that fightf{ng had actually broken out at the frontiers, my Lord.
I have to re-read Lt to be quite sure.

BY THE COURT TO MR, BERNSTEIN: Beginniug of 19637 -—— Possibly,
wy Lord, abouwt that time. I'm not quite sure.

If you look at page 5 you get down to August, 1961.
DR, YUTAR: And there is Ostober, 1962, my Lord. The same
paragraph, my Lord.

BY THE COvRT: Sc 1t mwat have been after that.
CROSS=-EXAMTNATLON BY DR, CON And, Mr. Bernstein, 1%
18 obvious from the document that you have in front of you, an
original, that 1% wes run off on wax sheet and roneod? --- Yes,
I thiok that s obvious.

How, 143 we have already dealt with, that 1s the
"Revolutionary Way Cut" document, welve dealt with that. 147
we've dealt with, that 18 also the differences in the Communtst
Party and now we come %to 171, which I'm going %to sugegest to
you ¥a a dooument which you drew up juurunlf. 171 Page T09.
How, that, Mr. Bernstein, 1s on your typewriter? --= Thats
qufte posafble, sir.

In fact, if you have any doubt sbout 1t I would like
to show you this. What do you mean it 18 qufte pnﬁa!bla? i |
mean it Y8 gquite possible it was drawn up on my typewriter. '

p1d you draw 1t up? —-- My Lord, I oould have. . can't
remember doing so, but 1t 1s possible I could have done so.

How long have you had your typewriter? =--- Years.

You know the typef =--- Yea.

Let me show you this document over here. It'a a
photoatatic.gopy of that document = part of that document - and
the bottom part 1s a sample taken from your typewriter, and
there are various point of eimilarity marked out? =-—= That 1s so,
my Lord.

Are you preparsd to admit that in fact it was your
typeurtter? -=-- My Lord, I'm not prepared to depy 1t. I'm not

an expert on this thing, I think i1t could well have hunﬁ.nr
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typewriter.

Right. Now, let's read this document. wWhat date
do youd think we can give to this document, Mr. Bernstein?
Ferhaps 1f we read ¥t then you can give us, because the eontents
18 rather {mportant? =--= Yes.

"The South African Government %s besoming 1noreasingly
subject to attacks Tn the International f1elds. The recent
I.L.0, conferencs —~ that 1s the International Labour Organisa-
tion? ==~ That 18 so. -

unanimous

show to what extent it fa possible to obtaln/afgreement
on action to condemn and Tsolate South Africa. An arms embargo
has now become s matter of urgent {mportance. It must be
borae in mind that arms to South Afrfca menace not only the
struggle for 1liberation of South African people, for whisch they
are primally Yntended, but are alsc a posstble source of
Intervention Yn Rhodesia and Portuguese Aprican territories.

We belfeve, the time s opportune for mass campatizn for the
application of a complete arms embargo on South Africa.” When
was a campalgn started to cbtain a complete arms embargo 4in
South Africa? --- I'm not very certain, my Lord, 1962 or 1963.
I'm not very precise about that.

"Certain countries are most direectly concerned with
supplying arus to South Afrfca. England, France, Italy, West
Germany and the United States of Amerfca. Mass presaure of

the people of these countries directed towards endiog this

8upply 13 vital. At the same time campaigns 1n other sountries

could substantially fnfluence the fssue." Mr. Bernstein, you

are here suggesting a complete arms embafga, embargo arms

coming to South Afrfca? --- That 4s what is suggested, yes, sir,
At & time when we know that Goldreich had been over—

seas and was endeavourtng to make engufrfes about explosives

and according to these documents arms, In order to equip the

revolutfonary army 1n preparation of the final overthrow of the

South Afrtcan Covernment by force? ==~ I'm not sure, it might
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well hsave been belore Goldreich was overseas.

1 You were tryfng to bring a supply of arms to South
Afr1da, whilst the rebels in th1s country were going to arm
themselves as wuch as possible? ==~ My Lord, I was certalnly
tn favour of an arms embargo on South Africa, yes.

And have you anythfng agafnst the supply of arms to
the forces of the WatTonal Liberation Movement? --- No, my Lord,
I don't think I have under these circumatances.

"Phrough Trade Unions, Politfcal parties and other
organteations direct action can be taken. Faoctory workers,
dogkers can be drawWwn to swslh campaign. Fressure on members of
Parlfament, deputationa, demonstrations to South African
Consulate and other forma of sctivity could be utilized.” Were
you 1n faoct not juat dotng that what the doecument saya? s You
mean putttng pressure on people to...

Yes? --— Certainly.

"While democratic South Asrice greatly appreeiate the
morale effects of boycott and actfouns in other fields, we
Would 1ike Lo emphastse that the stopping of the arms supply 1s
now a key 1ssue. We, therefore, direct this requcsat to your
organi sation to do whatever 1s possfble within your own eountry
to further this afw." ilow, Mr. Bernstein, to whom was this
dooument gent? =--- MNy Lord, I don't know, . don't know if 1t
was sent. It appears to be directed to orzanisations in other
countries.

And 1t spesks for 1tself? =-- Yss, I think 1t does.

Then EXHIBLT 217 page 729. Oh yes, by the way, that
previous decument, I forgot to mention to you R171, do you know
where that was found? =-—- No, sir. |

In room No. 1 at Rivonta? ~-- That's possible.

Where you were round by the police on the afternoon
the police ralded 3t% --- Yes. |

Does 1% merit dfscussing egafn? =-=- Lo, sir.

Strange that 1t ghould be found there, because the
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only people there were the six we know? --- Yes, that is 80.

All right. EXHIBLT 217 page 729. Who is Bazil
Ntsikana? =-- My Lord, I have never heard of the gentleman.

But he is writing from Dar-es-Salasm, and the letter
1s addressed to 'Dear Comrades!? === That 4a so.

You can't tell us who he 187 =-= lNo, I can't.

MNow, i've completed the R exhibtts and we come %o
just one exhibit in the T Travallyn exhibits. EXHIBIT T.74
page 149. How, this document was found at Travallﬁn; and 1t
1s headed "Some thoughts on the situation confront the National

of the power
Liberation Movement 1o the final challenging/of white supremuses
South African Repudollcan state." How, we'll go through this
documrent very quickly. TYoulll find 1n the fourth paragraph
s says: "N.L.M., however, has chosen to stand by 1ts basio
prinefple®, have you got that? =-— Yes.

The N.L.M. stands for the Natifonal Liberation
Movement? === I think 1t does, my Lord.

And then the next paragraph, the sentence beginning:
'These are the whites who see i1t slearly that the voliey of
the Government 13 leading to a sfituation where only armed
conflict can result:' Do you agree with that? =--- Yas, I'm
figurtng out the contents.

Quite »f1ght? === Well, I thiok perhaps saying Yonly
armed conflict can result! 1s over atating 1t, but I think 1t
13 1l1kely that armed confliect will result. '

And then the very next paragraph "The N.L.M. has
foreseen this sfttuation and constantly warned the Government.”
Is 1t a fapt that the N.L.M. have foreseen the sftuation and
constantly warned the Government? === My Lord, the preseding
paragraph says that the ensulng bitternsss which muat inevitably
arise out of such a struggle - that 1s an armed struggle -
will make the = something of build'ngz - of a non racifal
demooracy fn a mult! racfal State an ever more diffieult task,

the H.ﬂ.H.Thas forcseen this situation ~ and 4f that's what 1t
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refers to then I think %t 12 g0, they have foreseen 1t, that
s tuation. |

You notfce the bottom of that page 'and the people!!
-== YoB.

Whose handwrittnz 18 that? =—-= lNo, I don't know.

You don't know the handwriting? ——— NO.

Page 2. Just the two short 1little paragraphs 1n the
m@ﬂdla_ul the page. "It 1s apparent, therefore, that the
situstion has reached fmpasse - you remember I told you yester~
day that 1 gquoted documenta where that word 18 used? =--- Yes.

"and can only be resolved only by resort to armed
confliet. It is the ultimate situation which horrfies everyors

and from which we cannot and must not f£11nch. Having arrived
very briefly at the conclusion that only armed confliet will
resolve the present politfcal deadlock, we must ask ourselves
what the objectives of the struggle will be. It is necessary
to establfsh our objectives Tn more than auparffutal terms." Is
that what the Hational Lfberation Movement has been doing? —
You mean to establish 1ts objectives 1n more than superficial
terms?

That's right? --- I'm not even sure what that means,
sir, what dcoes 1t mean?

Take the two paragraphs togetherf? =--=- Well, taking
them together, my Lord, I would read it to mean that the only
possible action which ean be taken 1n this partfcular situation
48 to resort to armed conflfct. I don't think the National
Liberation Movement had arrived at that conelusion at all, sie.

Because an impasse had been reached? —--- Yes, I'm
sure that an impasse had been reached, sir, but I don't thi nk
this oconclusion 48 justifted even by that fact.

Doea that expla'n why Acoused No. 3 went and made
enguiries about orderg about shutes , 1n ::rrﬂar; to make 48,000
land mines to be egquipped with five pounds of dynamite each? ===
My Lord, I can't testify as to why acoused No. 3 did any of these



25
L.G. BERNSTEIN.

things, T have no knowledge of it. ‘

The next page 3, you will noticec there the third
paragraph "It s vital that the objectives of this problem
be clearly defined before the f1nal stage 1& oommenced?, have
you got that? --- Yes, I've got that. |

And now i skip the next two l'nes and read the
last paragraph on that page "T1me has come for we Communigts
to elearly state our peliefs and objectives. We are aware
that our ,. objectivea that we believe are right and are
aware that we have the support of the vast numbers of oppressed
people, aware that we have the abfl1ty to win successful
struggle, aware that we have the ab?lity to organtse the
bufldfng of a new soclety, aware that we are assured of a
large measure of International support, we shoull openly, loudly
and proudly pruclﬁim our purpose to the people of South Afries
1noluding our organfsational partners, and 1n preferances our
organisatfional partners included the MK."? =-- I don't know
Who it 7ncludes, sir. I don't know what this phrase means 'tre
organtsational partners.’

"Because we know the Natfonal Liberation Movement

and thelr flag needs a lot of wagging which 1% has ndt been

getting lately." That aspeaks for »+(1naudible..)? -—- Yes, 1t

doesn't speak for me, sir.

No? =-- No, sir.

And page 4 "In achfeving State parties clear the £4nal

e we a show down with the forces of the present State

must be reached. Th's 4s what the struggle must lead up to. It
1s not a ﬂitggtinn which ean be achieved by wishing for 1t, 1t
1s going to take hard grinding and selfless work and many lives
unfortunately to achfeve our objectives.” 1In fact, Mr. Bernsatein
had not the sabotage movement already #lﬂimad a few lives? === I
understand it has.

And 18 1t not a faot that 1f the transition had been

oompleted through armed envasion, many more lfves would have been
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claimed? ~-—~ My Lord, warfare must claim lives. I'm afraid
that's =0, ‘

" And look what the third line of the next paragraph
says "Only by the capeful chosing of our people, careful

and understanding
study/of their needs ocan they be effectively won and organised
into a massive and powerful military and politiocal forga."
That 1s what the Communfats envisaged, not so? --- Ho, I &ﬂntt
think 1t 1s. '

All right, I'm not going to argue with you. Then we
come to the last three lines of the fourth paragraph, commenocing
'4%: would be short sighted of .ms 1£', you've got that? —=—- Yes.

"It would be short sighted of us 1f we were to
depend on e&uniq!n etagnation and learn to bring about the down-
fall of the regime. We muat plan and prepare for a long drawn-
out atruggle *n which the present rulipg group will nugtinuu
unttl their forces are routed in the field of battle.' That's
not metaphorical language, 18 1t? =--= Yo, I don't think 1% 1sa.

"It is this latter situation whiech must be gradually
worked towards to acquire ultimately the ability of the people
to put and matntailn an army in the field. This 1s beyond the
resources of the people at thia stage. It would appear that
the c;ly way to bulld the requfred miliflr? atrength 1s by
starting with milifary operations of a guerrilla nature, in
which 4%t T3 the fntention to hit at the forcea of the
Government and econcmic targets of a strategic nature. In all
guerrilla operatfons Govermnment forces will only be attaoked
when vietory 1s certa'n. There must be no intentton to stand
and f4ght aghinst superfor forces. There is ample 1iterature
on the tactfcs and strategy of guerrilla warfare whioh should
be referred to." Mr. Bernstefn, had the first stage not been
reached, had South Africa fn fact not find 1tself in the midst
of the fIrst stage? --- The firat stage of what?

Sabotage of Government economic target of a strategfc

nature? === No, I don't think so, my Lord, not when you add the
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worda 'of a strategic nature' as I understand what that means.
what does it mean? --- I take it, 1t means of a
military strategfec nature. A'rfields, bullet installation and
so on, I think that's what 1t meana.
" Are not l1nes of conmunication targets of a military
nature - strategic nature? =-- Yea, they could be, sir.
Apd you know the documeant here says - this 1s clearly

e Commun!st document prepared by the Communist party..? ——-
No, I don't accept that, sir. Prepared by a communist, I think

| We Communtsts, right? And we know who stayed at
Trovallyn. Does 1%t not bear a st'mflaerity to YOperation Mayabuya'
when the document alsc says now 'we don't fight agefnst the
supertor forces, we attack first targets' In other worda, as
'"Operation Mayabuya' says 'Shamelessly attack the weak and
shameleasly YY¢Ad flee from the strong' Is 4t not 1in keeping
with that philosophy in 'operation Mayabuyaf? --- I thinpk the
aame sort of thinking. L

‘Operation Mayabuya' found at Rivonfa, the same

sort of thinking found at Travallyn. A4nd now we come to the
last parsgraph there. "The remaining decfsion to be made 1s
the deffance of the forces reguired to commence the action.
Also to be consfdered ~ whose handwriting 1s that? =-~ I donlt
recognise 1t, wy Lord.

*2 the degree of selfl sufffecfency the rafsin: matertal
required to ensure success., This last method 1s closely related
to what the 1iteraturs calls the essence of guerrilla tactics
surprise.” Now, the very last paze and here I have to dwell
just a wee bit longer. Page 5. Mr, Earnutaiﬁ, I will tell
you fn advance that my suggestfon to his Lnrﬁahiﬁ will be that
what I'm about to read now, there is a striking resemblance to
Operation Mayabuya. Let's take the first paragraph. "For the
Bame reason it 13 suggested that the operation should be
commenced by numerous small foreea of 10 to 30 men, depending

on conditions, political and terrain, ¥n consentration of
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Government forces in many sreas simultaneously, these mnn_én
be 1o thelir zones fncognito before the astfon 1s first joined"
Huve we not got that fn Operation Mayabuya? --- Something of |
thie gort, my Lord.

Keep "Uperatfon Maysbuye' in front of you. Look at
part 3, the plan, s!multaneous landing of four groups of 30
baﬂad on our prescul resocurces. Look at paragraph 2 Tat the
fnitigl 1t 1a preposed that 30 are split up tato platoons of
10 sach. Isn't thero a remarksble resemblance between the
two documents? === Yes, there ia.

And I haven't stopped yet. Letls zo on "ir 1%t is
neld that vhe internal material self aufficiency ts a t1p off YHy
*natead of a pay off in the commencing stages, then othsr
sources of anpply wmust be obta'ned. In such a situation ths
enemy forces must provids the bulk of the supplies.”" Does that
not appear 1n 'Operation Mayabuya'! that you must steal and take
arms and ammunftion from your znemfes when you've overrun
theu? ==~ I think ft does, my Lord, but I'm not terribly
clear on that.

"When ensure success i1t would appear that .. to
enable units to be supplied from outstde" and read oa Pwith

development of :
a higher dogree of/communtcation 1t seems at least superfiocially
that overland supplies, assuming supplfes avallable in the
Borders, will be extremely dffficult” This leaves then supply

oy a'rdrop, Ys that not what 1s suggested 1n Operation Mayabuya®?

Ystimultancous landing of four groups of 30 based %n our present

resources, efther by ship or a'r, armed and properly equipped
te be self sufffctfent in every respect for at least a month™? ===
Is there not a surprising similartty there? =--- My Lord, there
Ta similarity 1n the thinking of these doC....

Yes. "This might work wedl 1n the opening ctages.
The effenciency of the Government Air Force mﬁst not be under
eatimated. Conslumfonz must be drawn that both overland nuppliu

and afr drope will have to be resorted to. This gan only be in
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addition to your regifonal stocks of matertsl before action is
conmenced, aud bhe capture of supplies arter." Exactly what
Operation Mayabuya says. And then "Prading with supplies
from veyond the Border 1s usually depsndend on having a common
Border with the pggpl¢ country friendly to the peoplels forces.
Thils does not apply at present in our case. The use of g
coastal land supplics by sea also presents tremendous ﬁrnh;nml,
heving regard to the stationing of C.F. unlts on a ussble coast
and the degree of long range naval patrols carrfed out by the
afrports.” Do you recogn?!se that, Mr. Bernstein? == Well,
only the refsrense to landiné supplies, sir...

"Sugzest then the establishment to be investigated
of a true base area at the commencement of the action 1n the
most Horth West potut of Transvael adjacent to the Bechuanaland
Berder and within [lyfng distance of Northern Fhodesla and

simultanecusaly
East Aprican States. This establish to take place/w!th the
cormencement of operaticn in other aregs and zones, =0 as to
orsure the maxlwum diverssd employment of the Government foroes
from the outset. Stmultaneously there should be a maximum

in and

effort extended gyyHgF between the maln Tndustrial centres
: major
to sabotage communfcations and pgy{ KW¥ tndustries which serve

the military organtsaticu of the Goverament. An advantage of

the base areas 1s stmpliffcation of diplomatic problems and
supply of materfals from abiroad, assuming that a provisfonal
Govermment 1s declared."” And we find, Mr. Bernstein in
Uperation Mayabuya under the plan, part 3, this reference:
"W1sul?so that this authority will ju dus course of time
develop Tnto-provisfonal reveluticnary Government." Remarkable

cofncfdence betweer the Lwo documentg? ——w Yea, there 1s.

JR. YUTAR: He-FuRTHLR GuBSTIONS,
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LAONEL G. BERNSTEiN, (s.u.0.) ;
RE-EXAMINATLON JY MR. FiSCHRER: Mr. Bernsteln, I want you to

have 2 lock First of sll at T.74% =-= I have it here.

how, f¥st of all, ever seen this document bsfore 1t
was put into this court? --- No, my Lord, I have never seen this
document belore.

Have you ever seeh any documeant issued by the
Communt gt Fariy wnfeh ressmbles this? --- You mean recsembles 1t
in thinking, in contents?

in conbents? --- No, my Lord, . have never seen asuch

a docuuwent either. '

I'm not sure where the first passage was which my
learned friend read to you, was 't on page 1% --- Yes, 1t was
sort of a 1fttle Tnsert r!{sht at the top of page 1. "Some
thoughts" 18 that the thing.ss.

No, there was something whish suggested that there
was no other possible method other than an armed atruggle ? —--
Oh, let me see ¥f I can find that.

I thipk ﬁerhaps 1t comes later? --- Iz that "It is
apparent, therefore, that the sftuabion has reached !mpi;;a,

resolved
and can be YgddAr only by resort to armed conflict!?

Is that on page 2% --= That 18 on page 2.

Hell, then I'1l come to it. Where abouts on page 2%
=== Tt 18 the fourth éuragraph on pagze 2.

Thanks. Yes well now, Mr. Berunstein, have you ever
.Aeen a Communfst dooument whioch suggests that there 1s nothing,

but te resort to armed conflict? --- Ko, my Lord, I think that
"¢ will be falr to say that the majortty of the documents
which T have seen in the preparatfon of this case or that come

from the Commun?st Party suggest, in fact, that there 1s great

poss!b?lity of non violent transiifon *n this eountry.

Yes, I'll come to that later on, bécauaa there 1a a
certatn document which I*ll ask you to read and whioh T'11 put
to you later. How, Hr. Bernstein, I haven't the urigiﬁnl, does

1% annaar an 1f thia was Ysanad by ;ﬁrnna to anvona? --- My Lord,
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there I1s nothing to Tndfcate 1t was fssued, and I would say
looking at the document Tt 18 quite clearly either a first
draft or a copy that wasn't Yntended to be f1ssved. There 1s
a large amount of materfal that has been x out on the typewriter,
there are words that have been written 1n and corrections made
in Tnk., Page 3 78 half a page long and then the rest of the
page 't blank and 1%t goes on to page 4, and so on, 1t 1is
elearly not a ffntshed doocument.

And the title seems to suggess that 1t was somebody's
med? tat?tons? --- That's the suggestion there, yes.

Now, I would lfke you to have a look at EXHIBLT 171, °
which was the one dealt with, T think fmmedistely prior to
th's, except for 217 which you dfdn't recognise at all? ---

Yes I have 171, yes.

Just before you look at that, could you pass us 217,
which we haven't got, and we'll juat have a look at that
during the adjournment. I wonder, Mr. Bernstein, whether 1f
you read thts carefully, jnu could f1x the date more agnurately.
There was an I.L.0. conference this year, was there not? =--
I'm really not sure, sir. I think there 1s an I.L.0. confererce
every year, ny Lord, as far as i can recall. 1 think 1t 18
an annual event. | -

Is there anything just glanctng through 1t again,
to enable you to fix thia date? --= My Lord, the f1rst
paragraph mfght be a reference to the dedssion of I.L.0., 4
san't remember themec!se nature of the dectsfon, whether 1t

ﬁ;a to refuse South Afrfcan delegates or - there was some
deefston tg&en by I.L.0. in the last few years, doessn't help
me to f1x the date.

You sald you thought *t was possible that thfs waa
done on your typewriter? w==- hatlg posaible, yes.

Can you remember whether you did 1% or whether
somebody else d1d 1¢% --- I didnft do 1&, but I'm inelfned to
say I don't think I dfd 1t, sfr, but 1%t 1s Just possible. I .

donft remember dn!ﬁg it.
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Now, Mr. Bernstein, 1t was suggested to you that
th*s might have acme reference to the Journey which seema
to be wommon cavse whfch Mr. Arthur Goldrefch took, which
apperently he had dfscussfons about arms, did you know about
that journey? --- No, my Lord, I ¢1dn"t know sbout that
untfl the case started.

You had no knﬂwledgé of his journey at all? ==-T
knew he had been overseas, but . didn't know that he had
had any dfacuasfons about arms or explostves for that matter.

What dfd you th*nk he had gone over abont? =-- My
Lord, he d¥d tell me on one occasfon when I saw him during
1963, he dfscussed w'th me a trip to, I think Emst Germany or
Weat Germany, and he was tellinz me about buildfngs he had
2een and I thought he had been on a holiday trip.
. Now, Mr. Bernstein 1t may be better to start at
the begfnning and try and go syastematiocally to some of the
pofnts made by you 'n your evidence. Wwhen you were giving
evidenco, at the beginning of the cross-examfnation, you sald
that yon had not seen Operation Mayabuye before this trial
siarted? === That 18 correct, my Lord.

Ther. you safd that the toptec d1d not come to you. as
g surprfae? =—-- That 1a so,.

I would 1like you Juat to explain briefly why that
'8 80Y === My Lord, the toplec s guerrilla warfare ddf 1a far

from being a new toplc 'n the polftfcal efrcles, the Hational

Movement. It has been discussed on and off as a possibility

A theoretfcal diacusslon for many years, sir. I think there
Weare ducuman?u *n the treason trtal in this mntﬁur, as a matter
o exhibits by scme of the fndividual
of fact some of the/mccused wr!ting about guerrilla warfare,
thet w1ll be petor to 1956. I don't think that anybody who
pays any aerifous attention t. the l*beratfon of colonfal and
dependend countrfes, fn the twentieth century at any rate, can
discusa th's question Yntelltgently without also d1scussing

the prospects of guerrtlla warfare 1n that situation. I've
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lieard this sort of dfscuaston over the years, my Lord,
perhaps a b't more *n recent years than fn the past, but 1t
dfdn't come to we as any surprise at all.
How, from there I would like you ~ have you got
Operation Mayabuya vefore ﬁuu? --— ¥Yos, I have 1t, sir.
3fnce the case started and sfnse we've been
consulting, you've studled that? --- Yes, I have, my Lord.

And L would like you to say Hhat'ynu personally thirk
of the feaa'btlity of that doecument, of that soc oslled eolan?
=-= Wall, the feasTbility off 1t, wy Lord, I think 1s very very

remcte Yndeed, I would say it %s probably tn the field of
fantacy this p&ft of the doaument. I donft clasim to be an
expert, however, on this, sc that *a'my optntfon.

Wow firat let me zo back to the beginnfng? --- Yesn.

There f8 = 4t says .. .. obtains a lot from reason?
-== Yas.

And you have studfed that? ~—— Yes, I have, wmy Loxrd.

4 want to know whether you accept that? —=--= lo, Hy
Lord, 4 think *t 13 extremely confuged and Yllogical, and I
think the conclusfons 1t comes to are wrong. |

If you would look at the last sentence of paragraph 1
it says "Lt cen now truly be said that very l'ttle of any
scope exfsts for the smashing of white supremacy other than
by means of mass revolutfonary aetfon, fthe maln content of

which 48 armed resfsgtance and leading to vietory by mflftary

means, There are really three fdeas contalned Tn that? === I

think so, my Lord.

Hqﬁlﬂhat about the first 1dea, that 13, very 1little,
¥f any scope exfsts 1n the smashing of white suprenaey, other
than by means of revolutfonary actfon? =-= I think that 1s a
correct atetement, afr. |

What do you understand that to mean 'Massrevolutfonary
ves? === My Lord, I vnderstand by 'mas revolutfonary actfon' to

mean mass actton taken by large sections of the population whe
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designed to brfng shout radfcal changes, revolviionary .
changes *n scefefy, wit minor ab sll.

I wlll ask you bo deal with the meaning of
revolutfornary changes later on? --- Yes.

fut as far ss the sccond part 13 concerned 'the
mafin content of wh'ch 18 zrmed resatstance!, what do vou say
abeut that? --- Well, my Tord, I personally don't agrse
with that, I don't think that %= the ma'n content at thls time
of the mass revolutlonary action whfeh 18 required 4n this
country, Idon't find that that arzumeant 418 taken further 1n
the reat of the documeat or proved anjywhasre, a'r, and I
regard thal as belns o wrong atatemant.

And then f1nally "this shonld lead to a victory by
milftary means'? =~- Wy Lord, T tske it that that means that
what 98 visualtased *a a dfrect consontat?on of the military
forces of the State by the opposttion’s n?lftary forces and
that that struggle oan only he resclved fiaally by milttary
victory. I don't accept that elther, 4t's a politicsl a’m.

Well, *f you bad auy say jn the matter as to
whether this was tc be sdopted as a poltery for Natfconsal
Liberation Movement or not, what would yon say? --- My Lord,

I would not accept tbhis document as a polifcy at all, such
policy as 1t states s the wrons poliey.

How, the next guestion T want to raise with you,

Mr. Bernatein, 1s this questfon of the journal Asssgat? ==-- Yes.

Mr. Bernstein, have you seen th's journal beforg? =—-—=
I have seen copfes, I'm not sure if I've secen these partieular
oopfea thak are sxhfb'ts 1n court, I would have to read it.
But I have seon coples of this jnurﬁal before.

You know anyth?ng about the publicatfon, who publ?al ed
1£? -== My Lord, 1t %3 a subjeot of oconsiderable guestiontng
amongat people that I met. Nobody was guite clear who
publishedi.ft, stnoe the sorrespondence that has been placed

here as an exhibit 1n court dealfn; with this, sugzeat that
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certaln people in London are responsible for 1t, I don't
know of wmy own knowledze whelther that 13 true or ﬁﬂt.
8o you have no knowledge of who published 1£? ===
No, sir.
Ané that %8s then all you know about 1t, what appears
*n the correspondence fn th's case? --- 0f the publishers,
yes.
There '8 something to suggest, Mr. 3ernstein, 1n
one or other of these coples this journal purported to be a
Jjournal for Umkonto? === My Lord, 41n the coptes that I saw, L
don't know as 1 say whether 1t 1s one of these exhtbits in
couwrt, I think the organisatfon that publishes thi{s magazine
certafnly trtes to g've the Impression that it is responsible
for ar directing act'vities of Umkonto. It certainly gives
that tmpressfon.

Yeg, I see all that one can ascertain from this ia
that subscripttons and correspondence should be sent to
#¥chael Turner, Had'soo Road, London . Have you ever heard of
a gentleman celled Mfchael Turner? =-- No, my Lord, I have no
knowledge of him at all.

Were these people with who m you dtsecussed this
matter prfor to the trfal, this journal, were they unable to
Toform you about fts source or orfgin? ---- Well, there was
speoulation, my Lord, but nobody seemed to know who 1t was
comtng from.

Incidentally, Mr. Bernatein, at the early part of the
¢ross—examination some mention was made about the restriotion
Placed on one Byleveld? =-- Yes,

Joes the restriction pisced on a person means that
he 18 a commun?si? =--- No, my Lord. Rgstriotion can be placed

ander one of two aects, I think. E'ther theaSuppression of
Communtsm Act or the Efotous Assemblfes Act. It doesntt

require, as far as I'm aware, for you etther to be a 1listed

communtst or an ectual communfst fa order to be restriected

under the act.
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And of course poople have boen listed as commun! sta

nnder the Suppreastion of Communtam Act, who ! are not communists

at d411% ==-- That *s so, my Lord. I bthink the Act providea
that anybody whoever attended a meeting of the Communist
Party can be 1?'sted on that 1*at -~ aven a public meeting.

And toll me, Mr. Bernstein, do you know of people
Wwho are lfated who are *n fact ant! communfst? -—- I know of
poople who have had rostriction orders served under the Act,
who are ant® nommunfst, I'm not sure if they are 1tated
menbera. LYated or on-the 1lfst.

Patr*ck Drncan was 1¥sted? =-~ T think he was
rostrfcted, afr, under the Act, but I'm not sure if he is
14 sted.

As far aa youn know, 13 he svmpathetic to commun?tsm?
w—— He 3 a fanat*eal ant® commmn'at, wmy Lord.

And now, Mr. Sernsbtein, just to deal with one
goneral matter before we proceed to some obher apectfic
toptes. You declfned to answer a number of questions. For
"nstance, you declined fo say who you met when you went
out durtng 1962 at RY'vonta? --- That *s ao, my Lord.

D¥d yon realtse *n declining to answer you might
prejudfce yourself? --- Yes, my Lord, I'm aware of that faot.

1 just want to get 1t quite élanrlg Wwhy you refuasd
to anawer? =-- My Lord, the reason why I refused to answer
18 because I fear that anybody whose name . mentlon fn this
regpect wYll be subject to persecution, and I'm not
prepared to open anybody with whom I've ever associated up
to perseconifon at ali.

The next thing, Mr. Bernstefn, slsc about Riveonia
As T understood the oross~examination, 1t was suggested to
you that that was a htde out for commun?ste only. Do you
think from what you know that that was the oase? === Well,
from what I know of who hid there, I would say the reverse

s the case n general. But wheu T was told about 1t, 1t was
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RE~EXAMINATION BY MRe. FISCHER: Kow 1 would like Mr. Bernstein
to deal with some of Llhe subjects which efise from the docu-

ments, and if you will give me some general statements first
then we can perhaps exawine the documents to see whether

they bear out what you've put as generael propositions.
First of all, I want you to state just briefly, what is

the Marxist connotation of the word "revolution". Does

that mean that the revolution must be violent?—I think
j%allui}rianﬁﬁfghuﬁmiatn choose this word "revolution"

is to describe a change s0 radicel that it Ehangaa thaﬂ
entire social and economic bagis of society. 1t has 10
nothing to do with the guestion of how that change takes
place; whether it is violent or non=violent, it would be

a revolution.

So that one could have a revelutlidnary change

which was entirely non-violent?—--Yes, one could have

for instance, the position where a Parliament asitting
decided overnight to Nationalise entirely all private
ownership of the means of production in the country.

Such & thing could take place gquite without any upheaval

or violence at all, but such a change would transform 20
the whole social end economic basis of soclety, and in

my view would be a revolution,

at uld be :r.‘FH‘.'ll tionary change’=--Yes

want go to the lﬁguumazfta in “a moment,

ommuni st A

insofar as they recognised to hﬂfﬁnﬂumantsﬁftﬂhijﬁEﬁ%ﬁﬁhﬂr
‘stantiate that point of view, but just before I do that,
I want to ask you about another aspect of the theory, and
that is whether the Marxist approach regards any political
situation as a static and fixed situation?——It's funda-

mental to Marxist theory that all and Enuial phe-=

human
nomena are continually in a state of change, and Marxists 3§
alwaye in viewing any situation, attampt3 to view it a=m
a situation in a state of change, not to be regarded as

fixed and unchangeable, but to regard it as something
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which is in the course of change whilé it is being discussed.
‘ Now hae that any bearing of importance on the

view which a Marxist would take, for instance, of the

gituation in South Afrieca?—-—TYes my lord, it certainly

has. I would say for instance, that a Marxist looking

at the South African Government would say well granite

walle are capable of shifting and being shifted and

changing and crumbling. So the faect that it is a granite

wall or that it appears to be a granite wall, at this

precise moment does not mean that therefore, it is going 10

t0 remain completely unchangeable, inflexible for all

time, A Marxist loocking at such a thing as a Government

which is inflexible, would say well in certain clrcum-

stances in different eircumstances it will be forced to

become flexible or it will fall over. It cannot stand

where it is inflexibly forever,

So you say that is of practical importance?——
Very much so, because it determines one's policy and
tacticss If for instance, one were o iagarﬂ the South
African Government as being so inflexible, sco immovable 20
that nothing whatsoever could be dome to shift 1t ever,
or to change it's policy ever then one would have as a
logical ﬂnncluﬂiun of that to give up political activity,
because you'll have quite a useless proposition. If one
does not aaéapt that survey, obviously one visualises that
in certain circumstances this seemingly immovable object
will move.

NHow in the «.. that of course is part of the
bagic theory isn't it?——Absolutely basic to all Communist
thinking, on every subjeot. 30

That i1s one of the essential foundations of
Marxist philosophy?———That is s0.

How let's turn to a completely practical view
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of the situation. Let's tolte Africa lMr. Bernstein.
You mentioned one or t@u of tho countries which had
obtained freedom by peaceful means?---Yes, I did.

If one casts one's mind back about ten years,
did it eppear likely that there would be & mass of new
independant states in Africa?—-I would say, well, thinking
about the time at the end of the war, which is aligshtly
further back, i{ seemed extremely unlikely that there
would be a mass of new states without a mass of local
wars, major international wars, and so on, to bring them 10
into being.

In fact, Jjust cast your mind back for a moment
to 1952/1953, when there was fighting in Kenya?=—That
is 80,

at that stage
What appeared to be the prognostication sfor

thatP?——=liy lord the prognostication at about that stage,
had entrenched itself

was that British Administration there IRidiged itself
by severely smashing the local liberation movement and
that Kenya would remain a British Colony for an extremely
long time. 20
And in fact, was there then any question sses
werce there plans known +to rceaders of newspapers o
make it a military centre?—-=It did in fact become I
think the major British military base in Africa for a
-ahort while.
Now the chonge which has ccourred in so many
States in Africa, would you describe that change as a
revolutionary change or would you not so describe it Pe=—
Yes, I think vhen you have a change from dependant
people ruled completely by forelgn administration, to 30
self-Government, I would describe that as a revolutionary
chanze in the nature of the country.

Ny
Now you mentioned three countries, Mgeria,

Ghana and I forget for the moment what the other one was?
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——=1 don't remember either.
"7 In fact would you be prepared to cast your

wind over the Continent and tell the Court where has

there been violent revolution in order to achieve freedom?

——] think there are, as far as I can rguall, only two

countries in Afriea which have achieved their national

independence by wioclent wilitary means, that is Algeria

and Angola. iell Angola hasn't yet achleved, so it is

in fact only one which has aﬂﬂievad by violent means,

that's Algeria. One might possibly describe Egypt as 10

a violent revolution, although this was in the nature

of a coup de EE%EEE@;rﬂthﬂr than a popular revolgtion

I think,

For the rest?-—For the rest my lord, the
transfer cverywhere in Africa I think, has been non-
violent.

That would cover about tairty States?=———Yes,
cover practically the whole of aAfrica down to the
Liwpopo.

iir. Dernstein, what about a country like 20
India?=—iiy lord India achieved it's national inﬂap&nﬂdnca
by what I would describe as a nund;inlent insurrection.

The eircumstances were that there was a mass upheaval,
uprising of the population, not with arms in their hands,
“but non—violent methods of one kind or another which
foroed the Iritish Government to transfer power to the
Indian puﬁﬁlﬁtiﬂna

Jo that Mr. Dernstein, if the last ten years
of history serve us at mll, they serve to show that
the, what 1s comwonly called, the national democratlc 30
rﬂvniutiun can take place in a coupletely peaceful

fashion?=—I1% can.

Leaving aside altogether the question of
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socialleam?—-—Ycs that is s0.

‘ lire Dernstein, I wonder if one could give an
illustration of a sudden change of that kind in South
ifrice itself? You've no doubt read about the period
wien this cuuntry'wént off the Gold standard?———Yes.

Was thncre any sudden chinge, perhaps of not
so great a character; a sudden change there?---A sudden
¢hange?

In the form of Govermment? In the Govoernment
itoelf, a sudden coalition which no one expscted?——-Oh 10
yae, you mcan?

Possibly have foretold the year before?-—0h
I think I was too young at that stage to be taking an
intelligent intercst in the subjeet sir, but I should
think only wvery few people could have predieted the
coalition whicih followed, in that period.

And that cawe along lr., Dernsteln, as a result
ol economic pressure?—-—As a result of economic cireum—
stances largely outside this country, and which this
country was complctely incapable of controlling,. 20

Do you execlude the possibllity that sort of
fing happening again?-—Not a2t all, I think it's highly
likelys )

AT THIS STAGE TIHE COURT ADJOURNS UNTIL 2 Pl
Gl RLSUEING
RE~IXANINATION DY MR. FISCHER (CONTINUED):

"ﬁf. Dernstein, we were talking at {he adjournment
about the possibility of States..the historicel faet,
that States in Africa have gained there freedom without
having to fight. Just one or two points. You know you've 30
described what is meant in Harxist language by a rﬁ?ﬂlu;
tionary change. [fow that is uscally described as a

condition for a transforumetion from Capiltalism to
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Socialism?=—=That 15 20
. Is that necessarily so with regard to an

extongion of the French franchise?-——Do you mean would

that necessarily be a reﬁnlutiﬂn? _
Thet would that necessarily be a revolutionary

change, or could it be done, to use another technical
e, in a reformist fashion?——Yes, I think that

change could be brought about by piecemeal reform over

a period, sir. It would not require a sweeping c hange all
at one time.
In other words a fraochise could ke gmdually
extended?--Yes certainly sir,
And if it were seen by the people to whom
it was being extended as something which was on the way,
then naturally that would have a consideamble effect on their
view of what action to talkf ---Yes I think it certainly would.
Then another matter which was mentioned by
my learned friend was the suggestion that the Congo achieved
its freedom by violence ~ what do you say to that?---HMy
lord, I don't think that is hdstorically comect. Independence
of the Congo was achieved without any form of military
struggle at all, There had been political activity of a
non-violent character for some time, and it wes against that
background that the Belgian Govermment decided to concede
independence to the Congo, What viclence took place, took
place thereafter as a result of disputes between warring

factions of the Congolese people themselves.

So that that would not be an illustration of

obtaining freedom by violence?--No, far from it sir.

Just one further word about this Mr, Bernstein.

You will remember that yesterday you argued that the danger
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lies in oneman holding the gun? WHEREas there is more chance

of a round table conference and ability to gree when both

hold the gun?=~Yes sir.

Could you just expand on that for the moment?
===My lord, what 1 was trying to convey was when one = ik
of a dispute isheavily armed, and the other side unarmed,
there is always & very strong temptation on the part of those
who hold the arms to settle the dispute by force. When both
sides are armed, I think there is less of a temptation in
that drection, and I think in fact, if one looks at the field
of international disputes, one will see that this is in fact
the point of wview which is followed up by diplemats on both
sides of what is et present referred to as The Cold War,
wiere each side claims that only by having £omic weapons of
parity or near parity with the other side will they be
able to negotiate a peaceful settlement of whatever disputes
lie betweenthem.

Well now Mz, Bernstein I want to turn to some
of the documents that were put to you., First of all I would
like you to have a look at these Exhibits which my learned
friend tredted as a bundle, that was 63,84 ,85, 94 and 1218,
and R.40, I had a rather hurried look through them during
the adjournment, and if you just look at the first paragraph
in each one, leaving out B85 which I can't make out, it is
probable that they were written in the following crder, B84,

whih,.the whole of which is in manuscript, so presumably that

was an early draft,- the whole of that is in manuscript?--
Yes the whole of that is in manuscript.
Then if you look at B3 I think you will see
signs that that probably follows on B4 .,——-Yes quite likely.
- I don't think this is of great importance, we

can do it in argument, but I think that is correct. Then



- 223 = ACCUSED No. 6.,

R.40
in all probability/is the next one. =-=-Yes, that seems to

be a much more advanced stage of the document,

And then 94 7=--Well I am not gquite clear if
your order is correct. It is quite possible.

It is possibly correct?--1t seems %0 yes.

I don't think it is of great importance. What
iz of importance ic that 121B would appear to be the last
draft?-=That I think is clear. That sppears to be the
finished document. The order of the draft I am notiwery clear on.

Actually I will teke you into that ih & little
greater detail presently. 1 just wanted to ask you this:

did you ever see R.40 in the form of & documant that would be
circulated, R.40 itself?==No sir I did not ever see it.

Do you know R.40 at all? Had you known it
before this case?-<Not before this case sir. I have reed it
prior to today.

Tes, during the preparationf=-=That is right yes.

But you had never men R.40 before?--No sir,

Now I want you, having established that, I
would like to take you through certain of t he documents
which are of importance, apparently, in relation to the
position of the Communist Party, the A.NC. and Umkonto we
Sozwe. I want you to start with Ry92. What we will need is

Now I want you to teke R.92 first. It is not dated, but

you will see that there is certain interral evidence dating
it. First of all, paragraph 2 on page 1 speaks of the..
"For the first time....(quotes’,.adopted in October 1961"
so this is post October 19617--That is so,.

And then May 1961 is mentioned on page 3
and on page 2 there is the date December 1961 in the first

part of paragraph 3. I think we can s afely say that the
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new year referred tﬁ here is the new year of 1962, wWill

you just assume that that is so?--<Yes I think that is fair,.
Now then I want you to turn first of all to

paragraph 35, This has been read by my lesrned friend, but

I want to read it with slihtly different emphasis. You

see the second sentence starts "Already last May" summing

up the experience of the May 3lst general s trike "we recognised

that the combination of overwhelming force and emergency

rule by the Government brought the legal mass movement to a

turning point. We recognise that the prospects of further

legal mass actions are growing more and more remote." That

is further LEGAL mass actions.--That is right.

Would That referg to such things as processions,
demonstrations, plakards¥--Yes. I think that must be what
is intended,

then

"We recodgi sed/that k% that theprospects of
further legal mass actions were growing more and more remote,
and that the way forward would 1lie through illegal actions
of both non-violent and of violent character. GSince then
illegal actions of a new type acts of political sabotage
against the Government and its installations have been
carried out in different parts of the country." Andden it
refers to the most widespread being that of the new organisation,
I want to teke the next paragraph which my learned friend
skipped. It is dealing with these operations, and the or-
ganisationi” “Umkonto stated in its first Manifesto that
its purpose was political, theliberation of non-white pecple,
It will confine itself to direct military-style attacks on
Government installations and apparatus. It will not attempt
to supersede existing political organisationa." So that

expresses the point of view that has been put by various
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witnesses, that Umkonto was not to be & political force?=--
That Is correct sir.
And then in paragraph 6 is set out the sort
of thing Mr., Sisulu spoke about when he gave evidence "In
political statements in the past we have pointed out that in
conditions existing in South Africa, the liberation movement
dare not assume that the struggle con necessarily be won by
non-violent means. The Government policy makes it increasing-
ly likely that in the long run the liberation movemen t will
have to resort to arms agaimt the Government. It ia for
this meason that we welcome the appearance of Umkonto. We
regard it asa valuable weapon" and then it seems to me that
the emphasis is placed on "to supplement the work of

mass agitation at present, and alsoc a veluable field for the
training of militant liberation fighters, in the techniques
of armed struggle which they may well have to carry out in
the future." Then there is another portion which was
omitted by my learned friend, '"Umkonto provides the

bagis for the rapid establishment ..(quotes)..liberation
axrmy should such a step becomg necessary in the future,"

So one can say fairly, Mr., Bernstein, that this contemplates
some thing in the future?--Yes very clearly.

"it also ensures that the liberation movement
will have ready athand its own peoples armed force to take
over the defence of the country from its enemies when power
has been wrested from the white state.™ Then follows the
portion that my learned friend read, I don't need to r ead
that gain. It quotes from the Manif&stn.‘hut paragraph T
is of some importance. "We are in full agreement with the

need for these new methods to supplement and inspire our

traditional methods of mass action, but we must take care



- 228 - ACCUSED No. 6§

both at leadership level, and in our groups, to see that
we are not diverted from our main tasks of mass political
work by focussing attention on the new theme." Now there

is raference to the phrase which you have discussed, Mr,

Bernstein, "mass political action",---Yes sir.-

And the document clearly says that that is the
main task?--That is correct,

"OQur membership must not be drawn off in an
unplanned fashion from vital tasks of maintaining ocur or-
ganisation, spearheading the mass movement,.s" Presumably
that refers to non-viclent tasks?=--Spearheading the mass
movements, you mean?

Yes the main tasks of mass political works,==-
Yes, of agitation on politicalsubjects,

* You don't know of any mass violent movements?
—-==No sir, clearly this mfers to mass movements against
the pass laws and bantu authorities, and that mrt of thing,

"Naeturally our units willbe interested in
discussing the part which Umkonto plays in relation to the
main political problem, but they should not divert their
attention to details of its work and actions," And then
iny learndd friend has read the most important part of
paragraph 8 but jusit beyodd that, the second sentence,
the document proceeds "This wrong emphasis kes been seen,
for examE}F. in our reaction to the new Verwoerd plan fr
the Transkei. Our organisation and to some extent the
Cangresses is siernly critical of this scheme, but the
fact that we are critics does not and should not mean
that we do not enter into a mass campaign of struggle
against the scheme. We have tended to sit back as critics,

almost as spectators. The issue of the Transkei's future
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we have left to the Govermnment and to the Chiefs without
attempting to rouse the masses to participate in the
decizion," Does that suggest to you anything in the naturs
of violence?-=No not at all sir. I think it suggests
agitation against the Bantustan scheme.

Lastly I want to refer to the second part of
paragraph 9 on the next page. "All our leading organs must
atart the new year in the new way. They must turn their
attention constantly to the main problem of our movement,
the mobilising of the masses to political activity, and
seek at all times to make our line the line of the people.
We must throw ourselves intoc the job of putting new life
and drive into the second phase of nnn—:nllaﬁnratiﬂn
campaign, and the campaign for mass recruitment into
trade unions. Let us fight tooth and nail against the
mood ef apathy and hopelessness, of waiting to see what
will happen, which seems to affect some supporters of the
movement, New methods by umkontofor solidatity action
outside this country may inspire and assist us, ut they
are no substitute for mass action by the people of our
country, the key to national liberation." Now there again
is there any suggestion, in pur view, of any violent action?
-=-=Well only the new methods by Umkonto which are des=-
cribed as secondary and auxilliary, as I understand it.

Do you know to what the phrase refers, the
"second phase of non-collaboration®?--My lord, I think
I am correct in saying that the Pie termaritzburg Confarence,
which took plaee in 1961, to which theres was reference
here in euidance,hda:ided on two things, one was the

which

General Strike towkeih a great desl of attention has been

payed in this case, which took plaee at the end of May, and

the other was to follow that up with a campaign of non-
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collaboration with the Government in all sorts of
activities; that people should not serve on Govermnment
boards, ﬁarticipate in institutions set up under Bantustan
scheme and Group Areas shemes and so on. 1 think that is
what is referred to here as the secnnd'phase of the non-
collaborsticncampaign. That was the phrase they used at
the time, ron-cdllsboration,

Right Mr. Bernstein = now those are the
relevant parts of the document which is the first part of
19627-~That is so.

Now I think we will take Exhibit R,104, that
is the April/May editicn of the'African Communist.! 1t
is also Exhibit Y my lord. Now Mr, Bernstein, I don't
want to take up much of the Court's time. You will see
that at page 44..43 just states an adherence to the Free-
dom Charter; then 44 to 45 refers to the condition of
non-violence, and gives practical reasons why that has
been followed, as a sound policy; practical reasons rather
than the somewhat mystical Ghardi-ggm.===Yes,

Then if you turn to pages 45 to 46 1 gather the
author tries to describe the change in the situstion, He
says at page 46 though the policy of non-violence appears
not t© have achieved much, in the third paragraph "1t would
be incorrect to asset that these struggles have been
fruitless. Far from it. In thle course of defiance, pass-
burning and other cempaigns, strikes, demonstrations,
boycotts and other forms of non-violent mass action, the
political consciousness of the masses has been tremendously
raised. Steeled and disciplined fighters for freedom have
been develdped and trained." That of course would also
not refer to soldiers?---MNo sir, I think that is just

referring to politically active people.
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In the last paragraph of that section, the
Situation has Changed, there also is this said, that all
these things add up to a major shift in the political
situation,"where no further progress is possible along the
traditional paths by adhering rigidly to non-violent slogan..
quotes...where every democratic demand is treated as an
act of rebellion," And then there is a section which
deals with the gquestion of power and says that the demand
from the Maritzburg Conference for a National Convention
was a demand for revolution. That appears in the last line
but one.-=Yes I have that,

Now that is in the same way in which you
were describing the use of that word?---That can be the
only possible meaning tou it, sir, There was no demand for
armed uprising.

It ws a demand for a convention?=-=-Yes.

I want you now to turn to page 49 - incidently,
just before you go there, at the foot of page 48 that
emphasises thet the Manifesto makes it clear that this is
the first move in a long-term plan of campaign, I want
to refer particularly to the last paragraph just before the
section "Approval of the Masses",--=Yes I see that.

It quotes from the Manifesto "wWe of Umkonto
‘have always sought, as the liberation movement has sought,
to whieve the liberstion without bloodshed and wivil clash,
We hope E;;n.at this late hour that our first actions will
awaken wveryone to the realisation of the disastrous
situation™ and cxpresses the hope that matters will not
reach the desperate stage of civil war. MNow then Mz,
Bernstein, at the foot of that page again is expressed the

view that political action remains at the presentstage the
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main form of the freedom mcvement.-=That is so,.

. And if ycocu turn to the next page, the last
page ] want to refer to, at the top it says the Governgment
will have to reckon with the knowlafje that future violence
will meet with stern reprisals, and then in the second
paragraph "Until now it has been the Nationalist Government

thougnt?

alone which has taught and spokenof settling the future
of this country by violence, The sort of vioclence they
had in mind was the suppression of every peoples movement
for liberation and democratic change, by means of the
army and militarised police, with the aid of a mass
mobilisation of part-time white civilians armed and organised
for civil warby the :f:':i. " ] kex sfip the next sentence,
and hen proceed "It is very doubtful whether this enthusiasm
of the white colonialists for forcilble solutions would
continue in a situation where the people were organised
and equipped to fight back, to conduct a protracted guerilla
war which would exact casualties not on one side only,
and hae profound effects on the economy of the country
and aggravate mmensely its already grave international
relatiors ., There indeed lies the sole prospect of forcing
the colonialists to re-consider their adamant and intransigent
attitude towerds peaceful transition to a2 non-racial
democratic socciety. In a word, before the racidist
oppressors can be made to listen to reason, their sars must
be opened-by speaking to them in the only language they
can understand. S0 long as the prosect of such re-
consideration remains open, the armed struggle of Umkonto
will remain the supplementary, not the main, force..form
of struggle." GSo that takes it up to June.,~=~Yes,

No April/May of that year. Then there is the

document R,351 which has been referred to on several occasions,
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and about which I think you have expressed an opinion too?
—==%es I think I did.

There are passages on page 2 in paragraph 2
which suggest that the A.N.C. itself has adopted a policy
of violence.,-=-Yes I think I said I thought that was a wrong
statement when it was put to me sir.

is,
I dnn't know what this document/- it does mot

appear to have haa; issued to anybody at all --=That I
could not say.

You don't know what it is 7==No.

well, i; one follows tha& up - first of all,
I want to try and fix the date of this, I have an ideas
I found somewhere that it was approximately July or August,
-=-1 think from page one the paragrsph numbered 1, it
suggests that the campaign against the Sabdage Act has been
complet ed. In other words, it gives me the impression that
this is shortly or sometime after the passing of the
Sabotage Act,

That is right. hnd then you will see at
the foot of page 2 the last paragraph but one says "The
main content of the South African democréitic revolution,
as formuleted in our own draft programme, is the national
liberation.," S50 apparently this precedd +the publication

of the Communist Farty progremme?=-Yes it would appear to

come between the publication of the draft and the publicetion

-y

of the finished document,

And then if you will look at the programme
iteelf, briefly, I want to investigate whether it contains
any formulation simile to this which we have just seen in

Re35l. This is a matter very much far argument, so I don't
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want to quote at length, This programme deals in Section

5 Fith the National Democratic Revolution. And I want

to refer only to page 4..at page 53 the programme refers to
the long and difficult struggles..national liberation
organisations..in which they have always sought peaceful
methods7--Yes.,

Then 54 really contains the summing up of the
situation, At the top there is the usual warning that the
Government policy will lead to open organising of guerilla
armies, etc.--Yes.

Then in paragsph 2 the programme expresses
the view that the slogan of non-violence is harmful,
and it proceeds in the second sentence as follows:"At the
same time the Party opposes endisciplined acts of individual
terror; it rejects theories that all non-violent methods
of struggle are useless or impossible, and will continue
to advocate and work for the use of all forms of struggle
by the people. The Party does not dismiss all prospects
of non-viclence transition to the demcecratic revelution.
Its prospect will be enhanced by the development of re-
voluiionary and militant peoples forces. The illusion
that white minority can rule for ever over a disarmed
majority will crumble before the reality" and then that
paragraph concludes "The pussibility would be opasn of
a peaceful and negotiated transfer of power to the re-

p resentatives of the majority."--=Yes.

Once again, militant there does not mean
military does it?--No I don't think it ever means military,
sir. It means vigourous.

And then the demand is stated on page 55,
viz., for the summoning of a sovereign national convention,

-=¥Yes that is so.
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Mr., Bernstein, that lesves the document R.40
and- R,1218, Mow I think we shall be able in argument to
point out to his la dship the clear reasons for saying that
M.140 precedes R,121.--Rdo.

Yes, R.40, One can see for instance that the
paging is such that it was still in the stage of prepamtion,
there is a page 62 and a page 6b---That is right.

And then I think there are directions for the
typist at the top of page 6.--Yes.

New section to be added, about 2 pages.--Yes.

I want to deal just briefly with some of the
important omissions. Take page 1 on R.40. I have asked
you to examine these documentas, haven'tI?7--Yes I have
examined them,

The last sentence in the first paragraph "More
abd more the oppressed masses are seeing violence and
retaliation as their only answer", That is a passage that
has been omitted altogether hasntt it7-—-pjz far as I can
SEEy 51T, YES.

Take page 2 paragraph 2: there is a paragraph
which reads "Without daubt these maasures have taken heavy
toll of the freedom movement. They have greatly narrowed the
arm of legal opposition and deams demand for change. Thay
have closed to road to peaceful democratic progress, "--~Yes.

Now if one finds the relevant passage in R,121
you will find instead of using the phrase "®losed the road"
the phrase is "greatly narrowed any hope" which is used,
--=That is correct sir, I have got it here in front of mée.

And then lastly I would just like to refer
you to the last paragraph on page B. That is the paragraph
which the State has placed great reliance on, but "szuch

acts of sabotage & e not enough and have never been considered
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encugh by themselves to achieve the common aim of Umkonto
andhthe rust of the liberation wovement, the nvarthruﬁ of
the white supremacy state. These activities can only

be of ultimate effect if they are regarded as a preparatory
stage intended to broaden out into a full-zcade campaign

of armed full-time guerilla and military operations +to
engage and eventually defeat the forces of the state."

You have that?---Yes 1 have that,

Now that does not apper in H.lEl?-—NEIdnnftthink
it does.

There is a completely different formulation
I think right at the end?-=Yes near the end of the document,

ftnd R.121 makes it quite clear that these
drastic revolutionary proposals are only made in the event
of the Government persisting in its attitudse, only then,
says the fifih paragraph, on page 11, 'the only effect
can be that the present cutbreaks of sabotage will develop
into full-scale war,'--Yes I dnntt'think they are even
proposals at that stage, sir. Tgey are a prediction of what
is going to happen inevitably.

Sg if I can produce evidence that it was the
latter of the two that was issued, then that would be
the final statement?--It would appear so, my lord.

Mow I turn briefly to come of the dunum;ntﬁ
which were put to you. Mr, Bernstein in C,R. for instance,
which is @wlso called 0. one of the first documents which
was put toyou, you remember this pamphleti:--1 remember it
was put to me,

"Vorster's Nozi Law" and ends up "Let us ali..
Communists and non-Communists alike unite in a stern and

dedicated fight for freedom,"---Yes.
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Have you any doubt as to how members of the
Congress Alliance would read that7--No sir, I think they
will understand that means a political campaign, a political
battle fought with political means, meetings, demonstrations
and 80 Gn.

This word is very frequently used, isn't 5t7
——=0Oh it is a steandard word, not just to the Congress Movement,
let me say sir, but 1 think in practically all political
parties and organisations this word is used.

Mow it has been suggested to you Mr. Bernstedn
that the average Longress member whoever it might be would
read this in a different fashion because of the establishment
of Umkonto, What do you say about that?---My lord, I would
be inclined to dispute that. 1[I think that this sort of
leaflet which is issud to the public, issued to the ordinary
man in the street. Thexepeg people who write them are well
aware that the ordinary man in the street does not sit down
and study the document, or attempt to find & hidden
meaning, and interpret it in the light of some other cir-
cumstances or something he has heard at someother time,

He would take it at its face value, he will take the simplest
m eaning of the word, the obvious memning of the word, and

not attempt to interpret it in the light of a lot of

of conundra of other circumstances. And I think it is
written in that way and it is intended to be read in that
ways ==

You see, it was also suggested Mr. Bernstein,
that in awx R,158, where you wrote ...l know there was a
reference there to fighting, or sooner or later disturbances
would take plaee like Zeerust - that wae in an article on
the Bantu Hamelands.--Yes,

And hen in the next Hournel referred to which

R.131. an article in "Fighting Talk" Going Jown in Blood,
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which referred to...that was the phrase in an article?---
Yes, it was the heading put on an article.

Is it conceivable that anyone would recommend
in public journals that there should be armed insurrection?
--My lord, it seems o me one must distinguish between
journals cr documents issued by orgenisations which are
functioning quite openly and legally and crgenisaiions
which are functioning secretly and illegally. If you
take a document like "Fighting t&lk"™ or "New Age" or any
of these documpnts which are issued from offices which are
known to the authorities; they have got their address on
them; the people working on these journals are known,
such organisations certainly would never issue calls to
people to plant bombs or to conduct guerilla warfare
operations, But when one comes to documents like these,
issued by the South African Communist Party, or by the
African Natioml Longress when it is unlawful, now there
I believe my lom that if these people wanted to say "Go
and plant bombs in pass offices" they would say it, just
like that - because they are not known, they aze secrat
organisations and the parpose of being secret organisations
is so that they can say what they think without having
to go into circumlocution and so on., 50 I would say
that when one deals with documents issued by illegal
organisations, one cannot read into them hidden meanings.
If they intended to say to penple "Bommit Sabotuge" they
would say it - as in fact Umkonto did say in the documents
it issued.

Mow Mr. Bernstein, I want you - I don't know whether it
is a long task or a short task, I would like you to make

it as brief and simple as possible - you remember that you



- 239 = ACCUSED No,6,

made the stotemert yesterday that the Exhibit R. 20, R.21
and R22 were not sound Marxism.---Those are “"How to be a
Good Communist?®

Yoo, NMow I have not naturally been able to
discuss this with you, but possibly - you have had these
copies?==Yes,

I think if you can avoid giving the Court a
lecture on these documents you sbould Perhaps you could
make, you kew, half a dozen clear points.---Well I don't
even know if I will make as many as that, sir,but 1 would
take the first paragraph of Lecture 1 my lord, which says
that"p Communist is a menber of the Communist Party who
understands and accepts the theory and practice of Marxism-
Leninism as explained by Marx, Engels , Lenin and Stalin.”
Now this is a wrong statement. There is a ducument before
the Cowr t which gives the rules for the South African
Communist Party which makes it clear that a member of the
Communist Party is not required to understand the doctrine.
The requirements for being a member of the Communist Party,
is that one supports of the policy of the Party and undertakes
to do active work under the direction of & leading cummittee
of the Party. Whether you understiand and accept the theory
and practice of Marxism=Leninicm is completely a matter which
is outside the scepc of whether you are a member of the Paty
or not, The Party encourages people to do this, but it
never lays down anywherc in the world, not even in the Soviet
Union where they teach Marxism-Leninism to people as a matter
of policy, noet cven there is it laid down that to be a
Communist must you understand. And you #ill find that in=-
terpretation of what constitutes a Communist running right the
way through Lecture One sir, end in my opinion it is a com-

letely incorrect statement. Youwill find it repeatel for
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instance on page 3, under the heading (e) "One's'something

I gnn't know what, 'in the practical struggles of the
oppressed people." It repeats the some thing. It says that
it is not enough to understand Marxism. In addition to that,
to be a Communist, you must participate in the struggles of
the people. I think this is an exact reversal of Marxist
and Communist policy. If one wanted to say anything at all,

one would say "It is not enough to parficipate in the

active politital struggles of the people - to be a Communist
you must also understand Marxism." On lecture one I think
through
this thread runs all the way 4heeghy I won't burden the
Court with ii, but it seems to me this is a fundamental
misunderstanding which indicates to me that the person who
wrote these did not understand the position of the Communist
Party on the Question, If I turn to Esxpex Chapter Two, sir,
the second paragraph says "Dialectical materialism was founded
by Marx and Engels. "™ I think it is & very udd word - it
might just be a matter of English, but I don't think it is
Belt 99E. a word any Communist would use at all, sir, It is a
system of philosophy which was put together , per haps, by
Marx into a coherent whole, but dislectics date back to
ancient Greece and materialism probably just as far, or
further. In paragraph 3 it says that the philosophy of
Marxism 'is a dialectical philosophy besause it studies
things nﬁﬁniately and objectively, and because its approach
on all things in nature is always based on data ecstoblished
through scientific investigation and experience.® HNow my

lord, this is not so at all, A diaslectical philosophy,
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as is said correctly that = dialectical philosophy

is.one wnich attempts to establish truth by exposing
contradictions, I think that is the basis of it, What

thiz says is that a dialectical philosopby is nothing of

the sort, it is what I would say @ concrete approach, or
perhaps it might even be described as a materialist philosophy.
I don't know how long I should carry on?

Just deal with the Third. Have you found
seimilar,,=~<I have found similar things, my lord, which
indicate to me that the per son who wrote these has not
got a profound understanding of Marxist theories.

Or of the Communist Party. Now I want you,,.

Mr. Bernstein I don t knaw if you have had an cpportunity
of looking et this ;nnk (T466)s ==No I have not, Not at all.

1 think perhaps if you just look at the in-
scription on the flyleaf..-==Riot control techniques,

Yes, and than it says by whom it is issued,
=== It gays "Rict control techniques, manhandling and
close combat for the mlice and the military by Liet.-Col,
Rex Applegate, U,5.A. (Retired) and spparently issued by
the military service division of the 7 Company, Pennsyl-
vania.

It does not purport to be a Communist Journal
describing how Communists should work?

BY THE COURT:

I don't think that was the suggestion., The
suggestion is you must study that to see how you can counter
the police methods, That I think is the suggestion that the

State meakes.

MR, FISCHER: Mo, it was suggested by my learned friend,
that
Mr. Bernstein, as 1 undecrstood himj{ terrorism and mob

violence was part of Communist methods.---Well I disputed
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thatat the time,
‘ Now 1 want to turn to Exhibit R,35 which is
sorry,_96. a

the same as 1,69, / 1 have the original here, might I just
unpin this for the moment to give youone copy and keep one
for myscdf. MNow this was said to be, I am quoting my learned
friend, a "blatant incitement to take up arms." [ cantt
remember from what he inferred that - oh it was the reference
to Cuba?==Yes it was the top paragraph on page 2 actually.

Uh yes that was it,where the students fTought
with a book in one hand and a rifle in the other. WNow
Mr. Bernstein, this refers in the third paragraph on page
2 3 "The youth of our country have shown that they can
fight bravely for their Iiﬁht&. At fFort Hare, Turfloop,
Healdtown, Luvedale, Kilnerton and the Botha High School
for example, they stood up and took militant action, reprdless
of the consequences. When nurses were caned, they went on
strike, When workers in the factories demand better con-
ditions, the youth are with them." Do you know what
happened at any one of these collefes? =--My lord, I don't
know if that is what this document is referring to,
but there have becn from time to time student protest strikes
at 1 think most of these places. And I think a large number
of students goi expelld as a result of that,

From time to time that does happan?-—-rea.
I am not_sure if that is what this document is rafn;ring to.

Have you ever heard of the students of these
colleges taking up arms7==No sir,

Or taking violent action?---Apart from the me
case that wes quoted to me by theprosecutor of & student

who has been charged with sabotage, I dm 't,

Well apyway the document sets out what it calls
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on the youth to do, at the foot of page 2.--Yes.

Which include such things as building
students and youth organisations to look after our interests,
building factory committees and trade unions, fighting the
colour bar and sports clubs.))That is right.

Oh then the next document referred to Mr,
Bernstein was referred to apparently for a different purpose,
Thet was your document "Differences in the Communist Move-
ment "R ,,36,--=Yes,

And how it was that you would find time to go
out to Rivonia with this document and other documents as
well, Had you any particular reason for going in that drec-
tion?--Well my lord, as I said, Iwas asked on thesec occasions
to go out with this material. At the time, sir, I was
supervising a bailding operation job in Bryanston. From
my house to Bryanston via Rwonia is not much longer than
any other way round, and so on occasions either to or from
Bryanston I used to take the opportunity,being in the dis-
trict, just to drop in there. It was not as far out of
the way as it sounds.

Yas. Incidently, there were these two topics,
the Chineso/Indian dispute, and the theoretical dispute
between the Soviet Union and the Chinese Communkst Party.
-==Yes,

Were those matters which were very keenly
diﬁEUEEqurfﬂvﬂﬂ my lord, very keenly discussed indded, I
would say the seccond one was more of interest to people of
a Communist bent, or interested in Communis#m, but the first
one, the dispute between China dnd Indian over the frontier
wes a matter of tremendous interest to everybody in the

liberation movement, regaddless of his political ideology.
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lndia was one of the countries which had
achieved its freedom, and so was China7---Yes, and India
was the home of the passive resistance movement, which has
been a tremendous inspiration to the movement in this country.
In fact, it was a great shock to the movement?
~==That these two countries sbould come to blows, certainly
it was sir yes.
Now I want you to have a look at R,61, That
was mentioned yesterday and then dealt with more thoroughly
today. That is a typescript documeni?--I did have one
typescript document yestoerday, I am not clear what one it was.
It is not a ronec-ed document,---Is that the
one something abdut a crisis?
It is called "The Crisis is Decpening in
South Africas"---The document which was shown to me yesterday,
I think it was the original, is a typescripi document,
For the rest I thirk we dealt with it earlier,

Might I hdve Exhibit D,M. a new one handed in today? You

remember, Mr, Bernstein, this was the document which
deals with the 44th anniversity of the Socialist Revolu-
tion in the Sovie¥ Union, headed "For Higher Wages, Land,
Freedom and Equality."---Yes,.

It is what my learned friend characterised as
aw onderful bait, for Jim Fish. Mr. Bernstein, what is
meant by a Communistic State, just in 3 words - or perhaps Ei
BY THE COURT:

BUMEXEEENIEXANENRXAENIK ¥ X Utopian statelew-

At the moment, sir, it is Utopian in the secnse that it
never existed.

Many people think it cen never eixist, some
people think it can.--Swme think it ean, some think it can't,

I think that is near enough
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ER0 RE-EXAMINATION BY MR, FISCHER (CONTINUED) s

Mr. Bernstein, you know thet sertain things

are free in the Soviet Union.--Yes certain things are.
Amongst thase that are mentioned here, free
bread, free public transport, free educotion, free medical
services, free meals - do you know which are free?==Medical
services, sir are free, and there is one other that you read,
Education?--=Education is freao. I don't
think any of the others are yet free.
But that is the object, is it?--=-That wa the

point of this plan. The Communist Party of the Yoviet

Party at that time produced a plan for the building of
Commonism, which they hoped to achieve..I canft remember when
it is now, 1970 or 1980 and by that time they hope to have
all these other things free as well, as part of their
Communist societly.

Now ir., Bernstein I turn to a slightly more
personal subject - this letter which you wrote, you wrote
openly and handed to the prison suthorities to transmit?--

That is correct,

To your sister and her husbamnd 7---That is correct.

My learned friend has read only criticism which
you make?--Yes,

But in fact, if the letter is read as a whole, you
give your rgasons, including those which you gave this morning,
for thinking that certain witnesses had not told the truthZe=-
I think I refer, if 1 remember sir, I lwe not seen the letter
gince I wrote it, but if I remember I think I referred to
epecific witnasses in making those allegations.

You referred to the two who were at Lobatsi.—=—=
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That is right.

You referred to the taxi driver and his minute
descrition of a whole days travelling, in which he hears
one sentence and one sentence only.---That is correct.

And so on = you set it cut?--Yes, as far as I
can recall,

Your statements are substantiated as faras
you can substantiate them?-<Well I think #ey ar=s fair con=-
clusions, sir, other people might not agree.

Mr. Bernstein, I want to ask you something else.
You were a 90 day detainee7-=Yes I was.

Were you asked to make a statement?--1 was asked
to give information, sir.

Were you offered any rewards? were any
threats made? I would like you to give this fully, for it
it applies to you one assumes it might well apply to dhers.
~==Well my lord, so far as threats are concerned, I was
told repeatedly, in interrcgation sessions by tha police,
that if [ didnot give the infcormation they required satis-
factorily I would bﬁ detained indefinitely for 90 days and
90 days and another 90 days. One of the interrogating
cfficers in fact told me he had got 23 yenrs to go in the
service, so0 he can afford to weit longer than I can. That
sort of threcat was made repeatedly. Towards the end of
my deftention continued reference was made to the fTect
that veryﬂéﬂriuus matters, charges, were going to be brought
against me in which the death sentence was very, very
likely to be brought on, and this question was harped on
ropestedly, sir. Suggestions were made, not directly, but

slightly obliquely that perhaps I could name my price for
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giving information, if I flt that interested me. 1 was
told about people who got considerable sums of money for
qiuiﬁg information.

What sort of sumg?===The sum of RBCCO was
mentioned sbout one person who gave a very, very important
piece of information, So to that extent, inducements and
threats were held cut to mae

fAind iz that why you called it torture?--Ne sir,
What I called torture is the actuasl conditions under which
we were kept for 90 days. One has to go through it, to
spend 90 days without talking to a solitary human being
at all to be locked in a tiny room, grey walls, only
oble to sec a pieee of light through a very high window,
and spend 23 hours a day contemplating those walls, because
you are not allowed to read or write, and you have got no
work to do and nothing to occupy yourself at all. These
conditions, coupled with the interrogation eessions, in my
view amounted to a form of mental torturewhich is very,
very severc indeed,

Mr. Bernstein, con you say whether it has
affected your memory or not?--1 can only speak asboutthe
symptoms I observed in myself, and I don't know if I have
got a complete rocord of them. 1 developed an extremely
scvere handshake after about 60 days, a tremble in my hands,
which lasted for some weeks ater the end of my detention.:
I found utﬁthg end of my detention, sir, that I was utterly
unable tec concentrate. If I mat down to write a letter,

I could write two sentences, and then I would have to get
up and walk around for 5 or 10 minutes before I could
write a third, Extreme anxiety, my lord, about ahsuiutaly

ridiculous things which a normal person would not feel the

leoast anxiety about at all, 1 found making me extremely
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anxious and reducing me to a state of nerves under certain

conditions, These things 1 observed.

Incidently, Mr. Bernstein, when the interrocgators
were not issuing open veiled threats, was the interrogation
a relief from the lonelinessT---Yes sir, I think it was =2
great relief to have somebody to talk to. I am not a
person, as kes there has been evidence in this box here si%,
that I am not a person who likes telking fo policeman,
and I found it a relief.

what does one do to occupy oneself Mr, Bernstein?
~==Well sir, I suppose everybody..
BY THE CGLR T (to Mr. Fischer)

what is the relevance of this Mr, Fischer?
You are now tning to get evidence in at the back door which
I excluded from the front door? ---=liell, this is personal
experience, my lord. |

Well, he has given us,.---As your lordship pleasos.

Are you suggesting I should not believe any of
his evidence, because he has been ..8t one time was confined?
-=No my lord. This witness did not make & statement,
RE-EXAMINATION BY MR, FISCHER (CONTINUED) :

Mr. Bernstein, I want lastly just to refer to

the gxhibit D.L. which was put in, As 1 understand it,
this expresses a good deal of your political philosophy,
-=Yes sir ] think it does.
" You deal with,.could the witness have acopy?
~==(Handed to the witness).
In writing about South Africans facing the

future, you were addressim White South Africa?=-Yes, the
whole document is addressed to White South Africans.

You start by saying that they become immured to

s hock?==Yes,
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You give a picturc of a South Africanwho can
gven, shall I say, can even take Sharpeville?--Yes,

You then describe changes in Africa - I am
doing this very briefly?--That is so,

And you start on,,at the foot of 4 under the
heading "Floodtide, 1960" to characterise the changes which
have come about.--Yeao.

You mention sll the states, or a large numbex
of the states who have achieved freedom without any blood-
shed at all,7--'cs.

You set out the features, under the next
paragraph "Looking Closer Home", the ..you characterise
the features of the South African situation?==That is so,.

The future of South West hanging in the balance,
Bechuanaland negotiating for self-rule, and so forth.--es.

Then you ask what price arc we prepared
to pay for our right to keep out of astep with what you
call the floodtide of 19607-=-=Yes,

You count up the cost as being a state of
virtual martial law, this referred, I think, to the
emergencyi-~-Yes I think so,

Then you proceed to say "The future is now."
@Hoéw Mr, Bernstein, I don®t want to read mueh of this, \ould
you like just to summarise it, brieflyf—=-You mean the
rest of it from there on?

a that you are standing for7---My lord, what I
was trying io say from here on was thet a situation is
being reached in which white South Africans have got only
two choices for the future, the one choice, which is #he
one which iz being proposed and advocated by the Euvurnmant,

and followed out by them, is the choice of attempting to
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hang on te their present positions of power, by shooting
it out with the oon-European people when it becoms necessary;
and the othez, or perhaps 2 further choices,for the white
people to pack up and leave this country, or alternatively
to try and reasch a settlement with the non-white people
on the basis of recognising thair rights to equality of
rights and opportunities. I then deal with Algeria, which
I say is the writing on the wall for South Africans.

You have written quite a considerable amount
on Algeria?--Yazs sir I have, because I think it is the
closest.,well not the parallel, it is the best lesson which
South Africans can draw fﬂEﬁ the history of Africa, and that
iz that there you have a not dissimilar breakdown in the |
population as between white and non-white, you have the
s ame monopoly of powea in the hands of the white population,
who attempted to hold it by a military process which
finally pmctically broke the back, not just of white Algeria
sir, but of France, and finally failed, as I predicted in
this document it must inevitably fail, I then makes the
point that this is the lesson which white South Africans
iwust drawdf, that even if they choose to shoot it out, in
the long run they ax going to feil, and when they do fail,
they will then have no furthe option, By that time there
will be such bitterness in thie country that white South
fifricans, even if they then choose to want to live here,
very likely.will find life as intolerable as many whites in
flgeria found at the end of the Algerian war, znd became
rcfugees. And that is I think a summary of what I was trying
to seay.

Yould you be predpred to say Mr,Bernstein, would
it be fair to say that ywu spent many years of your life

trying to prevent South Africa coming to a stage where it
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had to shoot it out?=<1 think almost all my poiitical
lifg has been spent in that direction.,

Mr. Dernstein, one or two other questions:
it was put to you that..or you suggested that the police
digsopdited themselves. MNow I just want to know - what have
you in mind?===Well my lord, I think there are many occasions
on which the police behaved in a way which is no credit to
a responsible body of men, enirusted with the tremendous
powcrs that they sre entrwted. I mentioned one example.

You mentioncd Bultfonteinfi=--That is right.

There have been other asseults?=---There have
been many other assgulis on people.

And we know that the Minister made a statement
quite recontly about the number of police vho have
committed asgsaults and were still in the police?==That is so,

That does not mean to say that all pelicemen
commit assaults?=--No, far from it.

1t does not mean to say that our police forcs
is particularly bad?=-=No I don't think I said that .

It means that these things do exist?--Yes,
certainly do,

Do you think the existence of the many dis-
criminatory laws affects this position?--1 think very
detinitely, sir. T think people who are brought up in the
tradition of regarding non-whites am inferior, seem to
treat thuﬁhiﬁ a much rougher and less responsible fashion
than if they were brought up to believe that they are not
inferior,

MRy FISCHER: No further questions,
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